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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This report contains forward-looking statements. The Securities and Exchange Commission encourages companies to disclose forward-looking
information so that investors can better understand a company’s future prospects and make informed investment decisions. This report and other written and oral
statements that we make from time to time contain such forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on management’s plans and assumptions
regarding future events or performance. We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,”
“project,” “intend,” “plan,” “believe,” “will” and similar expressions in connection with any discussion of future operating or financial performance. In
particular, these include statements relating to future actions, future performance or results of current and anticipated sales efforts, expenses, the outcome of
contingencies, such as legal proceedings, and financial results. Factors that could cause our actual results of operations and financial condition to differ
materially are discussed in greater detail under Item 1A – “Risk Factors” of this report.
We caution that the factors described herein and other factors could cause our actual results of operations and financial condition to differ materially
from those expressed in any forward-looking statements we make and that investors should not place undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements.
Further, any forward-looking statement speaks only as of the date on which such statement is made, and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking
statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which such statement is made or to reflect the occurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or
circumstances. New factors emerge from time to time, and it is not possible for us to predict all of such factors. Further, we cannot assess the impact of each such
factor on our results of operations or the extent to which any factor, or combination of factors, may cause actual results to differ materially from those contained
in any forward-looking statements.
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PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
The Company
Lifelogger Technologies, Inc. (“we”, “us”, the “Company”, “Lifelogger”) was incorporated in Nevada on June 4, 2012 under the name Snap Online
Marketing Inc. We changed our name effective January 31, 2014.
The Company
We are a lifelogging software company that developed and hosts a proprietary cloud-based software solution accessible on iOS and Android devices that offers an
enhanced media experience for consumers by augmenting videos, livestreams and photos with additional context information and providing a platform that makes
it easy to find and use that data when viewing or sharing media. The first iteration of that context information is focused on geo-location, face-detection, and
different options for tagging and social interaction.
Our Core Business
Lifelogging is a way of journaling one’s life using media, often through the use of wearable electronic devices. We make lifelogging accessible to the mass market
by taking videos and images right from users’ smart phones, wearable camera and/or sensor solutions, and adding geographic, visual and test data designed to
enhance the relevance and context of the information collected. We make it easier for users to retrieve and share their media with family and friends without
having to be an expert in using advanced functions in real time, using live stream or recording, at the user’s option. We allow consumers to easily capture and live
stream videos with geographic coordinates and automatic face detection and to tag special moments while recording. The video playback features an interactive
map and ability to skip to in-video frames with faces detected and added tags. Search features allow users the ability to retrieve videos beyond the basic title and
description, including location, face or in-line video tags. Sharing videos on popular social channels like Facebook and Twitter using links makes it easy to manage
large media files.
Our vision is to seamlessly integrate with a wide range of wearable cameras and mobile devices. To realize this vision, our plan is to integrate with selected leading
camera manufacturers. We refer to this integrated eco-system as the LifeLogger Platform. In addition, our LifeLogger Platform can be configured for use on a
“white-label” license basis by device manufacturers and leading companies in our selected industries. The LifeLogger video cloud storage solution and iOS and
Android applications are architected for scalability with high availability designed for use with widely available third party cloud based data providers.
Software Development Milestones
Following the launch of our private beta version of the LifeLogger Platform in August 2015 to users who expressed interest for exclusive testing with their iOS and
Android devices, we launched an open public version during the first quarter of 2016. This release has the primary value proposition built in with geo-coordinates,
face detection, playback with interactive map, social engagement features that enable easy sharing and ability to “like” other postings. Among the uses of our
platform are the ability to share a video of a customer’s vacation in Europe with others that is integrated with an interactive map showing the viewer where the
video is taking place, allowing the viewer to seamlessly switch to the map view and even show additional views of those locations and other media taken by other
people nearby. The end result is designed to provide an enhanced media experience much richer than just sharing the video alone.
We maintain the operation of this platform and are seeking potential distributors, joint venture and strategic alliance partners and additional sources of financing to
enable us to pursue continued marketing and future development and commercialization activities to increase engagement and make improvements to the user
interface and experience.
Our Vision
Our mission is to connect people with the media that matters to them. To accomplish this, we envision collecting as much data as possible about the
captured device agnostic media allowing users to get videos from their iOS or Android device, or other wearable camera and/or sensor solutions. In addition to the
data we might collect to augment the video, our plan is to anonymously collect viewing data and evaluate habits to determine what is most relevant to our
customers as we intersect those patterns with the customer’s connected social media networks. Between the data we are capable of adding to users’ media and data
that is publicly available (e.g. street views, mapping, other people’s videos), users are able to access other media that’s relevant to their photos and/or video. We
believe that the end result is a much richer experience for our users and a data network that facilitates finding media that is relevant to our customers.
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The Idea of Lifelogging
Lifelogging is a way of journaling one’s life using media. We make lifelogging accessible to the mass market by taking videos and images right from
users’ smart phones, wearable camera and/or sensor solutions, and adding geographic, visual and test data designed to enhance the relevance and context of the
information collected. We make it easier for users to retrieve and share their media with family and friends without having to be an expert in using advanced
functions in real time, using live stream or recording, at the user’s option. We allow users to easily capture and live stream videos with geographic coordinates and
automatic face detection and to tag special moments while recording. The video playback features an interactive map and ability to skip to in-video frames with
faces detected and added tags. Search features allow users the ability to retrieve videos beyond the basic title and description, including location, face or in-line
video tags, by region or date. Sharing videos on popular social channels like Facebook, Twitter and YouTube using links makes it easy to manage large media
files.
Operational Resources
We rely on third party product development and software engineering and consulting providers for the development and support of our LifeLogger
Platform on an as-needed basis. Our operations are guided by Andrés Espineira, B.S., M.M., an entrepreneur with a strong background in product strategy,
marketing and software development who joined our company in November 2015 as our Chief Marketing Officer.
We completed a prototype of our integrated Lifelogger wearable video camera for testing in 2014 and continue to market this product to potential
distributors and joint venture and strategic alliance partners. We will evaluate opportunities from these marketing efforts to determine the extent of our future
development and marketing of this device.
Sales and Marketing
We plan to develop a new marketing strategy in 2017 following finalization of an agreement with a distributor, joint venture or strategic alliance partner
and securing additional sources of financing. These strategies may include the following:
●

Search engine optimization to improve rankings to drive organic growth. Use traffic and rankings from benchmark service providers to improve
Lifelogger’s rankings by strategically redirecting traffic.

●

Development of a data-driven understanding of user growth and customer engagement.

●

Focus on a vertical to drive tailored engagement. We have chosen to focus on travel among the general population, where we observe a sweet spot of
increased capture, sharing and preservation.

●

Optimize platform to drive new user signups through a rich media sharing experience. Nothing sells a service better thank customers, and nothing is
more compelling than their own photos and videos.

Principal Suppliers
We believe we will have adequate access to a qualified development team for the LifeLogger Platform.
Competition
We will initially license our platform exclusively via the Internet. Our competition includes other Internet based sellers of lifelogger services. Some of our
competitors may have significantly greater financial, marketing and other resources than we do. Our competitors may undertake more far-reaching marketing
campaigns, including print and television advertisements, and adopt more aggressive pricing policies that may allow them to build larger customer and distribution
bases than ours. Our competitor’s services may be equal or superior to our proposed platform or that achieve greater market acceptance than ours.
Government Regulation
Our LifeLogger Platform business operates in a regulated environment under various federal and state consumer protection and other laws, rules and
regulations, including the federal Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act and the federal Telemarketing and Consumer Fraud and Abuse Prevention Act. Some of the more
significant regulations that we will become subject are described below.
Our LifeLogger Platform is subject to a number of U.S. federal and state, and foreign laws and regulations that affect companies conducting business on
the Internet. Many of these laws and regulations are still evolving and being tested in courts, and could be interpreted in ways that could harm our business. These
may involve user privacy, rights of publicity, data protection, content, intellectual property, distribution, electronic contracts and other communications,
competition, protection of minors, consumer protection, taxation and online payment services. In particular, we will become subject to federal, state, and foreign
laws regarding privacy and protection of user data. Foreign data protection, privacy, and other laws and regulations can be more restrictive than those in the United
States. U.S. federal and state and foreign laws and regulations are constantly evolving and can be subject to significant change. In addition, the application and
interpretation of these laws and regulations are often uncertain, particularly in the new and rapidly-evolving industry in which we intend to operate, and may be
interpreted and applied inconsistently from country to country and inconsistently with our current policies and practices. There are also a number of legislative
proposals pending before the U.S. Congress, various state legislative bodies, and foreign governments concerning data protection which could affect us. For
example, the European Commission is currently considering a data protection regulation that may include operational requirements for companies that receive
personal data that are different than those currently in place in the European Union, and that may also include significant penalties for non-compliance.
-5-

We believe we are in substantial compliance with all governmental regulations applicable to our business. We will employ a number of external resources
to assist us in complying with our regulatory obligations. These external resources will include outside technology providers and consultants. As we expand our
business, we will be required to raise additional capital to cover the expected increase in costs to hire and train additional internal and external resources to ensure
we remain in substantial compliance with our governmental obligations.
Patents and Trademarks
We own the trademark for “LL Life Logger,” “LifeLogger,” and “What’s Your Story”. These trademarks are registered in the United States and a
trademark for “Life Logger” has been registered in the European Union.
Employees
As of April 17, 2017, we have no full-time employees. However, we have a consulting contract with our Chief Executive Officer to provide services to us
on a full-time basis and Andres Espiniera who provides services to us on a part-time basis. In addition, we contract with third-party software developers as needed
for software development.
Our Corporate History and Recent Developments
We were incorporated in Nevada on June 4, 2012 under the name Snap Online Marketing Inc. We changed our name effective January 31, 2014 when we
embarked on the development and commercialization of innovative lifelogging solutions enabling the recording, secure online storage, organizing, retrieving,
appreciation and selective sharing of personal information, data, photos, videos and other activities with friends and the public at large. Prior to January 31, 2014,
we were engaged in providing web based marketing services.
On June 30, 2016, we c ompleted the acquisition of certain assets of Pixorial, Inc. (“Pixorial”) pursuant to the terms of the Amended and Restated Asset
Purchase Agreement entered into among us, Pixorial and Andres Espiniera dated June 20, 2016 (the “Amended Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the
Amended Agreement, we acquired the trademark “What’s Your Story” and Pixorial’s customer list (the “Pixorial Asset Acquisition”). Under the terms of the
Amended Agreement, we agreed to issue 86,673 shares of our unregistered common stock to the existing shareholders and certain creditors of Pixorial. In addition,
we amended the exercise price of Mr. Espineira’s November 10, 2015 stock option award to acquire 200,000 shares of our common stock to $3.00 per share. The
shares of our common stock to be issued to Pixorial’s shareholders and creditors are subject to a lock-up agreement whereby one-third the number received by each
may be sold beginning as of each of the first three anniversaries of the closing of the Pixorial Asset Acquisition.
We amended our amended and restated articles of incorporation to increase our authorized capital stock from 125,000,000 shares to 500,000,000 shares,
of which 495,000,000 shares will be common stock and 5,000,000 will be preferred stock and also effected a 1 for 30 reverse split of our common stock
outstanding. This corporate action was approved by FINRA on March 24, 2017 and became effective as of March 27, 2017.
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Risks Related to our Business
We lack an operating history. There is no assurance our future operations will result in profitable revenues. If we cannot generate sufficient revenues to
operate profitably, our business will fail.
We were incorporated on June 4, 2012. For the year ended December 31, 2016, we realized no revenues and incurred $1,497,849 in operating costs for
the year ended December 31, 2016. We have not generated any revenue from our planned Lifelogging Platform business. As of December 31, 2016, we had
accumulated deficit of $4,594,037. We have a limited operating history upon which an evaluation of our future success or failure can be made. Based upon current
plans, do not know when we expect to begin generating revenues from our planned Lifelogging Platform business. Furthermore, our revenues may not be sufficient
to cover our operating costs. We cannot guarantee that we will be successful in generating significant revenues in the future. Failure to achieve a sustainable sales
level will cause us to go out of business.
Our auditors have issued a going concern opinion because there is substantial uncertainty that we will continue operations in which case you could lose your
investment.
Our auditors have issued a going concern opinion. This means that there is substantial doubt that we can continue as an ongoing business for the next
twelve months. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the uncertainty about our ability to continue in business. As such we
may have to cease operations and you could lose your investment.
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Significant Capital Requirements; Possible Additional Financing.
Our capital requirements will be significant. We are dependent on raising additional capital in order to fund our operations. Such financing may include
the issuance of additional securities and/or the incurrence of debt financing. There can be no assurance that any additional financing will be available to us on
acceptable terms or at all. Any additional equity financing will dilute the interests of our then existing shareholders.
Lifelogging services generally, and our services in particular, may not achieve widespread acceptance which could require us to modify our sales and
marketing efforts and could limit our ability to successfully grow our business.
The market for lifelogging software remains immature and is rapidly changing. In addition, the services we plan to sell are still being developed and will
be new to the market. Our ability to sell these services and generate revenue in the future depends on the acceptance by customers, third-party resellers and end
users of life logging software and services generally and our services in particular. The adoption of lifelogging software could be hindered by the costs to use the
services. Accordingly, in order to achieve commercial acceptance, we may have to educate prospective customers about the uses and benefits of life blogging in
general and our services in particular. We may also need to modify or increase our planned sales and marketing efforts or adopt new marketing strategies to
achieve such education. If these efforts fail, prove excessively costly or unmanageable, or if life logging generally does not continue to achieve commercial
acceptance, our business would be harmed.
We may have difficulty managing growth in our business.
Because of our small size, growth in accordance with our business plans, if achieved, will place a significant strain on our financial, technical, operational
and management resources. As we expand our activities and increase our service lines, there will be additional demands on our financial, technical and
management resources. The failure to continue to upgrade our technical, administrative, operating and financial control systems or the occurrence of unexpected
expansion difficulties, including the recruitment and retention of experienced personnel, talent and consultants, could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations and our ability to timely execute our business plan.
Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by unfavorable economic and market conditions .
Changes in global economic conditions could adversely affect the profitability of our business. Economic conditions worldwide have from time to time
contributed to slowdowns in the technology industry, as well as in the specific segments and markets in which we operate, resulting in reduced demand and
increased price competition for our services. Our operating results in one or more geographic regions may also be affected by uncertain or changing economic
conditions within that region, such as the challenges that are currently affecting economic conditions in the United States and abroad. If economic and market
conditions in the United States or other potential key markets, remain unfavorable or persist, spread or deteriorate further, we may experience an adverse impact on
our business, financial condition and results of operation. In addition, the current or future tightening of credit in financial markets could result in a decrease in
demand for our services.
Our ability to keep pace with technological developments is uncertain .
Our failure to respond in a timely and effective manner to new and evolving technologies could harm our business, financial condition and operating
results. The idea of lifelogging is an evolving social network trend characterized by rapidly changing technology, evolving industry standards, changes in consumer
needs and new service introductions. Our business, financial condition and operating results will depend, in part, on our ability to develop the technical expertise to
address these rapid changes and to use leading technologies effectively. We may experience difficulties that could delay or prevent the successful development,
introduction or implementation of new features or services to our proposed lifelogging services.
Any defects in, or other problems with, our services could harm our business and result in claims against us.
Complex software service platforms such as ours may contain errors, defects and bugs (collectively, “errors”). During the development of LifeLogger
Platform, we may discover errors. As a result, our planned services may take longer than expected to develop. In addition, we may discover that remedies for errors
may be technologically unfeasible. Delivery of services with undetected errors or reliability, quality or compatibility problems could damage our reputation. The
existence of errors or reliability, quality or compatibility problems could also cause interruptions, delays or cessations of sales. We could, as well, be required to
expend significant capital and other resources to remedy these problems. In addition, customers whose businesses are disrupted by these errors or reliability,
quality or compatibility problems could bring claims against us; the defense of which, even if successful, would likely be time consuming and costly. Furthermore,
if any such defense were not successful, we might be obligated to pay substantial damages that could materially and adversely affect our operating results.
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Our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected if we fail to provide adequate security to protect our prospective
customers and our systems .
Online security breaches could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations. Any well-publicized compromise of security
could deter use of the internet in general or use of the internet to store, retrieve and share confidential or personal information or downloading sensitive materials.
In offering lifelogging services, we may increasingly rely on technology acquired from third parties to develop and produce our LifeLogger Platform. Advances in
computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments could compromise or breach the algorithms that we plan to use to protect
the data of our potential customers. If third parties are able to penetrate our planned network security or otherwise misappropriate confidential information, we
could be subject to liability, which could result in litigation. In addition, experienced programmers or “hackers” may attempt to misappropriate proprietary
information or cause interruptions in our services that could require us to expend significant capital and resources to protect against or remediate these problems.
We may not be able to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights .
The LifeLogger Platform has been created using proprietary technology being developed, in part, by third party contractors and the proprietary
technology of the vendors who supply them with components. Although we will seek contractual indemnification rights and have certain common law rights of
indemnification, neither we nor our third party contractors have any registered patents on our Lifelogger Platform. Our inability or failure to protect or enforce
trademarks and other proprietary rights could materially adversely affect our business. Our actions to establish, protect and enforce our trademarks and other
proprietary rights may not prevent imitation of our services or brands or control piracy by others or prevent others from claiming violations of their trademarks and
other proprietary rights by us. There are factors outside of our control that pose a threat to our intellectual property rights. For example, effective intellectual
property protection may not be available in every country in which our proposed services are distributed or made available through the internet.
Further, although management does not believe that our LifeLogger Platform will infringe on the intellectual rights of others, there is no assurance that we
will not be the target of infringement or other claims. Such claims, even if not true, could result in significant legal and other costs and may be a distraction to our
management or interrupt our proposed business.
If we do not diversify, continue to innovate and provide products or services that are useful to consumers and which generate significant traffic to our websites,
we may not remain competitive or generate revenue .
Internet-based social networking is characterized by significant competition, evolving industry standards and frequent product or service enhancements.
Our competitors are constantly developing innovations in internet social networking. We must continually invest in improving our customers’ experiences and in
providing products and services that people expect in a high social networking experience, including services responsive to their needs and preferences and
services that continue to attract, retain and expand our customer base.
We may need to change the manner in which we conduct our business, or incur greater operating expenses, if government regulation of the Internet or other
areas of our business changes or if consumer attitudes toward use of the Internet, mobile devices, and lifelogging change.
The adoption or modification of laws or regulations relating to the Internet or other areas of our business could limit or otherwise adversely affect the
manner in which we currently conduct our business. In addition, the growth and development of the market for lifelogging may lead to more stringent consumer
protection laws, which may impose additional burdens on us. If we are required to comply with new regulations or legislation or new interpretations of existing
regulations or legislation, this compliance could cause us to incur additional expenses or alter our business model.
The manner in which Internet and other legislation may be interpreted and enforced cannot be precisely determined and may subject either us or our
customers to potential liability, which in turn could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. The adoption of any laws
or regulations that adversely affect the popularity or growth in use of the Internet could decrease the demand for our LifeLogger Platform and increase our cost of
doing business.
In addition, if consumer attitudes toward use of the Internet, mobile devices and lifelogging change and If we are unable to interact with consumers
because of changes in their attitude toward use of these technologies, our potential future service revenues, customer acquisition and retention and operating results
may be affected adversely.
As an “emerging growth company” under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the “JOBS Act”), we are permitted to rely on exemptions from certain
disclosure requirements.
We qualify as an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS Act. As a result, we are permitted to, and intend to, rely on exemptions from certain
disclosure requirements. For so long as we are an emerging growth company, we will not be required to:
●

have an auditor report on our internal controls over financial reporting pursuant to Section 404(b) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

●

comply with any requirement that may be adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board regarding mandatory audit firm rotation or a
supplement to the auditor’s report providing additional information about the audit and the financial statements (i.e., an auditor discussion and
analysis);

●

submit certain executive compensation matters to shareholder advisory votes, such as “say-on-pay” and “say-on-frequency;” and

●

disclose certain executive compensation related items such as the correlation between executive compensation and performance and comparisons of
the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation to median employee compensation.
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In addition, Section 102 of the JOBS Act also provides that an emerging growth company can take advantage of the extended transition period provided
in Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act for complying with new or revised accounting standards. In other words, an emerging growth company can delay the
adoption of certain accounting standards until those standards would otherwise apply to private companies. We have elected to take advantage of the benefits of
this extended transition period. Our financial statements may therefore not be comparable to those of companies that comply with such new or revised accounting
standards.
We will remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, or until the earliest of (i) the last day of the first fiscal year in which our total annual
gross revenues exceed $1 billion, (ii) the date that we become a “large accelerated filer” as defined in Rule 12b-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (the “Exchange Act”), which would occur if the market value of our ordinary shares that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million as of the last
business day of our most recently completed second fiscal quarter or (iii) the date on which we have issued more than $1 billion in non-convertible debt during the
preceding three year period.
Until such time, however, we cannot predict if investors will find our common stock less attractive because we may rely on these exemptions. If some
investors find our common stock less attractive as a result, there may be a less active trading market for our common stock and our stock price may be more
volatile.
We are highly dependent on the services provided by Stewart Garner, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and sole director.
We are highly dependent upon the services of Stewart Garner, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and sole director. We have not
obtained “key-man” life insurance policies insuring the life of Mr. Garner. If the services of Mr. Garner become unavailable to us, for any reason, our business
could be adversely affected.
If we are unable to attract and retain key personnel, our business could be harmed.
If Mr. Garner were to leave, we could face substantial difficulty in hiring qualified successors and could experience a loss in productivity while any
successor obtains the necessary training and experience. Our employment relationships are generally at-will. We cannot assure that one or more key employees
will not leave in the future. We intend to continue to hire additional highly qualified personnel, including engineers and operational personnel, but may not be able
to attract, assimilate or retain qualified personnel in the future. Any failure to attract, integrate, motivate and retain these employees could harm our business.
We may have difficulty managing growth in our business.
Because of our small size, growth in accordance with our business plans, if achieved, will place a significant strain on our financial, technical, operational
and management resources. As we expand our lifelogging business activities and increase the size of our operations, we plan to utilize computer systems and
technology to minimize our labor costs. Despite these efforts, there will be additional demands on our financial, technical and management resources. The failure
to implement administrative, operating and financial control systems and software or the occurrence of unexpected expansion difficulties, including the recruitment
and retention of experienced personnel, talent and consultants, could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations
and our ability to timely execute our business plan.
Management can exercise voting control over corporate decisions.
Stewart Garner, our Chief Executive Officer and sole member of our Board of Directors owns 1,000 shares of our Series A Preferred Stock. Each share of
Series A Preferred Stock entitles the holder to 50,000 votes on all matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s stockholders. In the event that such votes do not
total at least 51% of all votes, then the votes cast by the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be equal to 51% of all votes cast at any meeting of the
Company’s stockholders or any issue put to the stockholders for voting. As a result of the ownership of the Series A Preferred Stock, Mr. Garner exercises control
in determining the outcome of all corporate transactions or other matters, including the election of directors, mergers, consolidations, the sale of all or substantially
all of our assets, and also the power to prevent or cause a change in control. The interests of Mr. Garner may differ from the interests of the other stockholders and
thus result in corporate decisions that are adverse to other stockholders.
RISK FACTORS RELATING TO OUR SECURITIES
There currently is only a minimal public market for our common stock. Failure to develop or maintain a trading market could negatively affect the value of
our common stock and make it difficult or impossible for you to sell your shares.
There currently is only a minimal public market for shares of our common stock and an active market may never develop. Our common stock is quoted on the
OTCQB tier of the OTC Markets Group, Inc. under the symbol “LOGG”. We may not ever be able to satisfy the listing requirements for our common stock to be
listed on any stock exchange, including the trading platforms of NASDAQ Stock Market which are often more widely-traded and liquid markets. Some, but not all,
of the factors which may delay or prevent the listing of our common stock on a more widely-traded and liquid market include the following: our stockholders’
equity may be insufficient; the market value of our outstanding securities may be too low; our net income from operations may be too low; our common stock may
not be sufficiently widely held; we may not be able to secure market makers for our common stock; and we may fail to meet the rules and requirements mandated
by, any of the several exchanges and markets to have our common stock listed.
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We cannot assure you that our common stock will become liquid or that it will be listed on a securities exchange.
Until our common stock is listed on a national securities exchange such as the New York Stock Exchange or the Nasdaq Stock Market, we expect our common
stock to remain eligible for quotation on the OTCQB, or on another over-the-counter quotation system. In those venues, however, an investor may find it difficult
to obtain accurate quotations as to the market value of our common stock. In addition, if we fail to meet the criteria set forth in SEC regulations, various
requirements would be imposed by law on broker-dealers who sell our securities to persons other than established customers and accredited investors.
Consequently, such regulations may deter broker-dealers from recommending or selling our common stock, which may further affect the liquidity of our common
stock. This would also make it more difficult for us to raise capital.
The application of the “penny stock” rules could adversely affect the market price of our common stock and increase your transaction costs to sell those
shares.
The SEC has adopted rule 3a51-1 which establishes the definition of a “penny stock,” for the purposes relevant to us, as any equity security that has a
market price of less than $5.00 per share or with an exercise price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain exceptions. For any transaction involving a penny
stock, unless exempt, Rule 15g-9 requires:
●

that a broker or dealer approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks, and

●

the broker or dealer receives from the investor a written agreement to the transaction, setting forth the identity and quantity of the penny stock to be
purchased.

In order to approve a person’s account for transactions in penny stocks, the broker or dealer must:
●

obtain financial information and investment experience objectives of the person, and

●

make a reasonable determination that the transactions in penny stocks are suitable for that person and the person has sufficient knowledge and
experience in financial matters to be capable of evaluating the risks of transactions in penny stocks.

The broker or dealer must also deliver, prior to any transaction in a penny stock, a disclosure schedule prescribed by the SEC relating to the penny stock
market, which, in highlight form:
●

sets forth the basis on which the broker or dealer made the suitability determination and

●

that the broker or dealer received a signed, written agreement from the investor prior to the transaction.

Generally, brokers may be less willing to execute transactions in securities subject to the “penny stock” rules. This may make it more difficult for
investors to dispose of our common stock and cause a decline in the market value of our stock.
The application of Rule 144 creates some investment risk to potential investors; for example, existing shareholders may be able to rely on Rule 144 to sell some
of their holdings, driving down the price of the shares you purchased.
Rule 144 enables a person who has beneficially owned restricted shares of our common stock for at least six months to sell their securities provided that:
(i) such person is not deemed to have been one of our affiliates at the time of, or at any time during the three months preceding a sale, (ii) we are subject to the
Exchange Act periodic reporting requirements for at least 90 days before the sale and (iii) if the sale occurs prior to satisfaction of a one-year holding period, we
provide current information at the time of sale.
Persons who have beneficially owned restricted shares of our common stock for at least six months but who are our affiliates at the time of, or at any time
during the three months preceding a sale, would be subject to additional restrictions, by which such person would be entitled to sell within any three-month period
only a number of securities that does not exceed the greater of either of the following:
●

1% of the total number of securities of the same class then outstanding (848,671 shares of common stock as of April 7, 2016); or

●

the average weekly trading volume of such securities during the four calendar weeks preceding the filing of a notice on Form 144 with respect to the
sale;
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provided, in each case, that we are subject to the Exchange Act periodic reporting requirements for at least three months before the sale. Such sales by
affiliates must also comply with the manner of sale, current public information and notice provisions of Rule 144.
We do not pay dividends on our common stock.
We have not paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate paying dividends in the foreseeable future. We plan to retain earnings, if any, to
finance the development and expansion of our business.
GENERAL RISK STATEMENT
Based on all of the foregoing, we believe it is possible for future revenue, expenses and operating results to vary significantly from quarter to quarter and
year to year. As a result, quarter-to-quarter and year-to-year comparisons of operating results are not necessarily meaningful or indicative of future performance.
Furthermore, we believe that it is possible that in any given quarter or fiscal year our operating results could differ from the expectations of public market analysts
or investors.
ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Our executive offices are located in a shared executive office suite at 11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 on a
month to month basis. In addition, we maintain office space provided by Mr. Garner, our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and sole director, in
Ontario, Canada under the terms of his consulting agreement with our company.
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We are not presently a party to any material litigation, nor to the knowledge of management is any litigation threatened against us that may materially
affect us.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES
Our common stock is quoted on the OTCQB and has traded under the symbol “LOGG” since February 2014. Trading of our common stock is limited and
sporadic. There can be no assurance that a liquid market for our common stock will ever develop.
The following table reflects the high and low closing sales information for our common stock for each fiscal quarter during the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015. This information was obtained from the OTCQB and reflects inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up, markdown or commission
and may not necessarily represent actual transactions.
Quarter Ended

High

Low

Fiscal Year 2016
December 31, 2016
September 30, 2016
June 30, 2016
March 31, 2016

$
$
$
$

2.22
2.97
5.97
8.97

$
$
$
$

0.3090
1.95
1.71
1.95

$
$
$
$

23.70
17.70
16.86
6.615

$
$
$
$

9.90
4.29
6.00
2.35

Fiscal Year 2015
December 31, 2015
September 30, 2015
June 30, 2015
March 31, 2015

As of April 17, 2017, there were approximately 7 record holders, an unknown number of additional holders whose stock is held in “street name” and
2,744,830 shares of common stock issued and outstanding.
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We have never declared or paid cash dividends on our capital stock. We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings for use in the
operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.
ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
Not applicable to a smaller reporting company.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
We define our accounting periods as follows:
●

“fiscal 2015” – January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015

●

“fiscal 2016” – January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2016

The Company
We are a lifelogging software company that developed and hosts a proprietary cloud-based software solution accessible on iOS and Android devices that
offers an enhanced media experience for consumers by augmenting videos, livestreams and photos with additional context information and providing a platform
that makes it easy to find and use that data when viewing or sharing media. The first iteration of that context information is focused on geo-location, face-detection,
and different options for tagging and social interaction.
Following the launch of our private beta version of the LifeLogger Platform in August 2015 to users who expressed interest for exclusive testing with
their iOS and Android devices, we launched an open public version during the first quarter of 2016. This release has the primary value proposition built in with
geo-coordinates, face detection, playback with interactive map, social engagement features that enable easy sharing and ability to “like” other postings. Among the
uses of our platform are the ability to share a video of a customer’s vacation in Europe with others that is integrated with an interactive map showing the viewer
where the video is taking place, allowing the viewer to seamlessly switch to the map view and even show additional views of those locations and other media taken
by other people nearby. The end result is designed to provide an enhanced media experience much richer than just sharing the video alone.
We maintain the operation of this platform and are seeking potential distributors, joint venture and strategic alliance partners and additional sources of
financing to enable us to pursue continued marketing and future development and commercialization activities to increase engagement and make improvements to
the user interface and experience.
We completed a prototype of our integrated Lifelogger wearable video camera for testing in 2014 and continue to market this product to potential
distributors and joint venture and strategic alliance partners. We will evaluate opportunities from these marketing efforts to determine the extent of our future
development and marketing of this device.
Recent Developments
On June 30, 2016, we c ompleted the acquisition of certain assets of Pixorial, Inc. (“Pixorial”) pursuant to the terms of the Amended and Restated Asset
Purchase Agreement entered into among us, Pixorial and Andres Espiniera dated June 20, 2016 (the “Amended Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the
Amended Agreement, we acquired the trademark “What’s Your Story” and Pixorial’s customer list (the “Pixorial Asset Acquisition”). Under the terms of the
Amended Agreement, we agreed to issue 86,673 shares of our unregistered common stock to the existing shareholders and certain creditors of Pixorial. In addition,
we amended the exercise price of Mr. Espineira’s November 10, 2015 stock option award to acquire 200,000 shares of our common stock to $3.00 per share. The
shares of our common stock to be issued to Pixorial’s shareholders and creditors are subject to a lock-up agreement whereby one-third the number received by each
may be sold beginning as of each of the first three anniversaries of the closing of the Pixorial Asset Acquisition.
We amended our amended and restated articles of incorporation to increase our authorized capital stock from 125,000,000 shares to 500,000,000 shares,
of which 495,000,000 shares will be common stock and 5,000,000 will be preferred stock and also effected a 1 for 30 reverse split of our common stock
outstanding. This corporate action was approved by FINRA on March 24, 2017 and became effective as of March 27, 2017.
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following comparative analysis on results of operations was based primarily on the comparative audited financial statements, footnotes and related
information for the periods identified below and should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the notes to those statements that are included
elsewhere in this report.
- 12 -

Revenue
The company currently has no revenues in fiscal 2016 nor 2015. The Company currently cannot predict when the Company will become revenue
producing.
Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses for fiscal 2016 increased by $288,133 compared to fiscal 2015 mainly as a result of an increase in option expenses to a
consultant, partially offset by decreases in research and development and in other consulting.
Other Income (Expenses)
Other expenses for fiscal 2016 increased by $1,890,579 compared to fiscal 2015 as a result of impairment of intangible assets related to our acquisition of
certain assets from Pixorial, change in fair value of derivative warrants and notes, loss on extinguishment of debt, commitment fee expense and interest expense.
We expect further increases in our interest expense due to increased borrowing.
The net loss for fiscal 2016 was $3,265,250, an increase of $2,178,712 compared to fiscal 2015, as a result of an increases in operating expenses and other
expenses discussed above.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
Liquidity is the ability of an enterprise to generate adequate amounts of cash to meet its needs for cash requirements. As of December 31, 2016 our
working capital deficit amounted to $1,233,699 an increase of $826,937 as compared to $406,762 as of December 31, 2015. This increase is primarily a result of a
decrease in cash and accounts receivable and increases in accounts payable and notes payable and derivative liabilities.
Net cash used in operating activities was $865,543 during fiscal 2016 compared to $836,716 in fiscal 2015. The increase in cash used in operating
activities is primarily attributable to our net loss and derivative liabilities, partially offset by an increase in options issued for consulting services, interest expense,
original issue discount on new financing, commitment fee expense for new debt financing, changes in derivative liabilities, extinguishment of debt and impairment
of intangible assets.
Net cash used in investing activities during fiscal 2016 was $0 compared to $332 in fiscal 2015. The decrease was a result of no purchases of capital
assets during fiscal 2016 as compared to fiscal 2015.
Net cash provided by financing activities during fiscal 2016 was $834,885 compared to $730,000 in fiscal 2015. The increase was primarily a result of the
proceeds from note payable.
Capital Resources
We currently have limited cash resources on hand and our projected operating expenses and working capital needs exceed our income and cash resources. We have
curtailed our future development and marketing plans until we are able to enter into an agreement with a potential distributor, joint venture or strategic alliance
partner or source of additional financing to provide us with sufficient cash to continue these activities. As a result, capital raising has been and continues to be
essential for our continued operations, sales and marketing efforts and further development of our LifeLogger platform. We potentially will have to issue additional
debt or equity, or enter into a strategic arrangement with a third party to carry out some aspects of our business plan. There can be no assurance that additional
capital will be available to us. Other than the agreements discussed below, we currently have no agreements, arrangements or understandings with any person to
obtain funds through bank loans, lines of credit or any other sources. Since we have no other such arrangements or plans currently in effect, our inability to raise
funds for the above purposes will have a severe negative impact on our ability to remain a viable company.
Current and Future Financings
Current Indebtedness
Following is an analysis of convertible debt issued to Old Main Capital and SBI Investments at December 31, 2016:

Contractual balance
Less unamortized discount

$

Convertible debt

$

The above amount does not include accrued interest to December 31, 2016 of $16,080.
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December 31, 2016
1,143,089
(134,628)
1,008,461

Going Concern Consideration
We have been in the development stage since our inception on June 4, 2012 and continue to incur significant losses. We had an accumulated deficit of
$4,594,037 as of December 31, 2016 and $865,543 in cash was used in operating activities. This raises substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern. Our ability to continue as a going concern is dependent our ability to raise additional capital and generate additional revenues and profits from our
business plan.
In the opinion of our independent registered public accounting firm for our fiscal year end December 31, 2016, our auditor included a statement that as a
result of our deficit accumulated during the development stage at December 31, 2016, our net loss and net cash used in operating activities for the reporting period
then ended, there is a substantial doubt as our ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty.
Inflation
In the opinion of management, inflation has not and will not have a material effect on our operations in the immediate future. Management will continue
to monitor inflation and evaluate the possible future effects of inflation on our business and operations.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
Under SEC regulations, we are required to disclose our off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a current or future effect
on our financial condition, such as changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or capital resources
that are material to investors. As of December 31, 2016, we have no off-balance sheet arrangements.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Our significant accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2 of our Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 7A. QUALITATIVE AND QUANTITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Not applicable.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
See Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules appearing on pages F-1 through F -26 of this annual report on Form 10-K.
ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None.
ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
We maintain disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act that are designed to ensure that information
required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as specified in the SEC’s rules and
forms and that such information required to be disclosed by us in reports that we file under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. Management, with the
participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as
of December 31, 2016. Based on that evaluation, our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2016 for the reasons discussed below.
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Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for the preparation of our financial statements and related information. Management uses its best judgment to ensure that the
financial statements present fairly, in material respects, our financial position and results of operations in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles.
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in the Exchange Act. These
internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance that the reported financial information is presented fairly, that disclosures are adequate and that the
judgments inherent in the preparation of financial statements are reasonable. There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of internal controls
including the possibility of human error and overriding of controls. Consequently, an ineffective internal control system can only provide reasonable, not absolute,
assurance with respect to reporting financial information.
Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to maintaining records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect our transactions; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary for preparation of our financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that the receipts and expenditures of company assets are made in accordance with our management
and directors authorization; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding the prevention of or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of
assets that could have a material effect on our financial statements.
Under the supervision of management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (2013 framework) and subsequent guidance prepared by the Commission specifically for smaller public
companies. Based on that evaluation, our management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 31, 2016
because it identified the following material weakness and significant deficiencies:
●

Material Weakness – The Company did not maintain effective controls over certain aspects of the financial reporting process because we (i) lacked a
sufficient complement of personnel with a level of accounting expertise and an adequate supervisory review structure that is commensurate with our
financial reporting requirements and (ii) we lacked controls over the accounting for derivative liability treatment related to a note payable not
previously reported at September 30, 2015 that caused us to restate our financial statements for the period ended September 30, 2015.

●

Significant Deficiencies – Inadequate segregation of duties.

A material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the annual or interim consolidated financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency
is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those responsible for oversight of the Company’s financial reporting.
We expect to be materially dependent upon third parties to provide us with accounting consulting services related to derivative liability treatment and for
other accounting services for the foreseeable future. We believe this will be sufficient to remediate the material weaknesses related to our accounting for derivative
liability treatment discussed above. Until such time as we have a chief financial officer with the requisite expertise in U.S. GAAP, there are no assurances that the
material weaknesses and significant deficiencies in our disclosure controls and procedures will not result in errors in our financial statements which could lead to a
restatement of those financial statements.
Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our
internal controls will prevent all error and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute,
assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the
benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Due to the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute
assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, within our company have been detected.
This annual report does not include an attestation report of our registered public accounting firm regarding internal control over financial reporting.
Management’s report was not subject to attestation by the company’s registered public accounting firm pursuant to SEC rules that permit us to provide only
management’s report on internal control over financial reporting in this annual report on Form 10-K.
Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2016 that have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
On April 7, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with two investors (the “Investors”) whereby it agreed to and issued to each
of the investors (each an “Investor” and collectively, the “Investors”) a 10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of up to $75,000 (each, the
“April 2017 Note” and collectively, the “April 2017 Notes”) payable in tranches as follows: $19,166.66 consisting of $17,250 (less $1,250 for The Investor’s legal
fees) paid to the Company in cash, and less original issue discount of $1,917. This amount will be paid within a reasonable amount of time after the full execution
of the Note and transactional documents related to the April 2017 Notes. Each Investor may pay such additional amounts of the consideration and at such dates as
mutually agreed upon by the Company and The Investor. The maturity date for each tranche funded shall be twelve (12) months from the effective date of each
payment (each a “Maturity Date”) or such earlier date as the April 2017 Notes is required or permitted to be repaid as provided hereunder, and is the date upon
which the principal sum of each respective tranche, as well as any accrued and unpaid interest and other fees relating to that respective tranche, shall be due and
payable. Each Investor has the right to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal and interest into shares of the Company’s common stock. The
terms of the Convertible Note are as follows:
1.

Each Investor has the right from and after a 180 day delay from the Date of Issuance, and until any time until the April 2017 Note is fully paid, to convert
any outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the Note, and accrued interest, into fully paid and non–assessable shares of Common (par value $.001 per
share). Bi–weekly amortization payments are due after 6 months.

2.

The Convertible Notes are convertible at a fixed rate of $0.07 with no reset provisions.

3.

Beneficial ownership is limited to 9.99%.

4.

The Company may redeem the April 2017 Notes for 150% of the redemption amount and accrued interest at any time upon ten days written notice to each
of the Investors.

5.

In the event of default each of the April 2017 Notes bear interest at 24% per annum.

Participation in Future Financing. Subject to any existing obligations of the Company, from the date hereof until the date that is the 12-month anniversary
of the date each of the April 2017 Notes, upon any issuance by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of its Common Stock or other securities convertible into
Common Stock, other than any issuance that is through a public underwritten offering or to an investor or a group of investors that already own Common Stock or
securities of the Company, Each of the Investors shall have the right to participate in the subsequent Financing in an amount up to 100% of such Each of the
Investors’ pro rata portion as defined below in the April 2017 Notes on the same terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing, subject to
any existing obligations of the Company with respect to participation rights.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Set forth below are the names and ages of our directors and executive officers and their principal occupations at present and for at least the past five years.
Name
Stewart Garner

Age
50

Positions and Offices to be Held
Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Director

Our director is appointed for a one-year term to hold office until the next annual general meeting of our shareholders or until removed from office in
accordance with our bylaws. Our officers are appointed by our board of directors and hold office until removed by the board. All officers and directors listed above
will remain in office until the next annual meeting of our stockholders, and until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. There are no agreements
with respect to the election of Directors. Our Board of Directors appoints officers annually and each Executive Officer serves at the discretion of our Board of
Directors.
Stewart Garner . Mr. Garner has served as our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Executive Officer and sole director since December 2013. Mr. Garner has
over 20 years in finance and business development in both the private and public sectors. Since 2007, Mr. Garner has been the founder and sole officer and director
of 2128112 Ontario, Inc., an entity which invests in and develops real estate projects and invests in and consults with public and private entities. Recently, Mr.
Garner, has been focused on real estate with the acquisition and development of properties on a consulting basis.
As the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of our company, Mr. Garner brings our board his considerable experience in the strategic
planning and growth of companies and qualifies him to continue to serve as a director or our company.
Key Employees
We employ certain individuals who, while not executive officers, make significant contributions to our business and operations and hold various positions
within our company.
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Andrés Espineira, B.S., M.M., has served as our Chief Marketing Officer since November 2015. Mr. Espineira is an entrepreneur with a strong
background in product strategy, marketing and software development. Mr. Espineira began his career in 1988 at Oracle Corporation where he honed his technical
skills. Mr. Espineira has always thrived in the early stages of the technology adoption curve. In 1995, he played a leading role in shaping Netscape’s electronic
commerce product strategy with the first shopping applications in the market. Later in 1999 at OpenGrid (a Motorola backed startup) he helped define products for
the then-nascent wireless ecommerce and location-based industry. After a short-lived early retirement and a sail across the Atlantic Ocean with his father, Mr.
Espineira founded Pixorial in 2007 with a simple, yet ambitious mission: to unleash video’s social power and make video memories from any source easy to
discover, share and transform. Mr. Espineira has a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Stanford University (1988) and a Master of Management from the Kellogg
School of Business at Northwestern University (1995).
Committees of our Board of Directors
Our securities are not quoted on an exchange that has requirements that a majority of our Board members be independent and we are not currently
otherwise subject to any law, rule or regulation requiring that all or any portion of our Board of Directors include “independent” directors, nor are we required to
establish or maintain an Audit Committee or other committee of our Board of Directors.
The Board does not have standing audit, compensation or nominating committees. The Board does not believe these committees are necessary based on
the size of our company, the current levels of compensation to corporate officers and the beneficial ownership by one shareholder of more than 58.9 % of our
outstanding common stock. The Board will consider establishing audit, compensation and nominating committees at the appropriate time.
The entire Board of Directors participates in the consideration of compensation issues and of director nominees. Candidates for director nominees are
reviewed in the context of the current composition of the Board and the Company’s operating requirements and the long-term interests of its stockholders. In
conducting this assessment, the Board of Directors considers skills, diversity, age, and such other factors as it deems appropriate given the current needs of the
Board and the Company, to maintain a balance of knowledge, experience and capability.
The Board’s process for identifying and evaluating nominees for director, including nominees recommended by stockholders, will involve compiling
names of potentially eligible candidates, conducting background and reference checks, conducting interviews with the candidate and others (as schedules permit),
meeting to consider and approve the final candidates and, as appropriate, preparing an analysis with regard to particular recommended candidates.
Through their own business activities and experiences each of directors have come to understand that in today’s business environment, development of
useful products and identification of undervalued real estate, along with other related efforts, are the keys to building our company. The directors will seek out
individuals with relevant experience to operate and build our current and proposed business activities.
Director Compensation
Our directors do not receive any compensation as directors and there is no other compensation being considered at this time.
Board Oversight in Risk Management
Our Chief Executive Officer, who is our principal executive officer, also serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors, and we do not have a lead
director. In the context of risk oversight, we believe that our selection of one person to serve in both positions provides the Board with additional perspective which
combines the operational experience of a member of management with the oversight focus of a member of the Board. The business and operations of our Company
are managed by our Board as a whole, including oversight of various risks, such as operational and liquidity risks, that our Company faces. Because our Board
includes a member of our management, this individual is responsible for both the day-to-day management of the risks we face as well as the responsibility for the
oversight of risk management.
Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act
Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires our executive officers and directors, and persons who beneficially own more than 10% of our common stock,
to file initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership with the SEC. Executive officers, directors and greater than 10% beneficial shareholders are
required by SEC regulations to furnish us with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.
Based solely upon our review of copies of such forms received by us, we believe that, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016, the following
persons did not timely file Forms 3, Forms 4 and Forms 5 reporting beneficial ownership of our securities and/or changes therein: Mr. Garner filed a Form 3 and
Form 4 late and Old Main Capital, LLC did not file a Form 3 or a Form 4.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The following table sets forth certain compensation information for: (i) our principal executive officer or other individual serving in a similar capacity
during fiscal 2015 and 2016; (ii) our two most highly compensated executive officers other than our principal executive officers who were serving as executive
officers at December 31, 2016 and 2015 whose compensation exceed $100,000; and (iii) up to two additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been
required but for the fact that the individual was not serving as an executive officer at December 31, 2016. Compensation information is shown for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015:
2016 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Name and principal position
Stewart Garner,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer

Year

Salary

Stock
Awards

Bonus

2016

$ 84,000

$

0

2015

$ 84,000

$ 16,000

$

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation

Nonqualified
Deferred
Compensation
Earnings

0

0

0

$

17,723

$ 101,723

0

0

0

$

16,477

$ 116,477

Option
Awards
0
0

$

All Other
Compensation
Total

(1)

(1) Other compensation consists of an allowance for car, insurance and cell phone expenses.
Employment Agreements with Executive Officers
Stewart Garner . Effective as of January 1, 2014, we orally agreed to retain Stewart Garner on a consulting basis whereby he agreed to serve as our Chief
Executive Officer and a Director. The consulting agreement provides for a base payment of $84,000 per year, a discretionary bonus, a monthly automobile
allowance of $1,000 and automobile insurance, medical insurance, cellular phone allowance and reimbursement of business expenses, which includes the use of
Mr. Garner’s home office. The consulting agreement is subject to termination by the Company for cause and also in the event of Mr. Garner’s death or disability.
In the event of a termination of the agreement for cause or due to death or disability, Mr. Garner would be entitled to his base salary and benefits for the balance of
the then existing term.
Outstanding Equity Awards at 2016 Fiscal Year-End
The following tables set forth, for each person listed in the Summary Compensation Table set forth above, as of December 31, 2016:
With respect to each option award ●

the number of shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options that have been earned, separately identified by those
exercisable and unexercisable;

●

the number of shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options that have not been earned;

●

the exercise price of such option; and

●

the expiration date of such option; and

●

with respect to each stock award -

●

the number of shares of our common stock that have been earned but have not vested;

●

the market value of the shares of our common stock that have been earned but have not vested;

●

the total number of shares of our common stock awarded under any equity incentive plan that have not vested and have not been earned; and

●

the aggregate market or pay-out value of our common stock awarded under any equity incentive plan that have not vested and have not been earned.
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OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT 2016 FISCAL YEAR-END
OPTION AWARDS

Name
Stewart
Garner

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Exercisable

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Unearned
Options
(#)

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)
Unexercisable
-

STOCK AWARDS

-

Option
Exercise
Price
($)
-

Option
Expiration
Date
-

-

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Number of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights
That Have
Not
Vested
(#)

Market
Value of
Shares or
Units of
Stock
That
Have Not
Vested
($)

Number
of Shares
or Units
of Stock
That
Have Not
Vested
(#)
-

Equity
Incentive
Plan
Awards:
Market or
Payout
Value of
Unearned
Shares,
Units or
Other
Rights
That Have
Not
Vested
(#)

-

-

-

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
The following tables set forth certain information, as of April 17, 2017 with respect to the beneficial ownership of our outstanding common stock and
preferred stock by (i) any holder of more than 5%, (ii) each of our named executive officers and directors, and (iii) our directors and executive officers as a group.
Unless otherwise indicated, the business address of each person listed is in care of Lifelogger Technologies Corp., 11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite
221E, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410. The information provided herein is based upon a list of our shareholders and our records with respect to the ownership
of common stock. The percentages in the table have been calculated on the basis of treating as outstanding for a particular person, all shares of our common stock
outstanding on that date and all shares of our common stock issuable to that holder in the event of exercise of outstanding options, warrants, rights or conversion
privileges owned by that person at that date which are exercisable within 60 days of that date. Except as otherwise indicated, the persons listed below have sole
voting and investment power with respect to all shares of our common stock owned by them, except to the extent that power may be shared with a spouse.
Capital Stock

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner
Named Executive Officers and Directors:
Stewart Garner (1)
All executive officers and directors as a group (one person)
Other 5% Stockholders:
Old Main Capital, LLC (2)

Common
Stock
Beneficial
Ownership

Series A
Preferred
Beneficial
Ownership

Percent of
Class (2)
-

291,585

-

9.9%

Percent of
Class (3)

1,000
1,000

-

100.0%
100.0%

-

* Less than 1%.
(1) Each share of Series A Preferred Stock entitles the holder to 50,000 votes on all matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s stockholders. In the
event that such votes do not total at least 51% of all votes, then the votes cast by the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be equal to 51% of
all votes cast at any meeting of the Company’s stockholders or any issue put to the stockholders for voting. The holders of the Series A Preferred
Stock do not have any conversion rights.
(2) Includes up to 291,585 shares which may be acquired pursuant to promissory notes convertible at variable prices into our common stock in the
aggregate principal amount of $489,406 as of April 15, 2017.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
Related Party Transactions
Related parties with whom the Company had transactions are:
Related Parties

Relationship

Stewart Garner

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and director

Advances from CEO
From time to time, Stewart Garner, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and sole director, provides advances to the Company for its
working capital purposes. Those advances bore no interest and were due on demand. The Company owed Mr. Garner $2,310 at December 31, 2015 and $0 at
December 31, 2016.
ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The following table shows the fees that were billed for the audit and other services provided by SRCO Professional Corporation for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2016 and Anton and Chia, LLP and Li and Company, PC for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
2016
Audit Fees
Audit-Related Fees
Tax Fees
All Other Fees
Total

2015

$

21,670
0
1,300

$

$

22,970

$

20,545
5,500
895
26,940

Audit Fees — This category includes the audit of our annual financial statements, review of financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided by the independent registered public accounting firm in connection with engagements for those fiscal years.
This category also includes advice on audit and accounting matters that arose during, or as a result of, the audit or the review of interim financial statements.
Audit-Related Fees — This category consists of assurance and related services by the independent registered public accounting firm that are reasonably
related to the performance of the audit or review of our financial statements and are not reported above under “Audit Fees.” The services for the fees disclosed
under this category include consultation regarding our correspondence with the Securities and Exchange Commission and other accounting consulting.
Tax Fees — This category consists of professional services rendered by our independent registered public accounting firm for tax compliance and tax
advice. The services for the fees disclosed under this category include tax returns preparation and technical tax advice.
All Other Fees — This category consists of fees for other miscellaneous items.
Our Board of Directors has adopted a procedure for pre-approval of all fees charged by our independent registered public accounting firm. Under the
procedure, the Board approves the engagement letter with respect to audit, tax and review services. Other fees are subject to pre-approval by the Board, or, in the
period between meetings, by a designated member of Board. Any such approval by the designated member is disclosed to the entire Board at the next meeting.
PART IV
ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) 1.

Financial Statements
The financial statements and Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm are listed in the “Index to Financial Statements and Schedules” on
page F-1 and included on pages F-2 through F-26.

2.

Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) are
either not required under the related instructions, are not applicable (and therefore have been omitted), or the required disclosures are contained in the
financial statements included herein.

3.

Exhibits (including those incorporated by reference).
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Exhibit No.

Description

3.1(a)

Articles of Incorporation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on June 13, 2012 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on February 4, 2013).

3.1(b)

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on January 6, 2014 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 4, 2014).

3.1(c)

Certificate of Designation of Series A Preferred Stock filed with the Nevada Secretary of State on December 28, 2016 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 22, 2017).

3.2

Bylaws (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed on February 4, 2013).

4.1

Subscription Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on
February 4, 2013).

4.2

Promissory Note dated as of July 20, 2015, between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Glamis Capital SA (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2015).

4.3

Promissory Note dated as of September 8, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 18, 2015).

4.4

Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated as of September 8, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main Capital, LLC (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 18, 2015).

4.5

10% Convertible Promissory Note in the original principal amount of $296,153 dated March 9, 2016 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and
Old Main Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed
with the SEC on March 16, 2016).

4.6

Amendment No. 1 dated March 9, 2016 to Convertible Promissory Note dated September 8, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old
Main Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed with
the SEC on March 16, 2016).

4.7

8% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $250,000 dated March 9, 2016 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main
Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed with the
SEC on March 16, 2016).

4.8

10% Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of $87,912 dated June 9, 2016 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main
Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 15, 2016).

4.9

Amendment dated June 9, 2016 to $296,153 Principal Amount Convertible Promissory Note dated March 9, 2016 issued by Lifelogger
Technologies Corp. to Old Main Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
with the SEC on August 15, 2016).

4.10

Amendment dated June 9, 2016 to $250,000 Principal Amount Convertible Promissory Note dated March 9, 2016 issued by Lifelogger
Technologies Corp. to Old Main Capital, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed
with the SEC on August 15, 2016).

4.11

Promissory Note dated June 30, 2016, by and between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1 (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2016).

4.12

Series A Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated June 30, 2016, by and between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2016).

4.13

Series B Common Stock Purchase Warrant dated June 30, 2016, by and between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2016).

4.14*

10% Convertible Promissory Note dated April 7, 2017 issued by Lifelogger Technologies Corp. to Old Main Capital, LLC.

4.15*

10% Convertible Promissory Note dated April 7, 2017 issued by Lifelogger Technologies Corp. to SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1.

10.1

Product Development Agreement dated as of January 7, 2014 between Matrico Holdings, Ltd. and Lifelogger Technologies Corp. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 12, 2014).

10.2

Addendum to Product Development Agreement effective as of June 1, 2014 between Matrico Holdings, Ltd. and Lifelogger Technologies Corp.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on August 12, 2014).

10.3

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of September 24, 2014 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Glamis Capital S.A. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on September 26, 2014).

10.4

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of December 8, 2014 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Glamis Capital S.A. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 9, 2014).

10.5

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of May 7, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and SSID Limited (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the SEC on May 14, 2015)

Exhibit No.

Description

10.6

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of July 20, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Glamis Capital SA (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2015).

10.7

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of September 8, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main Capital, LLC (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 27, 2015).

10.8

Asset Purchase Agreement dated November 10, 2015 entered into among Lifelogger Technologies, Inc., Pixorial, Inc. and Andres Espineira
(Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 16, 2015).

10.9+

Consulting Agreement dated as of November 10, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Andres Espineira (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 16, 2015).

10.10+

Stock Option Agreement dated as of November 10, 2015 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Andres Espineira (Incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on November 16, 2015).

10.11

Amendment dated November 12, 2015 to Promissory Note and Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of July 20, 2015, between Lifelogger
Technologies Corp. and Glamis Capital SA (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the
SEC on November 16, 2015).

10.12

Securities Purchase Agreement dated March 9, 2016 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main Capital, LLC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Amendment No. 1 to Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed with the SEC on March 16, 2016).

10.13

First Amendment to Asset Purchase Agreement entered into on March 30, 2016 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Pixorial, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on April 5, 2016).

10.14

Debt Settlement Agreement dated March 1, 2016 entered into between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Glamis Capital SA (Incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2016).

10.15

Amendment No. 2 to Asset Purchase Agreement entered into as of May 3, 2016 by Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Pixorial, Inc. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 5, 2016).

10.16

Stock Redemption Agreement between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Consumer Electronics Ventures Corp. dated May 5 May, 2016
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 18, 2016).

10.17

Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of June 20, 2016 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp., Pixorial, Inc. and Andres
Espiniera (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K/A (Amendment No. 1) filed with the SEC on
June 21, 2016).

10.18

Securities Purchase Agreement dated June 30, 2016, by and between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on July 7, 2016).

10.19

Investment Agreement dated as of February 21, 2017 between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Stewart Garner (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on February 22, 2017).

10.20*

Securities Purchase Agreement between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and Old Main Capital, LLC dated as of April 7, 2017.

10.21*

Securities Purchase Agreement between Lifelogger Technologies Corp. and SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1 dated as of April 7, 2017.

31.1*

Section 302 Certificate of Principal Executive Officer.

31.2*

Section 302 Certificate of Principal Financial Officer.

32.1*

Section 906 Certificate of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial Officer.

101.INS*

XBRL Instance Document

101.SCH*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

101.CAL*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document

101.LAB*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE*

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

* Filed herewith.
+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
- 21 -

SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.
LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
Date: April 17, 2017

By: /s/ Stewart Garner
Stewart Garner
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant
and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.
Signature

Title

Date

/s/ Stewart Garner
Stewart Garner

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Director
(principal executive officer and principal financial and accounting officer)

April 17, 2017
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LIFELOGGER TECHNOLGIES CORP.
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SRCO Professional Corporation
Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
Park Place Corporate Centre
15 Wertheim Court, Suite 409
Richmond Hill, ON L4B 3H7
Tel: 905 882 9500 & 416 671 7292
Fax: 905 882 9580
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
LifeLogger Technologies Corp.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of LifeLogger Technologies Corp. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2016, and the related statements of
operations, stockholders’ deficiency, and cash flows for the year then ended. The Company’s management is responsible for these financial statements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2015 were audited by other auditors, whose report dated April 7, 2016, expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements and also included an
explanatory paragraph that raised substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatements. The Company is not required
to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2016,
and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 3 to the financial
statements, the Company has incurred recurring losses from operations and has an accumulated deficit that raise substantial doubt about its ability to continue as a
going concern. Management’s plans regarding these matters are also described in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result
from the outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ SRCO Professional Corporation
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS
Authorized to practise public accounting by the
Chartered Professional Accountants of Ontario

Richmond Hill, Canada
April 17, 2017
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
LifeLogger Technologies Corp.
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of LifeLogger Technologies Corp. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2015, and the related statements of
operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company was not required to
have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audit included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2015,
and the results of its operations, changes in stockholders’ equity (deficit) and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.
The financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As shown in Note 3 to the financial statements, the
Company has incurred an accumulated deficit of $1,328,787 as of December 31, 2015. This raises substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. Management’s plans in regard to this matter are described in Note 3. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty.
/s/ Anton & Chia, LLP
Newport Beach, CA
April 7, 2016
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LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash
Prepaid expenses
Deferred financing costs
Total current assets

$

Non-Current Assets
Furniture and fixtures
Accumulated depreciation
Furniture and fixtures, net

101,041
1,250
3,360
105,651

9,578
(2,737)
6,841

Total Assets

$

131,699
10,319
3,453
145,471

9,578
(1,368)
8,210

112,492

153,681

89,934
-

118,737
2,310
135,000

1,008,461
240,955

189,921
106,265

Total current liabilities

1,339,350

552,233

Total liabilities

1,339,350

552,233

-

-

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Note 4)
Due to related party
Note payable (Note 5)
Convertible notes payable, net of unamortized discount of $134,628 and (2015 - $283,763) (Note
5)
Derivative liability - notes and warrants (Note 6)

Stockholders’ Deficiency:
Preferred stock par value $0.001: 5,000,000 shares authorized; None issued or outstanding
Common stock par value $0.001: 495,000,000 shares authorized; 2,063,151 and 2,747,683 shares
issued and outstanding, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ deficiency
Total Liabilities and Stockholders’ Deficiency

2,063
3,365,116
(4,594,037)

2,748
927,487
(1,328,787)

(1,226,858)

(398,552)

112,492
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
F- 3

153,681

LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the Year
Ended
Ended
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2015
Revenue

$

-

$

-

Cost of revenue

-

-

Gross margin

-

-

280,600
15,351
101,723
276,908
632,356
190,911

458,373
12,710
116,477
334,463
113,882
173,811

1,497,849

1,209,716

(1,497,849)

(1,209,716)

(195,015)
60,639
(251,095)
(682,067)
(250,000)
(449,863)

116,397
95,695
(88,914)

Operating Expenses:
Research and development
Advertising and promotions
Consulting -related parties (Note 9)
Consulting – other
Option expense - consulting - other
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Loss from operations
Other income (expenses)
Impairment of intangible assets (Note 11)
Change in fair value of derivative-warrants and notes (Note 6)
Change in fair value of derivative-notes (Note 6)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (Note 5)
Commitment fee expense
Interest expense
Total other (expenses) income

(1,767,401)

Loss before income tax provision

(3,265,250)

Income tax provision

-

123,178
(1,086,538)
-

Net Loss

$

(3,265,250) $

(1,086,538)

Net Loss Per Common Share:
- Basic and Diluted

$

(1.51) $

(0.39)

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:
- Basic and Diluted

2,162,038
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2,770,483

LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIENCY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND DECEMBER 31, 2015
Additional
Paid-in
Capital

Common stock par value $0.001
Number of Shares (a)
Amount
Balance, December 31, 2014
Common stock issued for services (Note 10)
Common stock issued for cash (Note 10)
Options granted for consultant (Note 8)
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2015
Common stock issued on conversion of note
payable (Note 5)
Options granted for consultant (Note 8)
Common stock issued for intangible assets (Note
11)
Common stock issued on conversion of convertible
notes payable (Note 5)
Shares redeemed (Note 11)
Net loss
Balance, December 31, 2016

Accumulated
Deficit

2,728,056

2,728

556,649

(242,249)

8,000
11,628
-

8
12
-

106,968
149,988
113,882
-

(1,086,538)

2,747,683

$

2,748

$

927,487

$

(1,328,787) $

Total
Stockholders'
Equity (Deficit)
317,128
106,976
150,000
113,882
(1,086,538)
(398,552)

60,276
-

60
-

497,218
632,356

-

497,278
632,356

86,673

86

194,929

-

195,015

501,852
(1,333,333)
2,063,151

502
(1,333)
$

2,063

1,111,793
1,333
$

(a) Common shares are after reverse stock split of 30:1 as explained in Note 1
See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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3,365,116

$

(3,265,250)

1,112,295
(3,265,250)

(4,594,037) $

(1,226,858)

LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended
December 31, 2016
December 31, 2015
Operating Activities:
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:
Depreciation expenses
Shares issued for consulting services
Options issued - consulting
Interest expense
Interest expense recognized through amortization of deferred financing costs
Commitment fee expense
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities-notes
Change in fair value of derivative liabilities-warrants
Extinguishment of debt
Impairment of intangible asset
Changes in Operating Assets and Liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accounts payable - related party

$

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

(3,265,250)

$

(1,086,538)

1,369
632,356
449,863
7,092
250,000
251,095
(60,639)
682,067
195,015

1,368
106,976
113,882
58,278
1,547
(95,695)
(116,397)
-

9,069
(15,270)
(2,310)

93,021
3,927
80,605
2,310

(865,543)

(836,716)

Investing Activities:
Purchase of Capital Assets

-

(332)

Net Cash used in by Investing Activities

-

(332)

Financing Activities:
Proceeds from note payable
Payment of deferred financing costs
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

841,885
(7,000)
-

580,000
150,000

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

834,885

730,000

Net Change in Cash

(30,658)

(107,048)

Cash - Beginning of Reporting Period

131,699

238,747

Cash - End of Reporting Period

$

101,041

$

131,699

Interest paid

$

-

$

-

Income Tax Paid

$

-

$

-

Issuance of common stocks for settlement of notes payable and accrued interest

$

497,278

$

-

Note payable issued for financing cost

$

250,000

$

-

Acquisition of intangible assets

$

195,015

$

-

Issuance of common stocks for settlement of convertible notes payable

$

1,112,295

$

-

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
December 31, 2016 and 2015
Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 - Organization and Operations
LifeLogger Technologies Corp. (the “Company”) was incorporated under the laws of the State of Nevada on June 4, 2012 under the name Snap Online Marketing
Inc. The Company changed its name effective as of January 31, 2014 and is a lifelogging software company that developed and hosts a proprietary cloud-based
software solution accessible on iOS and Android devices that offers an enhanced media experience for consumers by augmenting videos, livestreams and photos
with additional context information and providing a platform that makes it easy to find and use that data when viewing or sharing media.
Effective as of March 27, 2017, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to increase its authorized capital stock from 125,000,000 to 500,000,000
shares, of which 495,000,000 will be common stock and 5,000,000 will be preferred stock, of which, 1,000 preferred shares have been previously designated as
Series A Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”) and effected a 1 for 30 reverse stock split of its issued and outstanding shares of common stock. All per
share amounts and number of shares in the financial statements and related notes have been retroactively restated to reflect the reverse stock split.
Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation
The financial statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US
GAAP”), applied on a consistent basis, and are expressed in United States dollars (“USD”).
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Areas involving significant estimates and assumptions include: deferred income tax
assets and related valuation allowance, accruals and valuation of derivatives, convertible promissory notes, stock options, and assumptions used in the going
concern assessment. Actual results could differ from those estimates. These estimates are reviewed periodically, and, as adjustments become necessary, they are
reported in earnings in the period in which they become known.
Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company follows paragraph 825-10-50-10 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for disclosures about fair value of its financial instruments and
paragraph 820-10-35-37 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (“Paragraph 820-10-35-37”) to measure the fair value of its financial instruments.
Paragraph 820-10-35-37 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S.
GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. To increase consistency and comparability in fair value measurements and related disclosures,
Paragraph 820-10-35-37 establishes a fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three (3) broad levels.
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs. The three (3) levels of fair value hierarchy defined by Paragraph 820-10-35-37 are described below:
Level 1 Quoted market prices available in active markets for identical assets or liabilities as of the reporting date.
Level 2 Pricing inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, which are either directly or indirectly observable as of the reporting date.
Level 3 Pricing inputs that are generally observable inputs and not corroborated by market data.
Financial assets are considered Level 3 when their fair values are determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies or similar techniques and
at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable.
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The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs. If the inputs used to measure the financial assets and liabilities fall within more than one level described above, the categorization is based on
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the
fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment, and considers factors specific to the asset or liability including certain market assumptions and pertinent
information available to management.
The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities, such as cash, prepaid expenses, accounts payable and accrued expenses approximate their
fair value because of the short maturity of those instruments.
Valuation of Derivatives
The Company evaluates its convertible instruments, options, warrants or other contracts to determine if those contracts or embedded components of those contracts
qualify as derivatives to be separately accounted for under ASC Topic 815, “Derivatives and Hedging.” The result of this accounting treatment is that the fair value
of the derivative is marked-to-market each balance sheet date. The change in fair value is recorded in the statement of operations as other income (expense). Upon
conversion or exercise of a derivative instrument, the instrument is marked to fair value at the conversion date and then that fair value is reclassified to equity.
Equity instruments that are initially classified as equity that become subject to reclassification under ASC Topic 815 are reclassified to liabilities at the fair value of
the instrument on the reclassification date. the Company analyzed the derivative financial instruments in accordance with ASC 815. The objective is to provide
guidance for determining whether an equity-linked financial instrument is indexed to an entity’s own stock. This determination is needed for a scope exception
which would enable a derivative instrument to be accounted for under the accrual method. The classification of a non-derivative instrument that falls within the
scope of ASC 815-40-05 “Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company’s Own Stock” also hinges on
whether the instrument is indexed to an entity’s own stock. A non-derivative instrument that is not indexed to an entity’s own stock cannot be classified as equity
and must be accounted for as a liability. There is a two-step approach in determining whether an instrument or embedded feature is indexed to an entity’s own
stock. First, the instrument’s contingent exercise provisions, if any, must be evaluated, followed by an evaluation of the instrument’s settlement provisions. The
Company utilized multinomial lattice models that value the derivative liability based on a probability weighted discounted cash flow model. The Company utilized
the fair value standard set forth by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, defined as the amount at which the assets (or liability) could be bought (or incurred)
or sold (or settled) in a current transaction between willing parties, that is, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The derivative liabilities result in a reduction of the initial carrying amount (as unamortized discount) of the Convertible Notes. This derivative liability is markedto-market each quarter with the change in fair value recorded in the statement of operations. Unamortized discount is amortized to interest expense using the
effective interest method over the life of the Convertible Note.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less to be cash and cash equivalents.
Furniture and Fixtures
Furniture and fixtures are recorded at cost less depreciation. Expenditures for major additions and betterments are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are charged
to operations as incurred. Depreciation is computed by the straight-line method (after taking into account their respective estimated residual values) over the
estimated useful lives of the respective assets as follows:
Estimated
Useful Life
(Years)
Furniture and fixture

7

Upon sale or retirement, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in the statements of
operations.
Related Parties
The Company follows subtopic 850-10 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for the identification of related parties and disclosure of related party
transactions.
F- 8

Commitments and contingencies
The Company follows subtopic 450-20 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification to report accounting for contingencies. Certain conditions may exist as of
the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the Company but which will only be resolved when one or more future events occur or
fail to occur. The Company assesses such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies
related to legal proceedings that are pending against the Company or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, the Company evaluates the perceived
merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein.
If the assessment of a contingency indicates that it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, then the
estimated liability would be accrued in the Company’s financial statements. If the assessment indicates that a potential material loss contingency is not probable
but is reasonably possible, or is probable but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, and an estimate of the range of possible losses, if
determinable and material, is disclosed.
Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they involve guarantees, in which case the guarantees would be disclosed.
Stock-Based Compensation
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation awards issued in accordance with the provision of ASC 718, which requires that all stock-based
compensation issued to acquire goods or services, including grants of employee stock options, be recognized in the statement of operations based on their fair
values, net of estimated forfeitures. ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsequent periods if actual
forfeitures differ from those estimates. Compensation expense related to stock-based awards is recognized over the requisite service period, which is generally the
vesting period.
There were 200,000 options outstanding as of December 31, 2016.
Research and Development
The Company follows paragraph 730-10-25-1 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (formerly Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 2
“Accounting for Research and Development Costs” ) and paragraph 730-20-25-11 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification (formerly Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 68 “Research and Development Arrangements” ) for research and development costs. Research and development costs are
charged to expense as incurred. Research and development costs consist primarily of remuneration for research and development staff, depreciation and
maintenance expenses of research and development equipment, material and testing costs for research and development as well as research and development
arrangements with unrelated third party research and development institutions.
Deferred Tax Assets and Income Tax Provision
The Company accounts for income taxes under Section 740-10-30 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, which requires recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been included in the financial statements or tax returns. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on the differences between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect
for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance to the extent management concludes it is
more likely than not that the assets will not be realized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in the statements of operations in the
period that includes the enactment date.
Management makes judgments as to the interpretation of the tax laws that might be challenged upon an audit and cause changes to previous estimates of tax
liability. In management’s opinion, adequate provisions for income taxes have been made for all years. If actual taxable income by tax jurisdiction varies from
estimates, additional allowances or reversals of reserves may be necessary.
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Earnings per Share
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”) is the amount of earnings attributable to each share of common stock. For convenience, the term is used to refer to either earnings or
loss per share. EPS is computed pursuant to section 260-10-45 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. Pursuant to ASC Paragraphs 260-10-45-10
through 260-10-45-16 Basic EPS shall be computed by dividing income available to common stockholders (the numerator) by the weighted-average number of
common shares outstanding (the denominator) during the period. Income available to common stockholders shall be computed by deducting both the dividends
declared in the period on preferred stock (whether or not paid) and the dividends accumulated for the period on cumulative preferred stock (whether or not earned)
from income from continuing operations (if that amount appears in the statements of operations) is increased to include the number of additional common shares
that would have been outstanding if the dilutive potential common shares had been issued during the period to reflect the potential dilution that could occur from
common shares issuable through contingent shares issuance arrangement, stock options or warrants.
Diluted earnings per share exclude all potentially dilutive shares if their effect is anti-dilutive. There were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding as at December
31, 2016 and 2015 .
Subsequent Events
The Company follows the guidance in Section 855-10-50 of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification for the disclosure of subsequent events. The Company
will evaluate subsequent events through the date when the financial statements were issued. Pursuant to ASU 2010-09 of the FASB Accounting Standards
Codification, the Company as an SEC filer considers its financial statements issued when they are widely distributed to users, such as through filing them on
EDGAR.
Recently issued accounting pronouncements
In January 2017, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) to simplify the accounting for goodwill
impairment. This guidance eliminates the requirement that an entity calculates the implied fair value of goodwill when measuring an impairment charge. Instead,
an entity would record an impairment charge based on the excess of a reporting unit’s carrying amount over its fair value. This pronouncement is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted. The adoption is required to be applied on a prospective basis. The adoption of this
pronouncement did not have a material impact on the financial position and/or results of operations.
The Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) to update guidance on how companies
account for certain aspects of share-based payments to employees. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim
periods within those years, with early adoption permitted. This guidance requires all income tax effects of awards to be recognized in the statements of operations
when the awards vest or are settled and changes the presentation of excess tax benefits on the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted these provisions on a
prospective basis. In addition, this pronouncement changes guidance on: (a) accounting for forfeitures of share-based awards and (b) employers’ accounting for an
employee’s use of shares to satisfy the employer’s statutory income tax withholding obligation. The adoption of this pronouncement did not have a material impact
on the financial position and/or results of operations.
In March 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB to update guidance on how companies account for certain aspects of
share-based payments to employees. This pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, and interim periods within those years,
with early adoption permitted. This guidance requires all income tax effects of awards to be recognized in the statements of operations when the awards vest or are
settled and changes the presentation of excess tax benefits on the statement of cash flows. The Company adopted these provisions on a prospective basis. In
addition, this pronouncement changes guidance on: (a) accounting for forfeitures of share-based awards and (b) employers’ accounting for an employee’s use of
shares to satisfy the employer’s statutory income tax withholding obligation. The adoption of this pronouncement did not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial position and/or results of operations.
In February 2016, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to replace existing lease accounting guidance. This pronouncement is intended to provide
enhanced transparency and comparability by requiring lessees to record right-of-use assets and corresponding lease liabilities on the balance sheet for most leases.
Expenses associated with leases will continue to be recognized in a manner similar to current accounting guidance. This pronouncement is effective for annual and
interim periods beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The adoption is required to be applied on a modified retrospective basis for
each prior reporting period presented. The Company has not yet determined the effect that the adoption of this pronouncement may have on the financial position
and/or results of operations.
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On January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB which eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business
combination account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Instead, an acquirer will recognize a measurement-period adjustment during the period
in which it determines the amount of the adjustment. The adoption of this pronouncement did not have a material impact on the financial position and/or results of
operations.
On January 1, 2016, the Company adopted the accounting pronouncement issued by the FASB to update the guidance related to the presentation of debt issuance
costs. This guidance requires debt issuance costs, related to a recognized debt liability, be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying
amount of the related debt liability rather than being presented as an asset. The Company adopted this pronouncement on a retrospective basis, and the adoption did
not have a material impact on the financial position and/or results of operations.
In November 2015, an accounting pronouncement was issued by the FASB to simplify the presentation of deferred income taxes within the balance sheet. This
pronouncement eliminates the requirement that deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented as current or noncurrent based on the nature of the underlying assets
and liabilities. Instead, the pronouncement requires all deferred tax assets and liabilities, including valuation allowances, be classified as noncurrent. This
pronouncement is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The Company intends to adopt this pronouncement
on January 1, 2017, and the adoption will not have a material impact on the financial position and/or results of operations.
Note 3 - Going Concern
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates continuity of operations, realization of assets, and liquidation of
liabilities in the normal course of business.
As reflected in the financial statements, the Company had an accumulated deficit of $4,594,037 at December 31, 2016 ($1,328,787 as of December 31, 2015), a net
loss of $3,265,250 and net cash used of $865,543 in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2016. These factors raise substantial doubt about the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Company is attempting to further implement its business plan and generate sufficient revenue; however, its cash position may not be sufficient to support its
daily operations. While the Company believes in the viability of its strategy to further implement its business plan and generate sufficient revenue and in its ability
to raise additional funds by way of a public or private offering, there can be no assurances to that effect. The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern
is dependent upon its ability to further implement its business plan and generate sufficient revenue and its ability to raise additional funds by way of a public or
private offering.
The financial statements do not include any adjustments related to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and classification
of liabilities that might be necessary if the Company is unable to continue as a going concern.
Note 4 - Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
As at December 31, 2016
($)
$
51,587
16,079
22,268
$
89,934

Trade accounts payable
Accrued interest on note payable
Accrued interest on convertible notes payable
Other payable

As at December 31, 2015 ($)
89,648
5,405
23,684
$
118,737
$

Trade accounts payable include $8,065 (2015: $8,214) due to an executive of the Company. The payable balance arose primarily due to consulting charges. The
payable is unsecured, non-interest bearing and due on demand.
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Note 5 – Note Payable and Convertible Notes Payable
a.

Note Payable

On July 20, 2015 the Company entered into a securities purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Glamis Capital SA (“Glamis”), whereby Glamis agreed to invest
$200,000 (the “Purchase Price”) in the Company in exchange for the Note (as defined below). Pursuant to the SPA, the Company issued a promissory note to
Glamis on July 20, 2015 (the “Issuance Date”) in the original principal amount of $200,000, which bears interest at 10% per annum (the “Note”).
The Purchase Price for the Note was funded as follows: (1) $70,000 on the Issuance Date and $65,000 on August 24, 2015. The principal from each funding date,
coupled with the accrued and unpaid interest relating to that principal amount, is due and payable one year from the respective funding date (each a “Maturity
Date”). Any amount of principal or interest that is due under the Note, which is not paid by the respective Maturity Date, will bear interest at 14% per annum until
it is paid. The Note can be prepaid by the Company at any time while the Note is outstanding. In the event that the Company closes a future financing of at least
$1,000,000 while the Note is outstanding, the Company would become obligated to pay all amounts outstanding under the Note within a reasonable time after such
closing.
On November 12, 2015, the Company amended the SPA it entered into with Glamis to limit the amount Glamis is obligated to advance to the Company under the
Glamis Note to $135,000 and amend the Note to reflect a principal balance of $135,000 after giving effect to an August 24, 2015 payment by Glamis to the
Company of $65,000 under the Note. No further advances will be made by Glamis to the Company under the Note.
On March 1, 2016, the Company finalized a settlement of debt owed to Glamis Capital SA through a conversion into common stock of the Company. The total
debt of $135,000 plus accrued and unpaid interest of $7,403 for a total of $142,403 was converted into 60,276 common stock par value $.001 based on an average
of the previous 20 days close price of the common stock of the company discounted by 25% for a price of $2.3625 per share. The loss on extinguishment of this
debt was determined to be $354,876, which is included in other expenses, based on the date of the debt settlement agreement of February 24, 2016 and the closing
stock price on that date to be $8.25.
b.

Convertible Notes Payable

The movement in convertible notes payable is as follows:
Original
amount
Outstanding, December 31, 2015
Conversion on opening balance
Issued: March 9, 2016
Issued: March 9, 2016
Issued: June 9, 2016
Issued: June 30, 2016
Outstanding, December 31, 2016

$
(i)
(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(v)
$

250,000
296,153
87,912
550,000
1,184,065

Guaranteed
interest accrued

Discount
$

$

(27,389)
(107,239)
(134,628)

$

$

10,000
14,808
4,396
22,000
51,204

Net settlement
$

$

(92,180)
(92,180)

Ending balance
189,921
(189,921)
260,000
218,781
64,919
464,761
1,008,461

(i) Old Main Capital, LLC – September 2015:
On September 14, 2015 (the “Issuance Date”), the Company closed on the transactions contemplated by the securities purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with Old
Main Capital, LLC (“Old Main”), whereby Old Main agreed to invest $450,000 (the “Purchase Price”) in the Company’s -share capital in exchange for the Note
(as defined below) and Warrants (as defined below). Pursuant to the SPA, the Company issued a promissory note to Old Main, in the original principal amount of
$473,864, which bears interest at 10% per annum (the “September 2015 Note”). The Purchase Price will be paid as follows: (1) $250,000 funded in cash to the
Company on the Issuance Date, (2) the remaining $200,000 within 30 days after the Issuance Date. The principal from each funding date, coupled with the accrued
and unpaid interest relating to that principal amount, is due and payable on September 8, 2016 (the “Maturity Date”). Any amount of principal or interest that is
due under the September 2015 Note, which is not paid by the Maturity Date, will bear interest at the rate of 24% per annum until it is paid.
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Beginning 6 months after the Issuance Date, the Company is required to make bi-weekly amortization payments (one payment every 2 weeks), consisting of 1/12 th
of the outstanding principal and interest, until the September 2015 Note is on longer outstanding (each a “Bi-Weekly Payment”). Such Bi-Weekly Payments may
be made in cash, or in the Company’s common stock (“Common Stock”) if certain equity conditions are satisfied. Such equity conditions include but are not
limited to an average daily dollar volume of the Common Stock greater than $25,000 for the 20 trading days prior to a Bi-Weekly Payment. If the equity conditions
are satisfied, and the Company decide to make a Bi-Weekly payment in Common Stock, then the shares of Common Stock to be delivered shall be calculated as
follows: the amount of the Bi-Weekly Payment divided by the Base Conversion Price (as defined below). The Base Conversion Price shall equal the lower of (i)
the closing price of the Common Stock on September 8, 2015, or (ii) 70% of the average of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the 15 trading days
immediately prior to the date of the Bi-Weekly Payment. Additionally, Old Main has the right at any time to convert amounts owed under the September 2015
Note into Common Stock at the closing price of the Common Stock on September 8, 2015. If an event of default under the September 2015 Note occurs, Old Main
has the right to convert amounts owed under the September 2015 Note into Common Stock at 52% multiplied by the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the
15 trading days immediately prior to the applicable conversion date.
The September 2015 Note can be prepaid by the Company at any time while the September 2015 Note is outstanding, at a prepayment price of 125% multiplied by
the outstanding principal and interest of the September 2015 Note, subject to Old Main’s discretionary acceptance. If an event of default occurs under the
September 2015 Note, which is not cured within 10 business days, Old Main has the option to require the Company’s redemption of the September 2015 Note in
cash at a redemption price of 130% multiplied by the outstanding principal and interest of the September 2015 Note. The September 2015 Note contains
representations, warranties, events of default, beneficial ownership limitations, and other provisions that are customary of similar instruments.
Effective on March 9, 2016, the September 2015 Note was amended whereby the conversion price in effect on any Conversion Date shall be equal to the lesser of
the (i) closing price of the Common Stock on September 8, 2015 (“Fixed Conversion Price”), or (ii) 60% of the lowest traded price of the Common Stock for the
15 consecutive trading days ending on the trading day that is immediately prior to the applicable Conversion Date. All such determinations will be appropriately
adjusted for any stock dividend, stock split, stock combination, reclassification or similar transaction that proportionately decreases or increases the Common Stock
during such measuring period. This amendment triggered an extinguishment of the debt since the change in the fair value of the embedded derivative exceeded
10% of the carrying value of the debt. The Company booked a $144,205 loss on extinguishment based on the amendment.
The Company has converted $473,684 of principal and $28,033 of interest for 283,645 shares ranging in price per share of $1.17 to $2.55. This loan has been
completely settled by July 2016.
(ii) Equity Line of Credit
On March 9, 2016, the Company issued an 8% convertible promissory note in the principal amount of $250,000 to Old Main as a commitment fee for entering into
a term sheet whereby Old Main agreed to provide the Company with up to $5,000,000 in financing over a 24 month period through the purchase of the Company’s
common stock. The proposed equity line will be subject to certain conditions, including, but not limited to, the Company’s filing of a Registration Statement
covering the resale of the securities issued to Old Main and the Company’s continued compliance with the disclosure requirements under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended. Old Main’s commitment to provide funding under the equity line of credit is subject to the Company entering into a definitive and
binding agreement related to the proposed equity line of credit and as of September 30, 2016 the Company have not entered into any such agreement.
The terms and conditions of the $250,000 note are substantially identical to the March 2016 Note below except the interest rate which is 8% per annum, half of
which is guaranteed and the total amount of interest due on the Note for a period of six months is deemed earned as of the date the note was issued. All interest
payments will be payable in cash, or subject to certain equity conditions i n cash or common stock in the Company’s discretion. Accrued and unpaid interest shall
be due on payable on each conversion date and on the date the note matures, or as otherwise provided for in the note.
Beginning six months after the date of the note, the Company is required to begin to make bi-weekly amortization payments (for the avoidance of doubt, bi-weekly
shall mean every two weeks), in cash to Old Main until the note is repaid in full. Each bi-weekly payment shall consist of at least 1/12 th of the total outstanding
amount under the note as of the amortization payment date, including the principal, accrued and unpaid interest (prorated through the entire pay-off period pursuant
to this paragraph), and any applicable penalties. The Company may make a bi-weekly payment to Old Main in the Company’s common stock, in the event that the
equity conditions provided for in the note are satisfied. The maturity date of the note is March 9, 2017. Subsequent to year end, the note had been converted into
equity shares. Refer to Note 12 for further details.
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The Company amended this convertible note on June 9, 2016 to remove the equity condition limitations, removed the amortization payment requirements, to
permit voluntary conversions in common stock and revised the conversion price to mean the lesser of (a) the closing price of the Company’s common stock on
March 9, 2016 or (b) 60% of the lowest VWAP price of the Company’s common stock for the 15 consecutive trading days ending on the trading day that is
immediately prior to any applicable conversion date. This amendment was treated as an extinguishment of debt and a resultant loss on extinguishment of debt of
$94,030 was realized, and recorded in other expenses.
As at December 31, 2016 the Company owes $250,000 in principal and the accrued interest is 16,274, which consists of the guaranteed interest accrued of $10,000
included in the convertible notes balance and the remainder of $6,274 is recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, Note 4.
(iii) Securities Purchase Agreement and Convertible Notes Issued to Old Main Capital, LLC
On March 9, 2016 (the “Issuance Date”) the Company closed on the transaction contemplated by the securities purchase agreement (the “SPA”) the Company
entered into with Old Main Capital, LLC (“Old Main”), whereby Old Main agreed to purchase from the Company a convertible promissory note (the “March 2016
Note”) in the original principal amount of $296,153 for $269,500, net of an original issuance discount of $26,653 (the “Purchase Price”), included in interest
expenses. The March 2016 Note bears interest at the rate of 10% per annum, of which there is a guaranteed interest for a period of six (6) months as of the Issuance
date. The Purchase Price paid were as follows: (i) $84,500 was paid in cash to the Company on March 12, 2016 (ii) $100,000 was paid in cash to the Company on
April 6, 2016 (iii) $85,000 May 6, 2016. The principal from each funding date and the accrued and unpaid interest relating to that principal amount is due and
payable on March 9, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”). Any amount of principal or interest that is due under the March 2016 Note which is not paid by the Maturity Date
will bear interest at the rate of 24% per annum until it is paid and subject to further increase as discussed below.
Beginning 6 months after the Issuance Date, the Company are required to make bi-weekly amortization payments (one payment every 2 weeks), consisting of 1/12
th of the outstanding principal and interest, until the March 2016 Note is no longer outstanding (each a “Bi-Weekly Payment”). Such Bi-Weekly Payments may be
made in cash, or in the Company’s common stock (“Common Stock”) if certain equity conditions are satisfied. Such equity conditions include but are not limited
to an average daily dollar volume of the Common Stock greater than $30,000 for the 20 trading days prior to a Bi-Weekly Payment. If the equity conditions are
satisfied, and the Company decide to make a Bi-Weekly payment in Common Stock, then the shares of Common Stock to be delivered shall be calculated as
follows: the amount of the Bi-Weekly Payment divided by the Base Conversion Price (as defined below). The Base Conversion Price shall equal the lower of (i)
the closing price of the Common Stock on March 9, 2016, or (ii) 70% of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the 15 trading days immediately prior to the
date of the Bi-Weekly Payment.
The March 2016 Note can be prepaid by the Company at any time while the March 2016 Note is outstanding, at a prepayment price of 125% multiplied by the
outstanding principal and interest of the March 2016 Note, subject to Old Main’s discretionary acceptance. If an event of default occurs under the March 2016
Note, which is not cured within three business days, then upon Old Main’s provision of notice to the Company of the occurrence of such event of default, the
Company shall within three business days of such default notice, pay the total amount outstanding under the March 2016 Note in cash (including principal, accrued
and unpaid interest, applicable penalties (including default multipliers). In the event that the Company does not pay the total amount outstanding within three (3)
business days of such default notice, then the total amount outstanding under the March 2016 Note (post-default amount) at that time shall increase by 50%, and on
the fourth business day after such default notice (the “Second Amortization Payment Date”), the Company shall begin to make weekly amortization payments (for
the avoidance of doubt, weekly shall mean every week) (each a “Weekly Payment”), in (1) cash to Old Main or (2) Common Stock at a price per share equal to the
lesser of (i) the closing price of the Company’s common stock on March 9, 2016 or (ii) 52% of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the 15 consecutive
Trading Days ending on the Trading Day that is immediately prior to the applicable conversion date. Each Weekly Payment shall consist of the greater of (i)
$10,000 of value under the March 2016 Note or (ii) 1/24 th of the total outstanding amount under this March 2016 Note as of the Second Amortization Payment
Date, including the principal, accrued and unpaid interest (prorated through the entire pay-off period), and any applicable penalties. As at December 31, 2016, there
were no prepayments made on the Note. During the year, $52,480 of the principal balance had been converted into equity shares. Refer to Note 12 for further
details.
On June 9, 2016 the Company amended the March 2016 Note whereby the Company revised the note to remove the equity condition limitations, removed the
amortization payment requirements and to permit voluntary conversions in common stock. The Company also revised the conversion price to mean the lesser of (a)
the closing price of the Company’s common stock on March 9, 2016 or (b) 60% of the lowest VWAP price of the Company’s common stock for the 15
consecutive trading days ending on the trading day that is immediately prior to any applicable conversion date. The amendment was accounted for using the
extinguishment of debt method. The Company recorded an $88,956 loss on extinguishment of debt, which is included in other expenses.
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As at December 31, 2016 the Company owes $203,973 in principal and the accrued interest is $24,098, which consists of the guaranteed interest accrued of
$14,808 included in the convertible notes balance and the remainder of $9,290 is recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, Note 4.
(iv) Securities Purchase Agreement and Convertible Notes Issued to Old Main Capital, LLC
On June 9, 2016 (the “Issuance Date”), the Company closed on the transaction contemplated by the securities purchase agreement (the “SPA”) the Company
entered into with Old Main Capital, LLC (“Old Main”), whereby Old Main agreed to purchase from the Company a convertible promissory note (the “Note”) in
the original principal amount of $87,912 for $80,000, net of an original issuance discount of $7,912 (the “Purchase Price”). The Note bears interest at the rate of
10% per annum, of which there is a guaranteed interest for a period of six (6) months as of the Issuance date. The Purchase Price was paid on June 9, 2016 in cash.
The principal from the funding date and the accrued and unpaid interest relating to that principal amount is due and payable on June 9, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”).
Any amount of principal or interest that is due under the Note which is not paid by the Maturity Date will bear interest at the rate of 24% per annum until it is paid
and subject to further increase as discussed below. The conversion price is the lesser of (a) the closing price of our common stock on June 9, 2016 or (b) 60% of
the lowest VWAP price of the Company’s common stock for the 15 consecutive trading days ending on the trading day that is immediately prior to any applicable
conversion date.
As at December 31, 2016 the Company owes $87,912 in principal and the accrued interest is $4,913, which consists of the guaranteed interest accrued of $4,396
included in the convertible notes balance and the remainder of $518 is recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, Note 4.
(v) Securities Purchase Agreement and Convertible Note Issued to SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1
On June 30, 2016 (the “Issuance Date”) the Company closed on the transaction contemplated by the securities purchase agreement (the “SPA”) the Company
entered into with SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1 (“SBI”), whereby SBI agreed to purchase from the Company a convertible promissory note (the “Note”) in the
original principal amount of $550,000 for $500,000 net of an original issuance discount of $50,000 (the “Purchase Price”). The Note bears interest at the rate of 8%
per annum, half of which is guaranteed and the total amount of interest due on the Note for a period of six months is deemed earned as of the date the note was
issued. The Purchase Price was paid on June 30, 2016 in cash. The principal from the funding date and the accrued and unpaid interest relating to that principal
amount is due and payable on June 30, 2017 (the “Maturity Date”). Any amount of principal or interest that is due under the Note which is not paid by the Maturity
Date will bear interest at the rate of 24% per annum until it is paid and subject to further increase as discussed below. The conversion price is the lesser of (a) the
closing price of the Company’s common stock on June 30, 2016 ($2.40 per share) or (b) 60% of the lowest VWAP price of the Company’s common stock for the
20 consecutive trading days ending on the trading day that is immediately prior to any applicable conversion date. This convertible debt has been accounted for as
a derivative liability and is included in the Note 6 derivative liability calculations below.
Beginning 6 months after the Issuance Date, the Company are required to make bi-weekly amortization payments (one payment every 2 weeks), consisting of 1/12
th of the outstanding principal and interest, until the Note is no longer outstanding (each a “Bi-Weekly Payment”). Such Bi-Weekly Payments may be made in cash,
or in the Company’s common stock (“Common Stock”) if certain equity conditions are satisfied. Such equity conditions include but are not limited to an average
daily dollar volume of the Common Stock greater than $25,000 for the 20 trading days prior to a Bi-Weekly Payment. If the equity conditions are satisfied, and the
Company decide to make a Bi-Weekly payment in Common Stock, then the shares of Common Stock to be delivered shall be calculated as follows: the amount of
the Bi-Weekly Payment divided by the Base Conversion Price (as defined below). The Base Conversion Price shall equal the lower of (i) the closing price of the
Common Stock on June 30, 2016, $2.40 per share, or (ii) 60% of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the 20 trading days immediately prior to the date of
the Bi-Weekly Payment.
The Note can be prepaid by the Company at any time while the Note is outstanding, at a prepayment price of 125% multiplied by the outstanding principal and
interest of the Note, subject to SBI’s discretionary acceptance. If an event of default occurs under the Note, which is not cured within three business days, then
upon SBI’s provision of notice to the Company of the occurrence of such event of default, the Company shall within three business days of such default notice, pay
the total amount outstanding under the Note in cash (including principal, accrued and unpaid interest, applicable penalties (including default multipliers). In the
event that the Company does not pay the total amount outstanding within three (3) business days of such default notice, the company will pay interest at 24%.
As at December 31, 2016 the Company owes $550,000 in principal and the accrued interest is $22,000, which consists of the guaranteed interest accrued of
$22,000 included in the convertible notes balance and a nil balance is recorded in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, Note 4.
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c . Warrants
In conjunction with the issuance of the September 2015 Note, the Company simultaneously issued 28,333 common stock purchase warrants to Old Main (the
“Warrants”). The Warrants may be exercised by Old Main at any time in the 5-year period following the issuance. The exercise price for each share of the
Common Stock is equal to the closing price of the Common Stock on September 8, 2015, $7.88 per share.
On June 9, 2016 and June 30, 2016, the Company entered (either a new issuance or amendment to the March 9, 2016 issuance which requires derivative treatment
on June 9, 2016) into convertible derivative notes with Old Main Capital, LLC and SBI Investments LLC – Sea Otter Global Ventures LLC (referred to as the “the
Holders”), in the initial amount of $250,000 (Old Main Capital Commitment Fee Note), $296,153 (Old Main Capital Bridge Note), $87,912 (Old Main Capital
Note), and $550,000 (SBI Investments LLC – Sea Otter Global Vent (with Original Issue Discounts and deferred financing costs). The notes bear an interest rate of
8% or 10% per annum and matures in 1 year or less under the convertible note agreements, the lender has the right to convert all or any part of the outstanding and
unpaid principal and interest into shares of the Company’s common stock. In addition, the Company issued the SBI–Sea Otter Holder a warrant to acquire 8,334
shares of the Company’s common stock. The terms of the Convertible Note are as follows:
1.

The Holders have the right from and after a 180 day delay from the Date of Issuance, and until any time until the Note is fully paid, to convert any
outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the Note, and accrued interest, into fully paid and non–assessable shares of Common (par value $.001 per
share). Bi–weekly amortization payments are due after 6 months.

2.

The Convertible Notes are convertible at a fixed rate of $2.34 or $2.25 with no reset provisions. The June 9, 2016 notes convert at the lower of the fixed
rate or this variable rate.

3.

Beneficial ownership is limited to 9.99%.

4.

The Company may redeem the Notes for 125% or 150% of the redemption amount and accrued interest. The Company may upon certain equity
conditions redeemed certain notes at the lessor of fixed conversion price and 60% of 15 Trading day low VWAP.

5.

In the event of default the Note bears interest at 24% per annum and converts at 60% of 15 trading day low VWAP (default or fundamental transaction) –
a derivative feature.

The June 9 th amendments triggered an extinguishment of the debt since the change in the fair value of the embedded derivative exceeded 10% of the carrying
value of the debt. The Company booked a $182,986 loss on extinguishment based on the amendments.
The terms of the SBI Warrants are as follows:
1.

The Warrants have a 3 year term.

2.

The 2 issuances of 4,167 Warrants each may be exercised at a conversion price of the lesser of: (i) $2.46 or $2.88, or (ii) any lower price of equity linked
instruments issued by the Company while the warrant is issued and outstanding (full ratchet reset). This anti–dilution protections provides a full reset upon the
issuance of lower price securities by the Company and is available to SBI during the initial 180 days that the Warrant is outstanding.

3.

Beneficial ownership is limited to 4.99% initially and upon Holder request to 9.99%.

On June 9, 2016, the amended Old Main notes (Bridge Note and Commitment Fee) provided the holder with a variable rate conversion feature. This feature taints
all warrants/notes and ongoing derivative treatment is required until the note is paid or converted in full.
1.

The Company may redeem the Notes for 125% or 150% of the redemption amount and accrued interest. The Company may upon certain equity
conditions redeemed certain notes at the lessor of fixed conversion price and 60% of 15 Trading day low VWAP.

2.

In the event of default the Note bears interest at 24% per annum and converts at 60% of 15 trading day low VWAP (default or fundamental transaction) –
a derivative feature.

This note is a derivative because it contains an embedded conversion feature that resets the conversion price upon a fundamental transaction event. The Company
recorded a debt discount based on the original issue discount, the embedded derivative, and the derivative warrant issued. The debt discount is being amortized
over the term of the convertible debt.
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Note 6 – Derivative Liability
In connection with the sale of debt or equity instruments, the Company may sell options or warrants to purchase the Company’s common stock. In certain
circumstances, these options or warrants may be classified as derivative liabilities, rather than as equity. Additionally, the debt or equity instruments may contain
embedded derivative instruments, such as embedded derivative features which in certain circumstances may be required to be bifurcated from the associated host
instrument and accounted for separately as a derivative instrument liability.
The Company’s derivative instrument liabilities are re-valued at the end of each reporting period, with changes in the fair value of the derivative liability recorded
as charges or credits to income in the period in which the changes occur. For options, warrants and bifurcated embedded derivative features that are accounted for
as derivative instrument liabilities, the Company estimates fair value using either quoted market prices of financial instruments with similar characteristics or other
valuation techniques. The valuation techniques require assumptions related to the remaining term of the instruments and risk-free rates of return, the Company’s
current common stock price and expected dividend yield, and the expected volatility of the Company’s common stock price over the life of the instrument.
The following table summarizes the warrant derivative liabilities and convertible notes activity for the period ending December 31, 2016:
Description
Fair value at December 31, 2015
Change due to Issuances
Change due to debt extinguishment
Change due to Exercise/Conversion
Change in Fair Value
Fair value at December 31, 2016

$

$

Derivative Liabilities
106,265
371,562
91,070
(518,398)
190,456
240,955

For the year ended December 31, 2016, net derivative expense was $190,456 (2015 – net derivative income was $212,092).
The lattice methodology was used to value the embedded derivatives within the convertible note and the warrants issued, with the following assumptions.
Assumptions
Dividend yield
Risk-free rate for term
Volatility
Maturity dates
Stock Price (pre-split)

December 31, 2016
0.00%
0.51-1.47%
120.4-142.8%
.19-3.69 years
0.0151

December 31, 2015
0.00%
0.49-1.76%
128.42-146.65%
. 69-4.69 years
0.9495

During the period ended March 31, 2016, the Company amended the derivative notes on March 9, 2016. The amendment included revising the “Alternate
Conversion Price to mean 60% of the lowest traded price of the common stock for the 15 consecutive trading days prior to the conversion date. The derivative
liability increased by $91,070 due to the amendment which was booked as an additional debt discount.
During the quarter ended September 30, 2015, the Company issued 28,333 warrants to an investor as part of their Securities Purchase Agreement in which the
investor acquired a Convertible Note. The warrants have an exercise price of $7.88 and a five-year term. The warrants are treated as derivative liabilities since the
holder has anti-dilution protections that will re-price the warrant upon the issuance of lower priced equity linked instruments by the Company for the period of 180
days after issuance. The fair value of the derivative liability related to these warrants at issuance was valued at $169,270 and was booked as a debt discount to the
Convertible Note and booked as a derivative liability on the balance sheet. The embedded conversion feature of the Convertible Note is treated as a derivative
liability since the conversion price is reset upon a fundamental transaction event. The fair value of the derivative liability related to the embedded conversion
feature was valued at $92,659 and was booked as a debt discount, included in interest expense(up to the amount of the note, with the excess expensed as interest
expense).
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Note 7 – Fair Value of Financial Instruments.
The Company’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts payable and accrued expenses, derivative liabilities and convertible debt. The
estimated fair value of cash, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
The Company utilizes various types of financing to fund its business needs, including convertible debt with warrants attached. The Company reviews its warrants
and conversion features of securities issued as to whether they are freestanding or contain an embedded derivative and, if so, whether they are classified as a
liability at each reporting period until the amount is settled and reclassified into equity with changes in fair value recognized in current earnings. At December 31,
2016, the Company had convertible debt and warrants to purchase common stock. The fair value of the warrants and the embedded conversion feature of the
convertible debt is classified as a liability. Some of these units have embedded conversion features that are treated as a discount on the notes. Such financial
instruments are initially recorded at fair value and amortized to interest expense over the life of the debt using the effective interest method.
Inputs used in the valuation to derive fair value are classified based on a fair value hierarchy which distinguishes between assumptions based on market data
(observable inputs) and an entity’s own assumptions (unobservable inputs). The hierarchy consists of three levels:
Level one - Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level two - Inputs other than level one inputs that are either directly or indirectly observable; and
Level three - Unobservable inputs developed using estimates and assumptions, which are developed by the reporting entity and reflect those assumptions
that a market participant would use.
Determining which category an asset or liability falls within the hierarchy requires significant judgment. The Company evaluates its hierarchy disclosures each
quarter. The Company’s derivative liability is measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The Company classifies the fair value of these convertible notes and
warrants derivative liability under level three. The Company’s settlement payable is measured at fair value on a recurring basis based on the most recent settlement
offer. The Company classifies the fair value of the settlement payable under level three. The Company’s rescission liability is measured at fair value on a recurring
basis based on the most recent stock price. The Company classifies the fair value of the rescission liability under level one.
Based on ASC Topic 815 and related guidance, the Company concluded the common stock purchase warrants are required to be accounted for as derivatives as of
the issue date due to a reset feature on the exercise price. At the date of issuance warrant derivative liabilities were measured at fair value using either quoted
market prices of financial instruments with similar characteristics or other valuation techniques. The Company records the fair value of these derivatives on its
balance sheet at fair value with changes in the values of these derivatives reflected in the statements of operations as “Gain (loss) on derivative liabilities.” These
derivative instruments are not designated as hedging instruments under ASC 815-10 and are disclosed on the balance sheet under Derivative Liabilities.
The following table presents liabilities that are measured and recognized at fair value as of December 31, 2016 on a recurring and non-recurring basis:
Description
Derivatives
Fair Value at December 31, 2016

Level 1
$
$

Level 2
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$
$

-

$
$

Level 3
240,955
240,955

Gains (Losses)
$
(190,456)
$
(190,456)

Note 8 – Stock Options:
The following is a summary of stock option activity:

Options
Outstanding
200,000
200,000
-

Outstanding, December 31, 2015
Granted
Forfeited
Exercised
Outstanding, December 31, 2016
Exercisable, December 31, 2016

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price
$

3.00

$
$

3.00
-

9.84
-

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

$
$

-

The exercise price for options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2016 is as follows:
Outstanding
Number of
Options

Exercisable
Exercise
Price

200,000
200,000

$

Number of
Options
3.00

Exercise
Price
-

$

-

For options granted during 2015 where the exercise price was equal to the stock price at the date of the grant, the weighted-average fair value of such options was
$5.70 and the weighted-average exercise price of such options was $6.00. No options were granted during 2015 where the exercise price was greater than the stock
price at the date of grant or where the exercise price was less than the stock price at the date of grant. During 2016 the company reduced the exercise price to $3.00.
The fair value of the stock options is being amortized to stock option expense over the vesting period. The Company recorded stock option expense of $632,356,
included in operating expenses, during December 31, 2016 and $113,882 during the year ended December 31, 2015. At December 31, 2016, the unamortized stock
option expense was $392,218 which will be amortized to expense through December 2018.
The assumptions used in calculating the fair value of options granted using the Black-Scholes option- pricing model for options granted are as follows:

Risk-free interest rate
Expected life of the options
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield

2016

2015

1.5%
5.5 to 6.5 years
150%
0%

1.5%
5.5 to 6.5 years
150%
0%
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As at December 31, 2016, the Company had the following warrant securities outstanding:
Common Stock
Warrants
28,333
8,334
36,667

December 31, 2015
Less: Exercised
Less: Expired
Add: Issued
December 31, 2016
Warrants (Note 6)
Exercise Price

$

Expiration Date
Warrants (Note 5)
Exercise Price
Expiration Date

28,333
7.88
September 8, 2015 to
September 8, 2020
8,334
**
June 30, 2016 to
June 30, 2019

** Lessor of: $2.46 or $2.88 or any price of equity linked instruments issued by the Company while the warrant is issued and outstanding
During the year ended December 31, 2016, nil warrants expired unexercised.
Note 9 – Related Party Transactions
Related Parties
Related parties with whom the Company had transactions are:
Related Parties

Relationship

Stew Garner

Chairman, CEO, CFO and director

Consulting services from Officer
Consulting services provided by the officer for the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
December 31, 2016
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

$
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101,723

December 31, 2015
$

116,477

Note 10 - Stockholders’ Deficiency
Shares Authorized
The Company’s authorized capital stock consists of 495,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par
value $0.001 per share.
On December 28, 2016, the Company filed a certificate of designation, preferences and rights of Series A Preferred Stock (the “Certificate of
Designation”) with the Secretary of State of the State of Nevada to designate 1,000 shares of its previously authorized preferred stock as Series A Preferred Stock.
The holders of shares of Series A Preferred Stock that are not entitled to dividends or distributions have the following voting rights:
●

Each share of Series A Preferred Stock entitles the holder to 50,000 votes on all matters submitted to a vote of the Company’s stockholders. In
the event that such votes do not total at least 51% of all votes, then the votes cast by the holders of the Series A Preferred Stock shall be equal to
51% of all votes cast at any meeting of the Company’s stockholders or any issue put to the stockholders for voting.

●

Except as otherwise provided in the Certificate of Designation, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock, the holders of Company common stock
and the holders of shares of any other Company capital stock having general voting rights and shall vote together as one class on all matters
submitted to a vote of the Company’s stockholders.

●

The holders of the Series A Preferred Stock do not have any conversion rights.

Effective as of February 22, 2017, the Company amended its Articles of Incorporation to increase its authorized capital stock from 125,000,000 to 500,000,000
shares, of which 495,000,000 will be common stock and 5,000,000 will be preferred stock, of which, 1,000 shares have been previously designated as Series A
Preferred Stock (the “Series A Preferred Stock”) and effected a 1 for 30 reverse stock split of its issued and outstanding shares of common stock. All per share
amounts and number of shares in the financial statements and related notes have been retroactively restated to reflect the reverse stock split.
Common Stock
Common Shares Issued Cash
On May 12, 2015 the Company sold 11,628 shares of its common stock at $12.90 per share for $150,000 in cash.
No common shares were issued for cash during year ended December 31, 2016.
Common Shares Issued for Non- Cash
On January 28, 2015, the Company entered into a consulting agreement (“Consulting Agreement”) with a third party (the “Consultant”) for software development
consulting services. Pursuant to the Consulting Agreement, the Consultant agrees to provide consulting services for six months in exchange for 1,333 shares of
common stock of the Company per month.
For the year ended December 31, 2015 the Company recorded $106,976, which were valued at the close price of the Company’s common stock on the last day of
each month from February – July for each 1,333 shares issued or 8,000 shares in aggregate issued to the Consultant.
On March 1, 2016 $142,403 of Note Payable debt and accrued interest was converted to 60,276 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $2.24625 per
share.
On March 14, 2016 $42,177 of Old Main debt was converted to 20,943 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $2.0139 per share.
On April 6, 2016 $25,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 9,850 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $2.538 per share.
On April 14, 2016 $25,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 11,574 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $2.16 per share.
On April 19, 2016 $35,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 16,204 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $2.16 per share.
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On April 25, 2016 $50,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 23,148 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $2.16 per share.
On April 27, 2016 $30,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 15,291 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.962 per share.
On April 29, 2016 $35,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 19,444 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.80 per share.
On May 2, 2016 $36,397 of Old Main debt and interest were converted to 20,220 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.80 per share.
On May 4, 2016 $40,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 24,691 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.62 per share.
On May 11, 2016 $40,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 24,691 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.62 per share.
On May 16, 2016 $30,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 18,519 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.62 per share.
Effective May 17, 2016, the Company redeemed 1,333,333 shares of its common stock held by Consumer Electronics Ventures Corp. (“Consumer Electronics”),
its former majority shareholder. The Company did not pay any cash compensation to Consumer Electronics for the redemption which was made in consideration of
the intended increase in value of the remaining shares of common stock held by Consumer Electronics.
On May 20, 2016 $30,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 18,519 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.62 per share.
On May 26, 2016 $30,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 20,450 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.467 per share.
On June 6, 2016 $25,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 17,147 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.458 per share.
On June 14, 2016 $15,000 of Old Main debt was converted to 11,721 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.2798 per share.
On June 30, 2016 the Asset Purchase Agreement for certain assets of Pixorial Inc. (Pixorial) was closed whereby the Company issued an aggregate of 86,673
shares of the Company’s unregistered common stock in consideration for these assets valued at $2.25 per share, or an aggregate of $195,015. See Note 11 –
Acquisition of Assets.
On July 29, 2016 $13,143 of Old Main debt was converted to 11,234shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.17 per share.
On September 22, 2016 $10,000 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 8,206 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.218 per share.
On October 6, 2016 $10,000 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 8,206 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $1.218 per share.
On November 7, 2016 $5,000 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 5,600 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.894 per share.
On November 17, 2016 $7,500 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 14,723 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.51 per share.
On November 25, 2016 $7,500 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 14,723 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.51 per share.
On November 30, 2016 $15,000 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 31,807 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.471 per share.
On December 21, 2016 $10,000 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 34,941 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.285 per share.
On December 30, 2016 $27,180 of March 2016 Note debt was converted to 100,000 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.273 per share.
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Note 11 - Acquisition of Assets
On June 30, 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of certain assets of Pixorial pursuant to the terms of the Amended and Restated Asset Purchase
Agreement entered into among the Company, Pixorial and Andres Espiniera dated June 20, 2016 (the “Amended Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the
Amended Agreement, the Company agreed to purchase, and Pixorial agreed to sell certain assets of Pixorial comprised of the trademark “What’s Your Story” and
its customer list (the “Pixorial Asset Acquisition”).
Under the terms of the Amended Agreement, the Company issued 86,673 shares of its unregistered common stock to the existing shareholders and certain
creditors of Pixorial. In addition, the Company amended the exercise price of Mr. Espineira’s November 10, 2015 stock option award to acquire 200,000 shares of
the Company’s common stock to $3.00 per share. The shares of the Company’s common stock to be issued to Pixorial’s shareholders and creditors will also be
subject to a lock-up agreement whereby one-third the number received by each may be sold beginning as of each of the first three anniversaries of the closing of
the Pixorial Asset Acquisition.
Consummation of the Pixorial Asset Acquisition, which shall occur no later than July 15, 2016, is subject to certain conditions, including: (i) consent to
the Asset Purchase Transaction by both the shareholders of Pixorial and the principals of Siena Pier Ventures 2007 Fund, LLP and Siena Pier Ventures, LLC (the
“Secured Creditors”), holders of certain indebtedness of the Company in the aggregate principal sum of $2,025,000 (the “Siena Debt”), shall have been delivered;
(ii) the Secured Creditors shall have agreed to cancel a portion of the Siena Debt for 81,260 of the total 86,673 shares of the Company’s common stock to be
tendered as consideration, (iii) such Secured Creditors’ shares also being subject to a lock-up agreement whereby only one-third of the shares may be sold
beginning on each of the first three anniversaries of the closing of the Pixorial Asset Acquisition; and (iv) the parties shall have reaffirmed to one another as of
closing their customary representations and warranties made as of the execution date under the Amended Agreement.
The common stock was valued at $195,015 based on the closing price of $2.25/share of the Company’s common stock on the acquisition date. The purchase price
was allocated as follows: trademark - $5,000 and customer list - $190,015. Management determined that these intangible assets were impaired and took a charge to
earnings of $195,015 during the year ended December 31, 2016.
Note 12 - Income Tax Provision
Deferred Tax Assets
At December 31, 2016, the Company had net operating loss (“NOL”) carry–forwards for Federal income tax purposes of $1,851,367 (2015: $913,899) that may be
offset against future taxable income through 2035. No tax benefit has been reported with respect to these net operating loss carry-forwards in the accompanying
financial statements because the Company believes that the realization of the Company’s net deferred tax assets of approximately $629,465 (2015: $310,726) was
not considered more likely than not and accordingly, the potential tax benefits of the net loss carry-forwards are offset by a full valuation allowance.
Deferred tax assets consist primarily of the tax effect of NOL carry-forwards. The Company has provided a full valuation allowance on the deferred tax assets
because of the uncertainty regarding its realizability. The valuation allowance increased approximately $318,739 and $228,375 for the years ended December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively.
Components of deferred tax assets are as follows:
December 31, 2016

December 31, 2015

Net deferred tax assets – Non-current:
Expected income tax benefit from NOL carry-forwards
Less valuation allowance
Deferred tax assets, net of valuation allowance

$
$
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629,465
(629,465)
-

$
$

310,726
(310,726)
-

Income Tax Provision in the Statements of Operations
A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tax rate and the effective income tax rate as a percentage of income before income taxes is as follows:

Net loss for the year before income taxes
Expected income tax recovery from net loss
Non-deductible expenses
Other temporary differences
Change in valuation allowance

Year ended
December 31, 2016
$
(3,265,250)

Year ended
December 31, 2015
$
(1,086,538)

(1,110,185)
791,446
—
318,739
—

(369,423)
141,048
—
228,375
—

The Company is neither under examination by any taxing authority, nor has it been notified of any impending examination. The Company’s tax years for its
Federal and State jurisdictions which are currently open for examination are the years of 2013 - 2016.
Note 13 - Subsequent Events
The Company’s management has evaluated subsequent events up to April 17, 2017, the date the financial statements were issued, pursuant to the requirements of
ASC 855 and has determined the following material subsequent events :
On January 3, 2017 $10,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 36,792 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.2718 per
share.
On January 6, 2017 $27,180 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 100,000 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.2718per
share.
On January 17, 2017 $15,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 55,188 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.2718 per
share.
On February 8, 2017 $10,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 44,092 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.2268 per
share.
On February 27, 2017 $10,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 65,359 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.153 per
share.
On February 28, 2017 $15,300 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 100,000 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.153 per
share.
On March 13, 2017 $5,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 69,444 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.072 per share.
On March 14, 2017 $10,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 129,199 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.0774 per
share.
On March 23, 2017 $5,000 of the Company’s convertible debt was converted to 77,161 shares of common stock at a conversion price of $0.0648 per
share.
On February 21, 2017, the Company entered into an investment agreement (the “Investment Agreement”) with Stewart Garner, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and the sole member of its board of directors. Pursuant to the terms of the Investment Agreement, the Company agreed to sell and issue, and Mr. Garner
subscribed for and purchased, 1,000 shares of the Company’s Series A Preferred Stock at a purchase price of $0.10 per share, or an aggregate of $100.
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On February 22, 2017, the Company filed a definitive information statement on Schedule 14C relating to an amendment to the Company’s amended and restated
articles of incorporation that would increase in the Company’s authorized capital stock from 125,000,000 shares to 500,000,000 shares, of which 495,000,000
shares will be common stock and 5,000,000 will be preferred stock and also a 1 for 30 reverse split of the Company’s common stock outstanding. This corporate
action was approved by the Financial Information Regulatory Association, Inc. (“FINRA”) on March 24, 2017 and effective as of March 27, 2017.
On April 7, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with Old Main Capital whereby it agreed to and issued a 10% Convertible
Promissory Note in the principal amount of up to $75,000 (the “April 2017 Old Main Note”) payable in tranches as follows: $19,166.66 consisting of $17,250 (less
$1,250 for Old Main Capital’s legal fees) paid to the Company in cash, and less original issue discount of $1,917. This amount will be paid within a reasonable
amount of time after the full execution of the Note and transactional documents related to the April 2017 Old Main Note. Old Main Capital may pay such
additional amounts of the Consideration and at such dates as mutually agreed upon by the Borrower and Old Main Capital. The maturity date for each tranche
funded shall be twelve (12) months from the effective date of each payment (each a “Maturity Date”) (or such earlier date as the April 2017 Old Main Note is
required or permitted to be repaid as provided hereunder, and is the date upon which the principal sum of each respective tranche, as well as any accrued and
unpaid interest and other fees relating to that respective tranche, shall be due and payable. The Old Main Capital has the right to convert all or any part of the
outstanding and unpaid principal and interest into shares of the Company’s common stock. The terms of the Convertible Note are as follows:
1.

The Old Main Capitals have the right from and after a 180 day delay from the Date of Issuance, and until any time until the Note is fully paid, to convert
any outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the Note, and accrued interest, into fully paid and non–assessable shares of Common (par value $.001 per
share). Bi–weekly amortization payments are due after 6 months.

2.

The Convertible Notes are convertible at a fixed rate of $[0.07] with no reset provisions.

3.

Beneficial ownership is limited to 9.99%.

4.

The Company may redeem the Notes for 150% of the redemption amount and accrued interest at any time upon ten days written notice to the Old Main
Capital.

5.

In the event of default the Note bears interest at 24% per annum.

Participation in Future Financing. Subject to any existing obligations of the Company, from the date hereof until the date that is the 12-month anniversary of the
date of the April 2017 Old Main Note, upon any issuance by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of its Common Stock or other securities convertible into
Common Stock, other than any issuance that is through a public underwritten offering or to an investor or a group of investors that already own Common Stock or
securities of the Company, Old Main Capital shall have the right to participate in the subsequent Financing in an amount up to 100% of such Old Main Capital’s
pro rata portion as defined below in the April 2017 Old Main Note on the same terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing, subject to
any existing obligations of the Company with respect to participation rights.
On April 7, 2017, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement with SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1 (“SBI”) whereby it agreed to and issued a 10%
Convertible Promissory Note in the principal amount of up to $75,000 (the “April 2017 SBI payable in tranches as follows: $19,166.66 consisting of $17,250 (less
$1,250 for SBI’s legal fees) paid to the Company in cash, and less original issue discount of $1,917. This amount will be paid within a reasonable amount of time
after the full execution of the Note and transactional documents related to the April 2017 SBI. SBI may pay such additional amounts of the Consideration and at
such dates as mutually agreed upon by the Borrower and SBI. The maturity date for each tranche funded shall be twelve (12) months from the effective date of
each payment (each a “Maturity Date”) (or such earlier date as the April 2017 SBI is required or permitted to be repaid as provided hereunder, and is the date upon
which the principal sum of each respective tranche, as well as any accrued and unpaid interest and other fees relating to that respective tranche, shall be due and
payable. The SBI has the right to convert all or any part of the outstanding and unpaid principal and interest into shares of the Company’s common stock. The
terms of the Convertible Note are as follows:
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1.

The SBI have the right from and after a 180 day delay from the Date of Issuance, and until any time until the Note is fully paid, to convert any
outstanding and unpaid principal portion of the Note, and accrued interest, into fully paid and non–assessable shares of Common (par value $.001 per
share). Bi–weekly amortization payments are due after 6 months.

2.

The Convertible Notes are convertible at a fixed rate of $0.07 with no reset provisions.

3.

Beneficial ownership is limited to 9.99%.

4.

The Company may redeem the Notes for 150% of the redemption amount and accrued interest at any time upon ten days written notice to the SBI.

5.

In the event of default the Note bears interest at 24% per annum.

Participation in Future Financing. Subject to any existing obligations of the Company, from the date hereof until the date that is the 12-month anniversary of the
date of the April 2017 SBI, upon any issuance by the Company or any of its subsidiaries of its Common Stock or other securities convertible into Common Stock,
other than any issuance that is through a public underwritten offering or to an investor or a group of investors that already own Common Stock or securities of the
Company, SBI shall have the right to participate in the subsequent Financing in an amount up to 100% of such SBI’s pro rata portion as defined below in the April
2017 SBI on the same terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing, subject to any existing obligations of the Company with respect to
participation rights.
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NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE
OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN
AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT
AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE
TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY
AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.
Original Issue Date: April 7, 2017
Principal Amount: $83,333.33

10% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

THIS 10% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE (the “ Note ”). is a duly authorized and validly issued convertible note of Lifelogger Technologies
Corp., a Nevada corporation, (the “ Company ”), having its principal place of business at 11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E, Palm Beach Gardens, FL
33410.
FOR VALUE RECEIVED , the Company promises to pay to Old Main Capital, LLC, or its registered assigns (the “ Holder ”), or shall have paid
pursuant to the terms hereunder, the principal sum of $83,333.33 (the “ Principal Amount ”), and to pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted and
then outstanding principal amount of this Note in accordance with the provisions hereof. The consideration to the Company for this Note is up to $75,000.00 (the “
Consideration ”), due to a prorated original issuance discount of approximately 10% (representing $8,333.33 of the Principal Amount) (the “ OID ”). The Holder
shall pay $17,250.00 of the Consideration (the “First Tranche”) (with the understanding that Holder shall withhold $1,250.00 at the closing of the First Tranche for
Holder’s legal fees) within a reasonable amount of time after the full execution of the Note and transactional documents related to this Note. At the closing of the
First Tranche, the outstanding principal amount under this Note shall be $19,166.66, consisting of the First Tranche plus the prorated portion of the OID. Holder
may pay such additional amounts of the Consideration and at such dates as mutually agreed upon by the Borrower and Holder. The maturity date for each tranche
funded shall be twelve (12) months from the effective date of each payment (each a “Maturity Date”) (or such earlier date as this Note is required or permitted to
be repaid as provided hereunder, and is the date upon which the principal sum of each respective tranche, as well as any accrued and unpaid interest and other fees
relating to that respective tranche, shall be due and payable. This Note is also subject to the following additional provisions:

Section 1 . Definitions . For the purposes hereof, in addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Note, (a) capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein
shall have the meanings set forth in the Purchase Agreement and (b) the following terms shall have the following meanings:
“ Alternate Consideration ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
“ Alternate Conversion Price ” shall mean 60% of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the 15 consecutive Trading Days ending on the
Trading Day that is immediately prior to the applicable Conversion Date.
“ Bankruptcy Event ” means any of the following events: (a) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 102(w) of Regulation S-X) thereof commences a case or other proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment of debt, relief of
debtors, dissolution, insolvency or liquidation or similar law of any jurisdiction relating to the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof, (b) there is
commenced against the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof any such case or proceeding that is not dismissed within 60 days after
commencement, (c) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof is adjudicated insolvent or bankrupt or any order of relief or other order approving
any such case or proceeding is entered, (d) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof suffers any appointment of any custodian or the like for it
or any substantial part of its property that is not discharged or stayed within 60 calendar days after such appointment, (e) the Company or any Significant
Subsidiary thereof makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (f) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof calls a meeting of its
creditors with a view to arranging a composition, adjustment or restructuring of its debts or (g) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof, by any
act or failure to act, expressly indicates its consent to, approval of or acquiescence in any of the foregoing or takes any corporate or other action for the
purpose of effecting any of the foregoing.
“ Beneficial Ownership Limitation ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(d).
“ Buy-In ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(b)(v).

“ Change of Control Transaction ” means the occurrence after the date hereof of any of (a) an acquisition after the date hereof by an individual or
legal entity or “group” (as described in Rule 13d-5(b)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act) of effective control (whether through legal or beneficial
ownership of capital stock of the Company, by contract or otherwise) of in excess of 33% of the voting securities of the Company (other than by means of
conversion or exercise of the Note and the Securities issued together with the Note), (b) the Company merges into or consolidates with any other Person,
or any Person merges into or consolidates with the Company and, after giving effect to such transaction, the stockholders of the Company immediately
prior to such transaction own less than 66% of the aggregate voting power of the Company or the successor entity of such transaction, (c) the Company
sells or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to another Person and the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to such transaction own less
than 66% of the aggregate voting power of the acquiring entity immediately after the transaction, (d) a replacement at one time or within a three year
period of more than one-half of the members of the Board of Directors which is not approved by a majority of those individuals who are members of the
Board of Directors on the Original Issue Date (or by those individuals who are serving as members of the Board of Directors on any date whose
nomination to the Board of Directors was approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors who are members on the date hereof), or (e)
the execution by the Company of an agreement to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound, providing for any of the events set forth in
clauses (a) through (d) above.
“ Common Stock ” shall mean the Company’s common stock.
“ Conversion ” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.
“ Conversion Date ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
“ Conversion Schedule ” means the Conversion Schedule in the form of Schedule 1 attached hereto.
“ Conversion Shares ” means, collectively, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms
hereof.
“ Note Register ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(b).
“ DTC ” means the Depository Trust Company.
“ DTC/FAST Program ” means the DTC’s Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program.
“ DWAC Eligible ” means that (a) the Common Stock is eligible at DTC for full services pursuant to DTC’s Operational Arrangements,
including without limitation transfer through DTC’s DWAC system, (b) the Company has been approved (without revocation) by the DTC’s underwriting
department, (c) the Transfer Agent is approved as an agent in the DTC/FAST Program, (d) the Conversion Shares are otherwise eligible for delivery via
DWAC, and (e) the Transfer Agent does not have a policy prohibiting or limiting delivery of the Conversion Shares via DWAC.

“ Event of Default ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).
“ Fixed Conversion Price ” shall mean the closing price of the Common Stock on April 7, 2017.
“ Fundamental Transaction ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
“ Late Fees ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(c).
“ Mandatory Default Amount ” means the payment of 150% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note and accrued and unpaid interest
hereon, in addition to the payment of all other amounts, costs, expenses and liquidated damages due in respect of this Note,
“ Florida Courts ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(d).
“ Notice of Conversion ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
“ Original Issue Date ” means the date of the first issuance of this Note, regardless of any transfers of any Note and regardless of the number of
instruments which may be issued to evidence such Note.
“ Purchase Agreement ” means the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2017 among the Company and the original Holder, as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms.
“ Registration Statement ” means a registration statement covering the resale of the Underlying Shares by each Holder.
“ Securities Act ” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
“ Share Delivery Date ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(c)(ii).
“ Successor Entity ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
Section 2 . Prepayment and Interest .
a) Payment of Interest in Cash or Kind . The Company shall pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted and then outstanding
principal amount of this Note at the rate of 10% per annum, which half of the base interest amount shall be guaranteed and the total amount of interest due
on the Note for a period of six (6) months shall be deemed earned as of the Original Issue Date. All interest payments hereunder will be payable in cash.
Accrued and unpaid interest shall be due on payable on each Conversion Date and on the Maturity Date, or as otherwise set forth herein.

b) Interest Calculations . Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30 calendar day periods, and shall
accrue daily commencing on the Original Issue Date until payment in full of the outstanding principal, together with all accrued and unpaid interest,
liquidated damages and other amounts which may become due hereunder, has been made. Interest hereunder will be paid to the Person in whose name
this Note is registered on the records of the Company regarding registration and transfers of this Note (the “ Note Register ”).
c) Late Fee . All overdue accrued and unpaid interest to be paid hereunder shall entail a late fee at an interest rate equal to the lesser of 18% per
annum or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law (the “ Late Fees ”) which shall accrue daily from the date such interest is due hereunder through
and including the date of actual payment in full.
d) Prepayment and Redemption . At any time upon ten (10) days written notice to the Holder, and provided the Holder accepts such notice in its
sole discretion, the Company may prepay any portion of the principal amount of this Note and any accrued and unpaid interest. If the Company exercises
its right to prepay the Note, the Company shall make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the sum of the then outstanding principal
amount of this Note and interest multiplied by 150% on the 10 th day after the respective written notice. The Holder may continue to convert up to 50% of
the total outstanding amount of the Note from the date notice of the prepayment is given until the date of the prepayment. However, in the event that the
prepayment amount is not paid to the Holder on the 10 th day after the respective written notice, it shall be considered an event of default under Section
6(a)(ii) of this Note, and the prepayment notice shall be treated as null and void. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, which is not cured within
ten (10) business days after the Holder provides written notice of such applicable Event of Default to the Company, the Holder shall have the right to
require the Company to make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the sum of the then outstanding principal amount of this Note and
interest multiplied by 150%.
Section 3. Registration of Transfers and Exchanges .
a) Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of convertible promissory notes of different
authorized denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be payable for such registration of transfer or
exchange.
b) Investment Representations . This Note has been issued subject to certain investment representations of the original Holder set forth in the
Purchase Agreement and may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with the Purchase Agreement and applicable federal and state securities
laws and regulations.

c) Reliance on Note Register . Prior to due presentment for transfer to the Company of this Note, the Company and any agent of the Company
may treat the Person in whose name this Note is duly registered on the Note Register as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as herein
provided and for all other purposes, whether or not this Note is overdue, and neither the Company nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the
contrary.
Section 4. Conversion .
a) Conversion . Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, at any time, beginning on the Original Issue Date, and until this Note is no
longer outstanding, this Note shall be convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at the option of the Holder (subject to the conversion
limitations set forth in Section 4(d) hereof). The conversion price in effect on any Conversion Date (as defined herein) shall be equal to the lesser of the
(i) Fixed Conversion Price or (ii) Alternate Conversion Price. The Holder shall effect conversions by delivering to the Company a Notice of Conversion,
the form of which is attached hereto as Annex A (each, a “ Notice of Conversion ”), specifying therein the principal amount of this Note to be converted
and the date on which such conversion shall be effected (such date, the “ Conversion Date ”). If no Conversion Date is specified in a Notice of
Conversion, the Conversion Date shall be the date that such Notice of Conversion is deemed delivered hereunder. No ink-original Notice of Conversion
shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Notice of Conversion form be required. To effect
conversions hereunder, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Note to the Company unless the entire principal amount of this Note,
plus all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, has been so converted. Conversions hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the outstanding principal
amount of this Note in an amount equal to the applicable conversion. The Holder and the Company shall maintain a Conversion Schedule showing the
principal amount(s) converted and the date of such conversion(s). The Company may deliver an objection to any Notice of Conversion within one (1)
Business Day of delivery of such Notice of Conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, the records of the Holder shall be controlling and
determinative in the absence of manifest error. The Holder, and any assignee by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of
the provisions of this paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note may
be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.
All expenses incurred by Holder for the issuance and clearing of the Common Stock into which this Note is convertible into shall immediately and
automatically be added to the balance of the Note at such time as the expenses are incurred by Holder.
b) With respect to the conversion pricing contained in this Note, all such determinations will be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend,
stock split, stock combination, reclassification or similar transaction that proportionately decreases or increases the Common Stock during such measuring
period. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue actual damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof and the Holder
shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance
and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such rights shall not prohibit the Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section
hereof or under applicable law.

c) Mechanics of Conversion .
i. Conversion Shares Issuable Upon Conversion of Principal Amount . The number of Conversion Shares issuable upon a conversion
hereunder shall be determined by the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the outstanding principal amount of this Note to be converted and any
accrued and unpaid interest to be converted by (y) the applicable conversion price as provided herein.
ii. Delivery of Certificate Upon Conversion . Not later than three (3) Trading Days after each Conversion Date (the “ Share Delivery
Date ”), the Company shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Holder (A) a certificate or certificates representing the Conversion Shares
which, on or after the date on which such Conversion Shares are eligible to be sold under Rule 144 without the need for current public
information and the Company has received an opinion of counsel to such effect reasonably acceptable to the Company (which opinion the
Company will be responsible for obtaining) shall be free of restrictive legends and trading restrictions (other than those which may then be
required by the Purchase Agreement) representing the number of Conversion Shares being acquired upon the conversion of this Note, and (B) a
bank check in the amount of accrued and unpaid interest (if the Company has elected or is required to pay accrued interest in cash). All
certificate or certificates required to be delivered by the Company under this Section 4(d) shall be delivered electronically through the
Depository Trust Company or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions. If the Conversion Date is prior to the date
on which such Conversion Shares are eligible to be sold under Rule 144 without the need for current public information the Conversion Shares
shall bear a restrictive legend in the following form, as appropriate:
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY
NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR
(B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY
ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”

Notwithstanding the foregoing, commencing on such date that the Conversion Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144 subject to
current public information requirements, the Company, upon request of the Holder, shall obtain a legal opinion to allow for such sales
under Rule 144.
iii. Failure to Deliver Certificates . If, in the case of any Notice of Conversion, such certificate or certificates are not delivered to or as
directed by the applicable Holder by the Share Delivery Date, the Holder shall be entitled to elect by written notice to the Company at any time
on or before its receipt of such certificate or certificates, to rescind such Conversion, in which event the Company shall promptly return to the
Holder any original Note delivered to the Company and the Holder shall promptly return to the Company the Common Stock certificates issued
to such Holder pursuant to the rescinded Conversion Notice.
iv. Obligation Absolute; Partial Liquidated Damages . The Company’s obligations to issue and deliver the Conversion Shares upon
conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or inaction by the Holder
to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against any Person or any action
to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder or any
other Person of any obligation to the Company or any violation or alleged violation of law by the Holder or any other Person, and irrespective of
any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such obligation of the Company to the Holder in connection with the issuance of such
Conversion Shares; provided , however , that such delivery shall not operate as a waiver by the Company of any such action the Company may
have against the Holder. In the event the Holder of this Note shall elect to convert any or all of the outstanding principal or interest amount
hereof, the Company may not refuse conversion based on any claim that the Holder or anyone associated or affiliated with the Holder has been
engaged in any violation of law, agreement or for any other reason, unless an injunction from a court, on notice to Holder, restraining and or
enjoining conversion of all or part of this Note shall have been sought and obtained, and the Company posts a surety bond for the benefit of the
Holder in the amount of 150% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note, which is subject to the injunction, which bond shall remain in
effect until the completion of arbitration/litigation of the underlying dispute and the proceeds of which shall be payable to the Holder to the
extent it obtains judgment. In the absence of such injunction, the Company shall issue Conversion Shares or, if applicable, cash, upon a properly
noticed conversion. If the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii) by the
Share Delivery Date, the Company shall pay to the Holder, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, $1,000 per Trading Day for each
Trading Day after such Share Delivery Date until such certificates are delivered or Holder rescinds such conversion. Nothing herein shall limit a
Holder’s right to pursue actual damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof for the Company’s failure to deliver
Conversion Shares within the period specified herein and the Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law
or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such rights shall not
prohibit the Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section hereof or under applicable law.

v. Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Conversion . In addition to any other rights available to the
Holder, if the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates by the Share Delivery Date pursuant to
Section 4(c)(ii), and if after such Share Delivery Date the Holder is required by its brokerage firm to purchase (in an open market transaction or
otherwise), or the Holder’s brokerage firm otherwise purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by the Holder of the
Conversion Shares which the Holder was entitled to receive upon the conversion relating to such Share Delivery Date (a “ Buy-In ”), then the
Company shall (A) pay in cash to the Holder (in addition to any other remedies available to or elected by the Holder) the amount, if any, by
which (x) the Holder’s total purchase price (including any brokerage commissions) for the Common Stock so purchased exceeds (y) the product
of (1) the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that the Holder was entitled to receive from the conversion at issue multiplied by (2) the
actual sale price at which the sell order giving rise to such purchase obligation was executed (including any brokerage commissions) and (B) at
the option of the Holder, either reissue (if surrendered) this Note in a principal amount equal to the principal amount of the attempted conversion
(in which case such conversion shall be deemed rescinded) or deliver to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock that would have
been issued if the Company had timely complied with its delivery requirements under Section 4(c)(ii). For example, if the Holder purchases
Common Stock having a total purchase price of $11,000 to cover a Buy-In with respect to an attempted conversion of this Note with respect to
which the actual sale price of the Conversion Shares (including any brokerage commissions) giving rise to such purchase obligation was a total
of $10,000 under clause (A) of the immediately preceding sentence, the Company shall be required to pay the Holder $1,000. The Holder shall
provide the Company written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Buy-In and, upon request of the Company,
evidence of the amount of such loss. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or
in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely
deliver certificates representing shares of Common Stock upon conversion of this Note as required pursuant to the terms hereof.

vi. Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion . The Company covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of
its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock a number of shares of Common Stock at least equal to 300% of the total amount of
Common Stock that this Note would be convertible into, in full and irrespective of beneficial ownership limitations, at any time, for the sole
purpose of issuance upon conversion of this Note and payment of interest on this Note, each as herein provided, free from preemptive rights or
any other actual contingent purchase rights of Persons other than the Holder (and the other holders of the Note), not less than such aggregate
number of shares of the Common Stock as shall (subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement) be issuable (taking into
account the adjustments and restrictions of Section 5) upon the conversion of the then outstanding principal amount of this Note and payment of
interest hereunder. The Company covenants that all shares of Common Stock that shall be so issuable shall, upon issue, be duly authorized,
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and, at such times as the Registration Statement covering such shares is then effective under the
Securities Act, will be registered for public resale in accordance with such Registration Statement.
vii. Fractional Shares . No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of this Note. As
to any fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such conversion, the Company shall at its election,
either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the applicable conversion price as
provided herein, or round up to the next whole share.
viii. Transfer Taxes and Expenses . The issuance of certificates for shares of the Common Stock on conversion of this Note shall be
made without charge to the Holder hereof for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be payable in respect of the issue or delivery of
such certificates, provided that, the Company shall not be required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the
issuance and delivery of any such certificate upon conversion in a name other than that of the Holder of this Note so converted and the Company
shall not be required to issue or deliver such certificates unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to
the Company the amount of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Company that such tax has been paid. The Company shall
pay all Transfer Agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Conversion.

d) Holder’s Conversion Limitations . The Company shall not effect any conversion of principal and/or interest of this Note, and a Holder shall
not have the right to convert any principal and/or interest of this Note, to the extent that after giving effect to the conversion set forth on the applicable
Notice of Conversion, the Holder (together with the Holder’s Affiliates, and any Persons acting as a group together with the Holder or any of the Holder’s
Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of the Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined below). For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the
number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its Affiliates shall include the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of this Note with respect to which such determination is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of Common Stock which are
issuable upon (i) conversion of the remaining, unconverted principal amount of this Note beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates and (ii)
exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise
analogous to the limitation contained herein (including, without limitation, any other promissory notes or the warrants as further defined in the securities
purchase agreement dated April 7, 2017) beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for
purposes of this Section 4(e), beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder. To the extent that the limitation contained in this Section 4(d) applies, the determination of whether this Note is convertible (in
relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which principal amount of this Note is convertible shall be in the sole
discretion of the Holder, and the submission of a Notice of Conversion shall be deemed to be the Holder’s determination of whether this Note may be
converted (in relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and which principal amount of this Note is convertible, in each
case subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation. To ensure compliance with this restriction, the Holder will be deemed to represent to the Company
each time it delivers a Notice of Conversion that such Notice of Conversion has not violated the restrictions set forth in this paragraph and the Company
shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the accuracy of such determination. In addition, a determination as to any group status as contemplated
above shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. For purposes of
this Section 4(e), in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock, the Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock as stated in the most recent of the following: (i) the Company’s most recent periodic or annual report filed with the Commission, as the
case may be, (ii) a more recent public announcement by the Company, or (iii) a more recent written notice by the Company or the Company’s transfer
agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Upon the written or oral request of a Holder, the Company shall within two
Trading Days confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this
Note, by the Holder or its Affiliates since the date as of which such number of outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. The “ Beneficial
Ownership Limitation ” shall be 9.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note held by the Holder. The Holder, upon not less than 61 days’ prior notice to the Company,
may increase or decrease the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 4(e), provided that the Beneficial Ownership Limitation in no
event exceeds 9.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common
Stock upon conversion of this Note held by the Holder and the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 4(e) shall continue to apply.
Any such increase or decrease will not be effective until the 61 st day after such notice is delivered to the Company. The Beneficial Ownership Limitation
provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this Section 4(d) to
correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation contained herein
or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall
apply to a successor holder of this Note.

Section 5 . Certain Adjustments .
a)

Intentionally Omitted.

b)

Intentionally Omitted.

c)

Intentionally Omitted.

d)

Intentionally Omitted.

e) Fundamental Transaction . If, at any time while this Note is outstanding, (i) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related
transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (ii) the Company, directly or indirectly, effects any sale,
lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (iii)
any, direct or indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Company or another Person) is completed pursuant to which holders
of Common Stock are permitted to sell, tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the holders of 50%
or more of the outstanding Common Stock, (iv) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any reclassification,
reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively converted
into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property, (v) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates a stock
or share purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of
arrangement) with another Person whereby such other Person acquires more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any
shares of Common Stock held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the other Persons making or party
to, such stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination) (each a “ Fundamental Transaction ”), then, upon any subsequent conversion of
this Note, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Conversion Share that would have been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior to
the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 4(e) on the conversion of this Note), the number of shares of
Common Stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation, and any additional consideration (the “
Alternate Consideration ”) receivable as a result of such Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which this
Note is convertible immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 4(d) on the conversion of this Note).
For purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the applicable conversion price shall be appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate
Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one (1) share of Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction,
and the Company shall apportion the applicable conversion price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value
of any different components of the Alternate Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be
received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any conversion
of this Note following such Fundamental Transaction. The Company shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental Transaction in which the
Company is not the survivor (the “ Successor Entity ”) to assume in writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other
Transaction Documents (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5(e) pursuant to written agreements in
form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and approved by the Holder (without unreasonable delay) prior to such Fundamental Transaction
and shall, at the option of the holder of this Note, deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Note a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written
instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Note which is convertible for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock of such
Successor Entity (or its parent entity) equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon conversion of this Note (without regard
to any limitations on the conversion of this Note) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a conversion price which applies the conversion price
hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental
Transaction and the value of such shares of capital stock, such number of shares of capital stock and such conversion price being for the purpose of
protecting the economic value of this Note immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction), and which is reasonably
satisfactory in form and substance to the Holder. Upon the occurrence of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be
substituted for (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Note and the other Transaction Documents
referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and power of the Company and shall assume all of
the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other Transaction Documents with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as
the Company herein.

f) Calculations . All calculations under this Section 5 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For
purposes of this Section 5, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number
of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Company) issued and outstanding.
g) Notice to the Holder .
i. Adjustment to Conversion Price . Whenever the Fixed Conversion Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 5, the
Company shall promptly deliver to each Holder a notice setting forth the Fixed Conversion Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief
statement of the facts requiring such adjustment.
ii. Notice to Allow Conversion by Holder . If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on
the Common Stock, (B) the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock, (C) the
Company shall authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital
stock of any class or of any rights, (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification
of the Common Stock, any consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Company, or any compulsory share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property or (E) the
Company shall authorize the voluntary or involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company, then, in each case, the
Company shall cause to be filed at each office or agency maintained for the purpose of conversion of this Note, and shall cause to be delivered to
the Holder at its last address as it shall appear upon the Note Register, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the applicable record or
effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution,
redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to
such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the date on which such reclassification, consolidation,
merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of which it is expected that holders of the
Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or other property deliverable upon
such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange, provided that the failure to deliver such notice or any defect therein
or in the delivery thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. To the extent that any notice
provided hereunder constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, the Company
shall simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K. The Holder shall remain entitled to
convert this Note during the 20-day period commencing on the date of such notice through the effective date of the event triggering such notice
except as may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.

Section 6 . Events of Default .
a) “ Event of Default ” means, wherever used herein, any of the following events (whatever the reason for such event and whether such event
shall be voluntary or involuntary or effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order of any court, or any order, rule or regulation
of any administrative or governmental body):
i. any default in the payment of (A) the principal amount of any Note or (B) interest, liquidated damages and other amounts owing to a
Holder on any Note, as and when the same shall become due and payable (whether on a Conversion Date or the Maturity Date or by acceleration
or otherwise) which default, solely in the case of an interest payment or other default under clause (B) above, is not cured within 3 Trading
Days;
ii. the Company shall materially fail to observe or perform any other covenant or agreement contained in the Note (other than a breach
by the Company of its obligations to deliver shares of Common Stock to the Holder upon conversion, which breach is addressed in clause (xi)
below) which failure is not cured, if possible to cure, within the earlier to occur of (A) 5 Trading Days after notice of such failure sent by the
Holder or by any other Holder to the Company and (B) 10 Trading Days after the Company has become or should have become aware of such
failure;
iii. a default or event of default (subject to any grace or cure period provided in the applicable agreement, document or instrument) shall
occur under any of the Transaction Documents.
iv. any representation or warranty made in this Note, any other Transaction Documents, any written statement pursuant hereto or
thereto or any other report, financial statement or certificate made or delivered to the Holder or any other Holder shall be untrue or incorrect in
any material respect as of the date when made or deemed made;
v. the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X) shall be subject to a
Bankruptcy Event;

vi. the Company or any Subsidiary shall default on any of its obligations under any mortgage, credit agreement or other facility,
indenture agreement, factoring agreement or other instrument under which there may be issued, or by which there may be secured or evidenced,
any indebtedness for borrowed money or money due under any long term leasing or factoring arrangement that (a) involves an obligation greater
than $50,000, whether such indebtedness now exists or shall hereafter be created, and (b) results in such indebtedness becoming or being
declared due and payable prior to the date on which it would otherwise become due and payable;
vii. the Common Stock shall not be eligible for listing or quotation for trading on a Trading Market and shall not be eligible to resume
listing or quotation for trading thereon within five Trading Days or the transfer of shares of Common Stock through the Depository Trust
Company System is no longer available or “chilled”;
viii. the Company shall be a party to any Change of Control Transaction or Fundamental Transaction or shall agree to sell or dispose of
all or in excess of 33% of its assets in one transaction or a series of related transactions (whether or not such sale would constitute a Change of
Control Transaction);
ix. the Company shall fail for any reason to deliver shares of Common Stock to the Holder prior to the third Trading Day after a
Conversion Date pursuant to Section 4(c) or the Company shall provide at any time notice to the Holder, including by way of public
announcement, of the Company’s intention to not honor requests for conversions of any Note in accordance with the terms hereof;
x. the Company fails to file with the Commission any required reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act such that it is not
in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) (or Rule 144(i)(2), if applicable);
xi. if the Company or any Significant Subsidiary shall: (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or
liquidator of it or any of its properties, (ii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, (iii) make a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors, (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent or be the subject of an order for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code or
any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute of any other jurisdiction or foreign
country, or (v) file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or to
take advantage or any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute, or an answer
admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any proceeding under any such law, or (vi) take or permit to be taken any action
in furtherance of or for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

xii. if any order, judgment or decree shall be entered, without the application, approval or consent of the Company or any Significant
Subsidiary, by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition seeking liquidation or reorganization of the Company or any Subsidiary,
or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of the Company or any Subsidiary, or of all or any substantial part of its assets, and such
order, judgment or decree shall continue unstayed and in effect for any period of sixty (60) days;
xiii. the occurrence of any levy upon or seizure or attachment of, or any uninsured loss of or damage to, any property of the Company
or any Subsidiary having an aggregate fair value or repair cost (as the case may be) in excess of $100,000 individually or in the aggregate, and
any such levy, seizure or attachment shall not be set aside, bonded or discharged within thirty (30) days after the date thereof;
xiv. the Company shall fail to maintain sufficient reserved shares pursuant to Section 4.10 of the Purchase Agreement;
xv. any monetary judgment, writ or similar final process shall be entered or filed against the Company, any subsidiary or any of their
respective property or other assets for more than $50,000, and such judgment, writ or similar final process shall remain unvacated, unbonded or
unstayed for a period of 45 calendar days;
xvi. a breach or default by the Company of any covenant or other term or condition contained in any of the other financial instrument
currently issued or hereafter issued by the Company, to the Holder, including but not limited to promissory notes (the “Other Agreements”), after
the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at the option of the Holder, be considered a default under this Note, in which
event the Holder shall be entitled (but in no event required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note by reason
of a default under said Other Agreement;
xvii. any attempt by the Company or its officers, directors, and/or affiliates to transmit, convey, disclose, or any actual transmittal,
conveyance, or disclosure by the Company or its officers, directors, and/or affiliates of, material non-public information concerning the
Company, to the Holder or its successors and assigns, which is not immediately cured by Company’s filing of a Form 8-K pursuant to
Regulation FD on that same date;
xviii. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other related or companion documents, a breach or default
by the Company of any covenant or other term or condition contained in any of the other financial instrument, including but not limited to all
convertible promissory notes and equity lines, currently issued, or hereafter issued, by the Company, to the Holder or any other 3 rd party (the
“Other Agreements”), after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at the option of the Holder, be considered a
default under this Note, in which event the Holder shall be entitled to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note by
reason of a default under said Other Agreement or hereunder; or

b) Remedies Upon Event of Default . Subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation as set forth in Section 4(d), if any Event of Default occurs,
then the outstanding principal amount of this Note, plus accrued but unpaid interest, liquidated damages and other amounts owing in respect thereof
through the date of acceleration, shall become, at the Holder’s election, immediately due and payable in cash at the Mandatory Default Amount. After the
occurrence of any Event of Default that results in the eventual acceleration of this Note, the interest rate on this Note shall accrue at an additional interest
rate equal to the lesser of 2% per month (24% per annum) or the maximum rate permitted under applicable law. Upon the payment in full of the
Mandatory Default Amount, the Holder shall promptly surrender this Note to or as directed by the Company. In connection with such acceleration
described herein, the Holder need not provide, and the Company hereby waives, any presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, and the
Holder may immediately and without expiration of any grace period enforce any and all of its rights and remedies hereunder and all other remedies
available to it under applicable law. Such acceleration may be rescinded and annulled by Holder at any time prior to payment hereunder and the Holder
shall have all rights as a holder of the Note until such time, if any, as the Holder receives full payment pursuant to this Section 6(b). No such rescission or
annulment shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon.
Section7 . Miscellaneous .
a) Notices . Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Holder hereunder, including, without limitation, any
Notice of Conversion, shall be in writing and delivered personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, addressed to
the Company, at the address set forth above, or such other facsimile number or address as the Company may specify for such purposes by notice to the
Holder delivered in accordance with this Section 7(a). Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Company
hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service addressed to each Holder
at the facsimile number or address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company, or if no such facsimile number or address appears on the books
of the Company, at the principal place of business of such Holder, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Any notice or other communication or
deliveries hereunder shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via
facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto prior to 12:00 p.m. (EST time) on any date, (ii) the next Trading Day
after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached
hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 12:00 p.m. (EST time) on any Trading Day, (iii) the second Trading Day following the date of
mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service or (iv) upon actual receipt by the party to whom such notice is required to be
given.

b) Absolute Obligation . Except as expressly provided herein, no provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company,
which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, liquidated damages and accrued interest, as applicable, on this Note at the time, place, and
rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed. This Note is a direct debt obligation of the Company. This Note ranks pari passu with all other
promissory notes now or hereafter issued under the terms set forth herein.
c) Lost or Mutilated Note . If this Note shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall execute and deliver, in exchange and
substitution for and upon cancellation of a mutilated Note, or in lieu of or in substitution for a lost, stolen or destroyed Note, a new Note for the principal
amount of this Note so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, but only upon receipt of evidence of such loss, theft or destruction of such Note, and of the
ownership hereof, reasonably satisfactory to the Company.
d) Governing Law . All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Note shall be governed by and
construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Florida, without regard to the principles of conflict of laws thereof. Each party
agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretation, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by any of the Transaction
Documents (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective Affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents) shall be commenced
in the state and federal courts sitting in Broward County, Florida (the “ Florida Courts ”). Each party hereto hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive
jurisdiction of the Florida Courts for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated hereby or
discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the Transaction Documents), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert
in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of such Florida Courts, or such Florida Courts are improper
or inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in any
such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at
the address in effect for notices to it under this Note and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof.
Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by applicable law. Each party
hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any and all right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding arising out of
or relating to this Note or the transactions contemplated hereby. If any party shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of this
Note, then the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its attorneys fees and other costs and expenses
incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.

e) Waiver . Any waiver by the Company or the Holder of a breach of any provision of this Note shall not operate as or be construed to be a
waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any other provision of this Note. The failure of the Company or the Holder to insist upon
strict adherence to any term of this Note on one or more occasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party of the right thereafter to insist
upon strict adherence to that term or any other term of this Note on any other occasion. Any waiver by the Company or the Holder must be in writing.
f) Severability . If any provision of this Note is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the balance of this Note shall remain in effect, and if any
provision is inapplicable to any Person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other Persons and circumstances. If it shall be found
that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the applicable law governing usury, the applicable rate of interest due hereunder
shall automatically be lowered to equal the maximum rate of interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to the extent that it may
lawfully do so) that it shall not at any time insist upon, plead, or in any manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay, extension
or usury law or other law which would prohibit or forgive the Company from paying all or any portion of the principal of or interest on this Note as
contemplated herein, wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter in force, or which may affect the covenants or the performance of this Note, and the
Company (to the extent it may lawfully do so) hereby expressly waives all benefits or advantage of any such law, and covenants that it will not, by resort
to any such law, hinder, delay or impede the execution of any power herein granted to the Holder, but will suffer and permit the execution of every such
as though no such law has been enacted.
g) Remedies, Characterizations, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this Note shall be cumulative and
in addition to all other remedies available under this Note and any of the other Transaction Documents at law or in equity (including a decree of specific
performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the Holder’s right to pursue actual and consequential damages for any failure by
the Company to comply with the terms of this Note. The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this
instrument other than as expressly provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, conversion and the like (and the
computation thereof) shall be the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided herein, be subject to any other
obligation of the Company (or the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any
such breach or threatened breach, the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any such breach or
any such threatened breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall
provide all information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the Company’s compliance with
the terms and conditions of this Note.

h) Next Business Day . Whenever any payment or other obligation hereunder shall be due on a day other than a Business Day, such payment
shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day.
i) Headings . The headings contained herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Note and shall not be deemed to limit or
affect any of the provisions hereof.
j) Section 3(a)(9) and 3(a)(10) Transactions . The express written consent of the Holder must be obtained by the Company, if at any time while
this Note is outstanding, the Company seeks to enter into a transaction structured in accordance with, based upon, or related or pursuant to, in whole or in
part, Section 3(a)(9) or 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act.
Section 8 . Participation in Future Financing .
a) Subject to any existing obligations of the Company, from the date hereof until the date that is the 12-month anniversary of the date
of this Note, upon any issuance by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock, Common Stock Equivalents or debt for cash consideration,
indebtedness or a combination of units hereof, other than any issuance that is through a public underwritten offering or to an investor or a group of
investors that already own Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents (a “ Subsequent Financing ”), each Holder shall have the right to participate in
the Subsequent Financing in an amount up to 100% of such Holder’s Pro Rata Portion (as defined below) (the “ Participation Maximum ”) on the same
terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing, subject to any existing obligations of the Company with respect to participation
rights.
b) At least five (5) Trading Days prior to the closing of the Subsequent Financing, the Company shall deliver to each Holder a written
notice of its intention to effect a Subsequent Financing (“ Pre-Notice ”), which Pre-Notice shall ask such Holder if it wants to review the details of such
financing (such additional notice, a “ Subsequent Financing Notice ”). Upon the request of a Holder wit hin two (2) Trading Days after the Pre-Notice,
and only upon a request by such Holder, for a Subsequent Financing Notice, the Company shall promptly, but no later than one (1) Trading Day after
such request, deliver a Subsequent Financing Notice to such Holder. The Subsequent Financing Notice shall describe in reasonable detail the proposed
terms of such Subsequent Financing, the amount of proceeds intended to be raised thereunder and the Person or Persons through or with whom such
Subsequent Financing is proposed to be effected and shall include a term sheet or similar document relating thereto as an attachment.

c) Any Holder desiring to participate in such Subsequent Financing must provide written notice to the Company no later than two (2)
Trading Days after delivery of such Subsequent Financing Notice that such Holder is willing to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the amount of
such Holder’s participation, and representing and warranting that such Holder has such funds ready, willing, and available for investment on the terms
set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice.
d) If notifications by the Holders of their willingness to participate in the Subsequent Financing (or to cause their designees to
participate) is, in the aggregate, less than the total amount of the Subsequent Financing, then the Company may effect the remaining portion of such
Subsequent Financing on the terms and with the Persons set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice.
e) If the Company receives responses to a Subsequent Financing Notice from Holders seeking to purchase more than the aggregate
amount of the Participation Maximum, each such Holder shall have the right to purchase its Pro Rata Portion of the Participation Maximum. “ Pro Rata
Portion ” means the ratio of (x) the amount of Notes held by a Holder participating under this Section 8 and (y) $80,000.00.
f) The Company must provide the Holders with a second Subsequent Financing Notice, and the Holders will again have the right of
participation set forth above in this Section 8, if the Subsequent Financing subject to the initial Subsequent Financing Notice is not consummated for any
reason on the terms set forth in such Subsequent Financing Notice within thirty (30) Trading Days after the date of the initial Subsequent Financing
Notice.
g) The Company and each Holder agree that if any Holder elects to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the transaction documents
related to the Subsequent Financing shall not include any term or provision whereby such Holder shall be required to agree to any restrictions on trading
as to any of the Securities purchased hereunder or be required to consent to any amendment to or termination of, or grant any waiver, release or the like
under or in connection with, this Note, without the prior written consent of such Holder.
h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 8 and unless otherwise agreed to by such Holder, the Company shall either
confirm in writing to such Holder that the transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been abandoned or shall publicly disclose its
intention to issue the securities in the Subsequent Financing, in either case in such a manner such that such Holder will not be in possession of any
material, non-public information, by the tenth (10th) Business Day following delivery of the Subsequent Financing Notice. If by such tenth (10th)
Business Day, no public disclosure regarding a transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been made, and no notice regarding the
abandonment of such transaction has been received by such Holder, such transaction shall be deemed to have been abandoned and such Holder shall not
be deemed to be in possession of any material, non-public information with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 8 shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance.
*********************
(Signature Pages Follow)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by a duly authorized officer as of the date first above indicated.

LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
By:
/s/ Stewart Garner
Name: Stewart Garner
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile No. for delivery of Notices:_______________

ANNEX A
NOTICE OF CONVERSION
The undersigned hereby elects to convert principal under the 10% convertible promissory note issued on April 7, 2017 by Lifelogger Technologies Corp.,
a Nevada corporation (the “ Company ”), into shares of common stock (the “ Common Stock ”), of the Company according to the conditions hereof, as of the date
written below. If shares of Common Stock are to be issued in the name of a person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable
with respect thereto and is delivering herewith such certificates and opinions as reasonably requested by the Company in accordance therewith. No fee will be
charged to the holder for any conversion, except for such transfer taxes, if any.
By the delivery of this Notice of Conversion the undersigned represents and warrants to the Company that its ownership of the Common Stock does not
exceed the amounts specified under Section 4 of this Note, as determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act.
The undersigned agrees to comply with the prospectus delivery requirements under the applicable securities laws in connection with any transfer of the
aforesaid shares of Common Stock.
Conversion calculations:
Date to Effect Conversion:
Principal Amount of Note to be Converted:
Payment of Interest in Common Stock __ yes __ no
If yes, $_____ of Interest Accrued on Account of Conversion at Issue.
Number of shares of Common Stock to be issued:
Signature:
Name:
Delivery Instructions:

Schedule 1
CONVERSION SCHEDULE
This 10% convertible promissory note issued on April 7, 2017 in the original principal amount of $83,333.33 is issued by Lifelogger Technologies Corp., a Nevada
corporation. This Conversion Schedule reflects conversions made under Section 4 of the above referenced Note.
Dated:

Date of Conversion
(or for first entry,
Original Issue Date)

Amount of
Conversion

Aggregate Principal
Amount Remaining Subsequent to
Conversion
(or original
Principal Amount)

Company Attest

NEITHER THIS SECURITY NOR THE SECURITIES INTO WHICH THIS SECURITY IS CONVERTIBLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE “SECURITIES ACT”), AND, ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE
OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN
AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT
AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS AS EVIDENCED BY A LEGAL OPINION OF COUNSEL TO THE
TRANSFEROR TO SUCH EFFECT, THE SUBSTANCE OF WHICH SHALL BE REASONABLY ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY. THIS SECURITY
AND THE SECURITIES ISSUABLE UPON CONVERSION OF THIS SECURITY MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN
ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN SECURED BY SUCH SECURITIES.
Original Issue Date: April 7, 2017
Principal Amount: $83,333.33

10% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE

THIS 10% CONVERTIBLE PROMISSORY NOTE (the “ Note ”). is a duly authorized and validly issued convertible note of Lifelogger Technologies
Corp., a Nevada corporation, (the “ Company ”), having its principal place of business at 11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E, Palm Beach Gardens, FL
33410.
FOR VALUE RECEIVED , the Company promises to pay to SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1, or its registered assigns (the “ Holder ”), or shall have paid
pursuant to the terms hereunder, the principal sum of $83,333.33 (the “ Principal Amount ”), and to pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted and
then outstanding principal amount of this Note in accordance with the provisions hereof. The consideration to the Company for this Note is up to $75,000.00 (the “
Consideration ”), due to a prorated original issuance discount of approximately 10% (representing $8,333.33 of the Principal Amount) (the “ OID ”). The Holder
shall pay $17,250.00 of the Consideration (the “First Tranche”) (with the understanding that Holder shall withhold $1,250.00 at the closing of the First Tranche for
Holder’s legal fees) within a reasonable amount of time after the full execution of the Note and transactional documents related to this Note. At the closing of the
First Tranche, the outstanding principal amount under this Note shall be $19,166.66, consisting of the First Tranche plus the prorated portion of the OID. Holder
may pay such additional amounts of the Consideration and at such dates as mutually agreed upon by the Borrower and Holder. The maturity date for each tranche
funded shall be twelve (12) months from the effective date of each payment (each a “Maturity Date”) (or such earlier date as this Note is required or permitted to
be repaid as provided hereunder, and is the date upon which the principal sum of each respective tranche, as well as any accrued and unpaid interest and other fees
relating to that respective tranche, shall be due and payable. This Note is also subject to the following additional provisions:

Section 1 . Definitions . For the purposes hereof, in addition to the terms defined elsewhere in this Note, (a) capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein
shall have the meanings set forth in the Purchase Agreement and (b) the following terms shall have the following meanings:
“ Alternate Consideration ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
“ Alternate Conversion Price ” shall mean 60% of the lowest VWAP of the Common Stock for the 15 consecutive Trading Days ending on the
Trading Day that is immediately prior to the applicable Conversion Date.
“ Bankruptcy Event ” means any of the following events: (a) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 102(w) of Regulation S-X) thereof commences a case or other proceeding under any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment of debt, relief of
debtors, dissolution, insolvency or liquidation or similar law of any jurisdiction relating to the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof, (b) there is
commenced against the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof any such case or proceeding that is not dismissed within 60 days after
commencement, (c) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof is adjudicated insolvent or bankrupt or any order of relief or other order approving
any such case or proceeding is entered, (d) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof suffers any appointment of any custodian or the like for it
or any substantial part of its property that is not discharged or stayed within 60 calendar days after such appointment, (e) the Company or any Significant
Subsidiary thereof makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (f) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof calls a meeting of its
creditors with a view to arranging a composition, adjustment or restructuring of its debts or (g) the Company or any Significant Subsidiary thereof, by any
act or failure to act, expressly indicates its consent to, approval of or acquiescence in any of the foregoing or takes any corporate or other action for the
purpose of effecting any of the foregoing.
“ Beneficial Ownership Limitation ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(d).
“ Buy-In ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(b)(v).

“ Change of Control Transaction ” means the occurrence after the date hereof of any of (a) an acquisition after the date hereof by an individual or
legal entity or “group” (as described in Rule 13d-5(b)(1) promulgated under the Exchange Act) of effective control (whether through legal or beneficial
ownership of capital stock of the Company, by contract or otherwise) of in excess of 33% of the voting securities of the Company (other than by means of
conversion or exercise of the Note and the Securities issued together with the Note), (b) the Company merges into or consolidates with any other Person,
or any Person merges into or consolidates with the Company and, after giving effect to such transaction, the stockholders of the Company immediately
prior to such transaction own less than 66% of the aggregate voting power of the Company or the successor entity of such transaction, (c) the Company
sells or transfers all or substantially all of its assets to another Person and the stockholders of the Company immediately prior to such transaction own less
than 66% of the aggregate voting power of the acquiring entity immediately after the transaction, (d) a replacement at one time or within a three year
period of more than one-half of the members of the Board of Directors which is not approved by a majority of those individuals who are members of the
Board of Directors on the Original Issue Date (or by those individuals who are serving as members of the Board of Directors on any date whose
nomination to the Board of Directors was approved by a majority of the members of the Board of Directors who are members on the date hereof), or (e)
the execution by the Company of an agreement to which the Company is a party or by which it is bound, providing for any of the events set forth in
clauses (a) through (d) above.
“ Common Stock ” shall mean the Company’s common stock.
“ Conversion ” shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in Section 4.
“ Conversion Date ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
“ Conversion Schedule ” means the Conversion Schedule in the form of Schedule 1 attached hereto.
“ Conversion Shares ” means, collectively, the shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms
hereof.
“ Note Register ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(b).
“ DTC ” means the Depository Trust Company.
“ DTC/FAST Program ” means the DTC’s Fast Automated Securities Transfer Program.
“ DWAC Eligible ” means that (a) the Common Stock is eligible at DTC for full services pursuant to DTC’s Operational Arrangements,
including without limitation transfer through DTC’s DWAC system, (b) the Company has been approved (without revocation) by the DTC’s underwriting
department, (c) the Transfer Agent is approved as an agent in the DTC/FAST Program, (d) the Conversion Shares are otherwise eligible for delivery via
DWAC, and (e) the Transfer Agent does not have a policy prohibiting or limiting delivery of the Conversion Shares via DWAC.

“ Event of Default ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 6(a).
“ Fixed Conversion Price ” shall mean the closing price of the Common Stock on April 7, 2017.
“ Fundamental Transaction ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
“ Late Fees ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 2(c).
“ Mandatory Default Amount ” means the payment of 150% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note and accrued and unpaid interest
hereon, in addition to the payment of all other amounts, costs, expenses and liquidated damages due in respect of this Note,
“ Florida Courts ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 7(d).
“ Notice of Conversion ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(a).
“ Original Issue Date ” means the date of the first issuance of this Note, regardless of any transfers of any Note and regardless of the number of
instruments which may be issued to evidence such Note.
“ Purchase Agreement ” means the Securities Purchase Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2017 among the Company and the original Holder, as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time in accordance with its terms.
“ Registration Statement ” means a registration statement covering the resale of the Underlying Shares by each Holder.
“ Securities Act ” means the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder.
“ Share Delivery Date ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 4(c)(ii).
“ Successor Entity ” shall have the meaning set forth in Section 5(e).
Section 2 . Prepayment and Interest .
a) Payment of Interest in Cash or Kind . The Company shall pay interest to the Holder on the aggregate unconverted and then outstanding
principal amount of this Note at the rate of 10% per annum, which half of the base interest amount shall be guaranteed and the total amount of interest due
on the Note for a period of six (6) months shall be deemed earned as of the Original Issue Date. All interest payments hereunder will be payable in cash.
Accrued and unpaid interest shall be due on payable on each Conversion Date and on the Maturity Date, or as otherwise set forth herein.

b) Interest Calculations . Interest shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year, consisting of twelve 30 calendar day periods, and shall
accrue daily commencing on the Original Issue Date until payment in full of the outstanding principal, together with all accrued and unpaid interest,
liquidated damages and other amounts which may become due hereunder, has been made. Interest hereunder will be paid to the Person in whose name
this Note is registered on the records of the Company regarding registration and transfers of this Note (the “ Note Register ”).
c) Late Fee . All overdue accrued and unpaid interest to be paid hereunder shall entail a late fee at an interest rate equal to the lesser of 18% per
annum or the maximum rate permitted by applicable law (the “ Late Fees ”) which shall accrue daily from the date such interest is due hereunder through
and including the date of actual payment in full.
d) Prepayment and Redemption . At any time upon ten (10) days written notice to the Holder, and provided the Holder accepts such notice in its
sole discretion, the Company may prepay any portion of the principal amount of this Note and any accrued and unpaid interest. If the Company exercises
its right to prepay the Note, the Company shall make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the sum of the then outstanding principal
amount of this Note and interest multiplied by 150% on the 10 th day after the respective written notice. The Holder may continue to convert up to 50% of
the total outstanding amount of the Note from the date notice of the prepayment is given until the date of the prepayment. However, in the event that the
prepayment amount is not paid to the Holder on the 10 th day after the respective written notice, it shall be considered an event of default under Section
6(a)(ii) of this Note, and the prepayment notice shall be treated as null and void. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, which is not cured within
ten (10) business days after the Holder provides written notice of such applicable Event of Default to the Company, the Holder shall have the right to
require the Company to make payment to the Holder of an amount in cash equal to the sum of the then outstanding principal amount of this Note and
interest multiplied by 150%.
Section 3. Registration of Transfers and Exchanges .
a) Different Denominations . This Note is exchangeable for an equal aggregate principal amount of convertible promissory notes of different
authorized denominations, as requested by the Holder surrendering the same. No service charge will be payable for such registration of transfer or
exchange.
b) Investment Representations . This Note has been issued subject to certain investment representations of the original Holder set forth in the
Purchase Agreement and may be transferred or exchanged only in compliance with the Purchase Agreement and applicable federal and state securities
laws and regulations.

c) Reliance on Note Register . Prior to due presentment for transfer to the Company of this Note, the Company and any agent of the Company
may treat the Person in whose name this Note is duly registered on the Note Register as the owner hereof for the purpose of receiving payment as herein
provided and for all other purposes, whether or not this Note is overdue, and neither the Company nor any such agent shall be affected by notice to the
contrary.
Section 4. Conversion .
a) Conversion . Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, at any time, beginning on the Original Issue Date, and until this Note is no
longer outstanding, this Note shall be convertible, in whole or in part, into shares of Common Stock at the option of the Holder (subject to the conversion
limitations set forth in Section 4(d) hereof). The conversion price in effect on any Conversion Date (as defined herein) shall be equal to the lesser of the
(i) Fixed Conversion Price or (ii) Alternate Conversion Price. The Holder shall effect conversions by delivering to the Company a Notice of Conversion,
the form of which is attached hereto as Annex A (each, a “ Notice of Conversion ”), specifying therein the principal amount of this Note to be converted
and the date on which such conversion shall be effected (such date, the “ Conversion Date ”). If no Conversion Date is specified in a Notice of
Conversion, the Conversion Date shall be the date that such Notice of Conversion is deemed delivered hereunder. No ink-original Notice of Conversion
shall be required, nor shall any medallion guarantee (or other type of guarantee or notarization) of any Notice of Conversion form be required. To effect
conversions hereunder, the Holder shall not be required to physically surrender this Note to the Company unless the entire principal amount of this Note,
plus all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, has been so converted. Conversions hereunder shall have the effect of lowering the outstanding principal
amount of this Note in an amount equal to the applicable conversion. The Holder and the Company shall maintain a Conversion Schedule showing the
principal amount(s) converted and the date of such conversion(s). The Company may deliver an objection to any Notice of Conversion within one (1)
Business Day of delivery of such Notice of Conversion. In the event of any dispute or discrepancy, the records of the Holder shall be controlling and
determinative in the absence of manifest error. The Holder, and any assignee by acceptance of this Note, acknowledge and agree that, by reason of
the provisions of this paragraph, following conversion of a portion of this Note, the unpaid and unconverted principal amount of this Note may
be less than the amount stated on the face hereof.
All expenses incurred by Holder for the issuance and clearing of the Common Stock into which this Note is convertible into shall immediately and
automatically be added to the balance of the Note at such time as the expenses are incurred by Holder.
b) With respect to the conversion pricing contained in this Note, all such determinations will be appropriately adjusted for any stock dividend,
stock split, stock combination, reclassification or similar transaction that proportionately decreases or increases the Common Stock during such measuring
period. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue actual damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof and the Holder
shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance
and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such rights shall not prohibit the Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section
hereof or under applicable law.

c) Mechanics of Conversion .
i. Conversion Shares Issuable Upon Conversion of Principal Amount . The number of Conversion Shares issuable upon a conversion
hereunder shall be determined by the quotient obtained by dividing (x) the outstanding principal amount of this Note to be converted and any
accrued and unpaid interest to be converted by (y) the applicable conversion price as provided herein.
ii. Delivery of Certificate Upon Conversion . Not later than three (3) Trading Days after each Conversion Date (the “ Share Delivery
Date ”), the Company shall deliver, or cause to be delivered, to the Holder (A) a certificate or certificates representing the Conversion Shares
which, on or after the date on which such Conversion Shares are eligible to be sold under Rule 144 without the need for current public
information and the Company has received an opinion of counsel to such effect reasonably acceptable to the Company (which opinion the
Company will be responsible for obtaining) shall be free of restrictive legends and trading restrictions (other than those which may then be
required by the Purchase Agreement) representing the number of Conversion Shares being acquired upon the conversion of this Note, and (B) a
bank check in the amount of accrued and unpaid interest (if the Company has elected or is required to pay accrued interest in cash). All
certificate or certificates required to be delivered by the Company under this Section 4(d) shall be delivered electronically through the
Depository Trust Company or another established clearing corporation performing similar functions. If the Conversion Date is prior to the date
on which such Conversion Shares are eligible to be sold under Rule 144 without the need for current public information the Conversion Shares
shall bear a restrictive legend in the following form, as appropriate:
“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY
NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR
(B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY
ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”

Notwithstanding the foregoing, commencing on such date that the Conversion Shares are eligible for sale under Rule 144 subject to
current public information requirements, the Company, upon request of the Holder, shall obtain a legal opinion to allow for such sales
under Rule 144.
iii. Failure to Deliver Certificates . If, in the case of any Notice of Conversion, such certificate or certificates are not delivered to or as
directed by the applicable Holder by the Share Delivery Date, the Holder shall be entitled to elect by written notice to the Company at any time
on or before its receipt of such certificate or certificates, to rescind such Conversion, in which event the Company shall promptly return to the
Holder any original Note delivered to the Company and the Holder shall promptly return to the Company the Common Stock certificates issued
to such Holder pursuant to the rescinded Conversion Notice.
iv. Obligation Absolute; Partial Liquidated Damages . The Company’s obligations to issue and deliver the Conversion Shares upon
conversion of this Note in accordance with the terms hereof are absolute and unconditional, irrespective of any action or inaction by the Holder
to enforce the same, any waiver or consent with respect to any provision hereof, the recovery of any judgment against any Person or any action
to enforce the same, or any setoff, counterclaim, recoupment, limitation or termination, or any breach or alleged breach by the Holder or any
other Person of any obligation to the Company or any violation or alleged violation of law by the Holder or any other Person, and irrespective of
any other circumstance which might otherwise limit such obligation of the Company to the Holder in connection with the issuance of such
Conversion Shares; provided , however , that such delivery shall not operate as a waiver by the Company of any such action the Company may
have against the Holder. In the event the Holder of this Note shall elect to convert any or all of the outstanding principal or interest amount
hereof, the Company may not refuse conversion based on any claim that the Holder or anyone associated or affiliated with the Holder has been
engaged in any violation of law, agreement or for any other reason, unless an injunction from a court, on notice to Holder, restraining and or
enjoining conversion of all or part of this Note shall have been sought and obtained, and the Company posts a surety bond for the benefit of the
Holder in the amount of 150% of the outstanding principal amount of this Note, which is subject to the injunction, which bond shall remain in
effect until the completion of arbitration/litigation of the underlying dispute and the proceeds of which shall be payable to the Holder to the
extent it obtains judgment. In the absence of such injunction, the Company shall issue Conversion Shares or, if applicable, cash, upon a properly
noticed conversion. If the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates pursuant to Section 4(c)(ii) by the
Share Delivery Date, the Company shall pay to the Holder, in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, $1,000 per Trading Day for each
Trading Day after such Share Delivery Date until such certificates are delivered or Holder rescinds such conversion. Nothing herein shall limit a
Holder’s right to pursue actual damages or declare an Event of Default pursuant to Section 6 hereof for the Company’s failure to deliver
Conversion Shares within the period specified herein and the Holder shall have the right to pursue all remedies available to it hereunder, at law
or in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief. The exercise of any such rights shall not
prohibit the Holder from seeking to enforce damages pursuant to any other Section hereof or under applicable law.

v. Compensation for Buy-In on Failure to Timely Deliver Certificates Upon Conversion . In addition to any other rights available to the
Holder, if the Company fails for any reason to deliver to the Holder such certificate or certificates by the Share Delivery Date pursuant to
Section 4(c)(ii), and if after such Share Delivery Date the Holder is required by its brokerage firm to purchase (in an open market transaction or
otherwise), or the Holder’s brokerage firm otherwise purchases, shares of Common Stock to deliver in satisfaction of a sale by the Holder of the
Conversion Shares which the Holder was entitled to receive upon the conversion relating to such Share Delivery Date (a “ Buy-In ”), then the
Company shall (A) pay in cash to the Holder (in addition to any other remedies available to or elected by the Holder) the amount, if any, by
which (x) the Holder’s total purchase price (including any brokerage commissions) for the Common Stock so purchased exceeds (y) the product
of (1) the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock that the Holder was entitled to receive from the conversion at issue multiplied by (2) the
actual sale price at which the sell order giving rise to such purchase obligation was executed (including any brokerage commissions) and (B) at
the option of the Holder, either reissue (if surrendered) this Note in a principal amount equal to the principal amount of the attempted conversion
(in which case such conversion shall be deemed rescinded) or deliver to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock that would have
been issued if the Company had timely complied with its delivery requirements under Section 4(c)(ii). For example, if the Holder purchases
Common Stock having a total purchase price of $11,000 to cover a Buy-In with respect to an attempted conversion of this Note with respect to
which the actual sale price of the Conversion Shares (including any brokerage commissions) giving rise to such purchase obligation was a total
of $10,000 under clause (A) of the immediately preceding sentence, the Company shall be required to pay the Holder $1,000. The Holder shall
provide the Company written notice indicating the amounts payable to the Holder in respect of the Buy-In and, upon request of the Company,
evidence of the amount of such loss. Nothing herein shall limit a Holder’s right to pursue any other remedies available to it hereunder, at law or
in equity including, without limitation, a decree of specific performance and/or injunctive relief with respect to the Company’s failure to timely
deliver certificates representing shares of Common Stock upon conversion of this Note as required pursuant to the terms hereof.

vi. Reservation of Shares Issuable Upon Conversion . The Company covenants that it will at all times reserve and keep available out of
its authorized and unissued shares of Common Stock a number of shares of Common Stock at least equal to 300% of the total amount of
Common Stock that this Note would be convertible into, in full and irrespective of beneficial ownership limitations, at any time, for the sole
purpose of issuance upon conversion of this Note and payment of interest on this Note, each as herein provided, free from preemptive rights or
any other actual contingent purchase rights of Persons other than the Holder (and the other holders of the Note), not less than such aggregate
number of shares of the Common Stock as shall (subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement) be issuable (taking into
account the adjustments and restrictions of Section 5) upon the conversion of the then outstanding principal amount of this Note and payment of
interest hereunder. The Company covenants that all shares of Common Stock that shall be so issuable shall, upon issue, be duly authorized,
validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable, and, at such times as the Registration Statement covering such shares is then effective under the
Securities Act, will be registered for public resale in accordance with such Registration Statement.
vii. Fractional Shares . No fractional shares or scrip representing fractional shares shall be issued upon the conversion of this Note. As
to any fraction of a share which the Holder would otherwise be entitled to purchase upon such conversion, the Company shall at its election,
either pay a cash adjustment in respect of such final fraction in an amount equal to such fraction multiplied by the applicable conversion price as
provided herein, or round up to the next whole share.
viii. Transfer Taxes and Expenses . The issuance of certificates for shares of the Common Stock on conversion of this Note shall be
made without charge to the Holder hereof for any documentary stamp or similar taxes that may be payable in respect of the issue or delivery of
such certificates, provided that, the Company shall not be required to pay any tax that may be payable in respect of any transfer involved in the
issuance and delivery of any such certificate upon conversion in a name other than that of the Holder of this Note so converted and the Company
shall not be required to issue or deliver such certificates unless or until the Person or Persons requesting the issuance thereof shall have paid to
the Company the amount of such tax or shall have established to the satisfaction of the Company that such tax has been paid. The Company shall
pay all Transfer Agent fees required for same-day processing of any Notice of Conversion.

d) Holder’s Conversion Limitations . The Company shall not effect any conversion of principal and/or interest of this Note, and a Holder shall
not have the right to convert any principal and/or interest of this Note, to the extent that after giving effect to the conversion set forth on the applicable
Notice of Conversion, the Holder (together with the Holder’s Affiliates, and any Persons acting as a group together with the Holder or any of the Holder’s
Affiliates) would beneficially own in excess of the Beneficial Ownership Limitation (as defined below). For purposes of the foregoing sentence, the
number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by the Holder and its Affiliates shall include the number of shares of Common Stock issuable
upon conversion of this Note with respect to which such determination is being made, but shall exclude the number of shares of Common Stock which are
issuable upon (i) conversion of the remaining, unconverted principal amount of this Note beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates and (ii)
exercise or conversion of the unexercised or unconverted portion of any other securities of the Company subject to a limitation on conversion or exercise
analogous to the limitation contained herein (including, without limitation, any other promissory notes or the warrants as further defined in the securities
purchase agreement dated April 7, 2017) beneficially owned by the Holder or any of its Affiliates. Except as set forth in the preceding sentence, for
purposes of this Section 4(e), beneficial ownership shall be calculated in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder. To the extent that the limitation contained in this Section 4(d) applies, the determination of whether this Note is convertible (in
relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and of which principal amount of this Note is convertible shall be in the sole
discretion of the Holder, and the submission of a Notice of Conversion shall be deemed to be the Holder’s determination of whether this Note may be
converted (in relation to other securities owned by the Holder together with any Affiliates) and which principal amount of this Note is convertible, in each
case subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation. To ensure compliance with this restriction, the Holder will be deemed to represent to the Company
each time it delivers a Notice of Conversion that such Notice of Conversion has not violated the restrictions set forth in this paragraph and the Company
shall have no obligation to verify or confirm the accuracy of such determination. In addition, a determination as to any group status as contemplated
above shall be determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. For purposes of
this Section 4(e), in determining the number of outstanding shares of Common Stock, the Holder may rely on the number of outstanding shares of
Common Stock as stated in the most recent of the following: (i) the Company’s most recent periodic or annual report filed with the Commission, as the
case may be, (ii) a more recent public announcement by the Company, or (iii) a more recent written notice by the Company or the Company’s transfer
agent setting forth the number of shares of Common Stock outstanding. Upon the written or oral request of a Holder, the Company shall within two
Trading Days confirm orally and in writing to the Holder the number of shares of Common Stock then outstanding. In any case, the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock shall be determined after giving effect to the conversion or exercise of securities of the Company, including this
Note, by the Holder or its Affiliates since the date as of which such number of outstanding shares of Common Stock was reported. The “ Beneficial
Ownership Limitation ” shall be 9.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of
shares of Common Stock issuable upon conversion of this Note held by the Holder. The Holder, upon not less than 61 days’ prior notice to the Company,
may increase or decrease the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 4(e), provided that the Beneficial Ownership Limitation in no
event exceeds 9.99% of the number of shares of the Common Stock outstanding immediately after giving effect to the issuance of shares of Common
Stock upon conversion of this Note held by the Holder and the Beneficial Ownership Limitation provisions of this Section 4(e) shall continue to apply.
Any such increase or decrease will not be effective until the 61 st day after such notice is delivered to the Company. The Beneficial Ownership Limitation
provisions of this paragraph shall be construed and implemented in a manner otherwise than in strict conformity with the terms of this Section 4(d) to
correct this paragraph (or any portion hereof) which may be defective or inconsistent with the intended Beneficial Ownership Limitation contained herein
or to make changes or supplements necessary or desirable to properly give effect to such limitation. The limitations contained in this paragraph shall
apply to a successor holder of this Note.

Section 5 . Certain Adjustments .
a)

Intentionally Omitted.

b)

Intentionally Omitted.

c)

Intentionally Omitted.

d)

Intentionally Omitted.

e) Fundamental Transaction . If, at any time while this Note is outstanding, (i) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related
transactions effects any merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another Person, (ii) the Company, directly or indirectly, effects any sale,
lease, license, assignment, transfer, conveyance or other disposition of all or substantially all of its assets in one or a series of related transactions, (iii)
any, direct or indirect, purchase offer, tender offer or exchange offer (whether by the Company or another Person) is completed pursuant to which holders
of Common Stock are permitted to sell, tender or exchange their shares for other securities, cash or property and has been accepted by the holders of 50%
or more of the outstanding Common Stock, (iv) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions effects any reclassification,
reorganization or recapitalization of the Common Stock or any compulsory share exchange pursuant to which the Common Stock is effectively converted
into or exchanged for other securities, cash or property, (v) the Company, directly or indirectly, in one or more related transactions consummates a stock
or share purchase agreement or other business combination (including, without limitation, a reorganization, recapitalization, spin-off or scheme of
arrangement) with another Person whereby such other Person acquires more than 50% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock (not including any
shares of Common Stock held by the other Person or other Persons making or party to, or associated or affiliated with the other Persons making or party
to, such stock or share purchase agreement or other business combination) (each a “ Fundamental Transaction ”), then, upon any subsequent conversion of
this Note, the Holder shall have the right to receive, for each Conversion Share that would have been issuable upon such conversion immediately prior to
the occurrence of such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 4(e) on the conversion of this Note), the number of shares of
Common Stock of the successor or acquiring corporation or of the Company, if it is the surviving corporation, and any additional consideration (the “
Alternate Consideration ”) receivable as a result of such Fundamental Transaction by a holder of the number of shares of Common Stock for which this
Note is convertible immediately prior to such Fundamental Transaction (without regard to any limitation in Section 4(d) on the conversion of this Note).
For purposes of any such conversion, the determination of the applicable conversion price shall be appropriately adjusted to apply to such Alternate
Consideration based on the amount of Alternate Consideration issuable in respect of one (1) share of Common Stock in such Fundamental Transaction,
and the Company shall apportion the applicable conversion price among the Alternate Consideration in a reasonable manner reflecting the relative value
of any different components of the Alternate Consideration. If holders of Common Stock are given any choice as to the securities, cash or property to be
received in a Fundamental Transaction, then the Holder shall be given the same choice as to the Alternate Consideration it receives upon any conversion
of this Note following such Fundamental Transaction. The Company shall cause any successor entity in a Fundamental Transaction in which the
Company is not the survivor (the “ Successor Entity ”) to assume in writing all of the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other
Transaction Documents (as defined in the Purchase Agreement) in accordance with the provisions of this Section 5(e) pursuant to written agreements in
form and substance reasonably satisfactory to the Holder and approved by the Holder (without unreasonable delay) prior to such Fundamental Transaction
and shall, at the option of the holder of this Note, deliver to the Holder in exchange for this Note a security of the Successor Entity evidenced by a written
instrument substantially similar in form and substance to this Note which is convertible for a corresponding number of shares of capital stock of such
Successor Entity (or its parent entity) equivalent to the shares of Common Stock acquirable and receivable upon conversion of this Note (without regard
to any limitations on the conversion of this Note) prior to such Fundamental Transaction, and with a conversion price which applies the conversion price
hereunder to such shares of capital stock (but taking into account the relative value of the shares of Common Stock pursuant to such Fundamental
Transaction and the value of such shares of capital stock, such number of shares of capital stock and such conversion price being for the purpose of
protecting the economic value of this Note immediately prior to the consummation of such Fundamental Transaction), and which is reasonably
satisfactory in form and substance to the Holder. Upon the occurrence of any such Fundamental Transaction, the Successor Entity shall succeed to, and be
substituted for (so that from and after the date of such Fundamental Transaction, the provisions of this Note and the other Transaction Documents
referring to the “Company” shall refer instead to the Successor Entity), and may exercise every right and power of the Company and shall assume all of
the obligations of the Company under this Note and the other Transaction Documents with the same effect as if such Successor Entity had been named as
the Company herein.

f) Calculations . All calculations under this Section 5 shall be made to the nearest cent or the nearest 1/100th of a share, as the case may be. For
purposes of this Section 5, the number of shares of Common Stock deemed to be issued and outstanding as of a given date shall be the sum of the number
of shares of Common Stock (excluding any treasury shares of the Company) issued and outstanding.
g) Notice to the Holder .
i. Adjustment to Conversion Price . Whenever the Fixed Conversion Price is adjusted pursuant to any provision of this Section 5, the Company
shall promptly deliver to each Holder a notice setting forth the Fixed Conversion Price after such adjustment and setting forth a brief statement of the facts
requiring such adjustment.
ii. Notice to Allow Conversion by Holder . If (A) the Company shall declare a dividend (or any other distribution in whatever form) on the
Common Stock, (B) the Company shall declare a special nonrecurring cash dividend on or a redemption of the Common Stock, (C) the Company shall
authorize the granting to all holders of the Common Stock of rights or warrants to subscribe for or purchase any shares of capital stock of any class or of
any rights, (D) the approval of any stockholders of the Company shall be required in connection with any reclassification of the Common Stock, any
consolidation or merger to which the Company is a party, any sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Company, or any compulsory
share exchange whereby the Common Stock is converted into other securities, cash or property or (E) the Company shall authorize the voluntary or
involuntary dissolution, liquidation or winding up of the affairs of the Company, then, in each case, the Company shall cause to be filed at each office or
agency maintained for the purpose of conversion of this Note, and shall cause to be delivered to the Holder at its last address as it shall appear upon the
Note Register, at least twenty (20) calendar days prior to the applicable record or effective date hereinafter specified, a notice stating (x) the date on which
a record is to be taken for the purpose of such dividend, distribution, redemption, rights or warrants, or if a record is not to be taken, the date as of which
the holders of the Common Stock of record to be entitled to such dividend, distributions, redemption, rights or warrants are to be determined or (y) the
date on which such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange is expected to become effective or close, and the date as of
which it is expected that holders of the Common Stock of record shall be entitled to exchange their shares of the Common Stock for securities, cash or
other property deliverable upon such reclassification, consolidation, merger, sale, transfer or share exchange, provided that the failure to deliver such
notice or any defect therein or in the delivery thereof shall not affect the validity of the corporate action required to be specified in such notice. To the
extent that any notice provided hereunder constitutes, or contains, material, non-public information regarding the Company or any of the Subsidiaries, the
Company shall simultaneously file such notice with the Commission pursuant to a Current Report on Form 8-K. The Holder shall remain entitled to
convert this Note during the 20-day period commencing on the date of such notice through the effective date of the event triggering such notice except as
may otherwise be expressly set forth herein.

Section 6 . Events of Default .
a) “ Event of Default ” means, wherever used herein, any of the following events (whatever the reason for such event and whether such event
shall be voluntary or involuntary or effected by operation of law or pursuant to any judgment, decree or order of any court, or any order, rule or regulation
of any administrative or governmental body):
i. any default in the payment of (A) the principal amount of any Note or (B) interest, liquidated damages and other amounts owing to a
Holder on any Note, as and when the same shall become due and payable (whether on a Conversion Date or the Maturity Date or by acceleration
or otherwise) which default, solely in the case of an interest payment or other default under clause (B) above, is not cured within 3 Trading
Days;
ii. the Company shall materially fail to observe or perform any other covenant or agreement contained in the Note (other than a breach
by the Company of its obligations to deliver shares of Common Stock to the Holder upon conversion, which breach is addressed in clause (xi)
below) which failure is not cured, if possible to cure, within the earlier to occur of (A) 5 Trading Days after notice of such failure sent by the
Holder or by any other Holder to the Company and (B) 10 Trading Days after the Company has become or should have become aware of such
failure;
iii. a default or event of default (subject to any grace or cure period provided in the applicable agreement, document or instrument) shall
occur under any of the Transaction Documents.
iv. any representation or warranty made in this Note, any other Transaction Documents, any written statement pursuant hereto or
thereto or any other report, financial statement or certificate made or delivered to the Holder or any other Holder shall be untrue or incorrect in
any material respect as of the date when made or deemed made;
v. the Company or any Significant Subsidiary (as such term is defined in Rule 1-02(w) of Regulation S-X) shall be subject to a
Bankruptcy Event;

vi. the Company or any Subsidiary shall default on any of its obligations under any mortgage, credit agreement or other facility,
indenture agreement, factoring agreement or other instrument under which there may be issued, or by which there may be secured or evidenced,
any indebtedness for borrowed money or money due under any long term leasing or factoring arrangement that (a) involves an obligation greater
than $50,000, whether such indebtedness now exists or shall hereafter be created, and (b) results in such indebtedness becoming or being
declared due and payable prior to the date on which it would otherwise become due and payable;
vii. the Common Stock shall not be eligible for listing or quotation for trading on a Trading Market and shall not be eligible to resume
listing or quotation for trading thereon within five Trading Days or the transfer of shares of Common Stock through the Depository Trust
Company System is no longer available or “chilled”;
viii. the Company shall be a party to any Change of Control Transaction or Fundamental Transaction or shall agree to sell or dispose of
all or in excess of 33% of its assets in one transaction or a series of related transactions (whether or not such sale would constitute a Change of
Control Transaction);
ix. the Company shall fail for any reason to deliver shares of Common Stock to the Holder prior to the third Trading Day after a
Conversion Date pursuant to Section 4(c) or the Company shall provide at any time notice to the Holder, including by way of public
announcement, of the Company’s intention to not honor requests for conversions of any Note in accordance with the terms hereof;
x. the Company fails to file with the Commission any required reports under Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act such that it is not
in compliance with Rule 144(c)(1) (or Rule 144(i)(2), if applicable);
xi. if the Company or any Significant Subsidiary shall: (i) apply for or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee, custodian or
liquidator of it or any of its properties, (ii) admit in writing its inability to pay its debts as they mature, (iii) make a general assignment for the
benefit of creditors, (iv) be adjudicated a bankrupt or insolvent or be the subject of an order for relief under Title 11 of the United States Code or
any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute of any other jurisdiction or foreign
country, or (v) file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy, or a petition or an answer seeking reorganization or an arrangement with creditors or to
take advantage or any bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, readjustment of debt, dissolution or liquidation law or statute, or an answer
admitting the material allegations of a petition filed against it in any proceeding under any such law, or (vi) take or permit to be taken any action
in furtherance of or for the purpose of effecting any of the foregoing;

xii. if any order, judgment or decree shall be entered, without the application, approval or consent of the Company or any Significant
Subsidiary, by any court of competent jurisdiction, approving a petition seeking liquidation or reorganization of the Company or any Subsidiary,
or appointing a receiver, trustee, custodian or liquidator of the Company or any Subsidiary, or of all or any substantial part of its assets, and such
order, judgment or decree shall continue unstayed and in effect for any period of sixty (60) days;
xiii. the occurrence of any levy upon or seizure or attachment of, or any uninsured loss of or damage to, any property of the Company
or any Subsidiary having an aggregate fair value or repair cost (as the case may be) in excess of $100,000 individually or in the aggregate, and
any such levy, seizure or attachment shall not be set aside, bonded or discharged within thirty (30) days after the date thereof;
xiv. the Company shall fail to maintain sufficient reserved shares pursuant to Section 4.10 of the Purchase Agreement;
xv. any monetary judgment, writ or similar final process shall be entered or filed against the Company, any subsidiary or any of their
respective property or other assets for more than $50,000, and such judgment, writ or similar final process shall remain unvacated, unbonded or
unstayed for a period of 45 calendar days;
xvi. a breach or default by the Company of any covenant or other term or condition contained in any of the other financial instrument
currently issued or hereafter issued by the Company, to the Holder, including but not limited to promissory notes (the “Other Agreements”), after
the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at the option of the Holder, be considered a default under this Note, in which
event the Holder shall be entitled (but in no event required) to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note by reason
of a default under said Other Agreement;
xvii. any attempt by the Company or its officers, directors, and/or affiliates to transmit, convey, disclose, or any actual transmittal,
conveyance, or disclosure by the Company or its officers, directors, and/or affiliates of, material non-public information concerning the
Company, to the Holder or its successors and assigns, which is not immediately cured by Company’s filing of a Form 8-K pursuant to
Regulation FD on that same date;
xviii. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Note or the other related or companion documents, a breach or default
by the Company of any covenant or other term or condition contained in any of the other financial instrument, including but not limited to all
convertible promissory notes and equity lines, currently issued, or hereafter issued, by the Company, to the Holder or any other 3 rd party (the
“Other Agreements”), after the passage of all applicable notice and cure or grace periods, shall, at the option of the Holder, be considered a
default under this Note, in which event the Holder shall be entitled to apply all rights and remedies of the Holder under the terms of this Note by
reason of a default under said Other Agreement or hereunder; or

b) Remedies Upon Event of Default . Subject to the Beneficial Ownership Limitation as set forth in Section 4(d), if any Event of Default occurs,
then the outstanding principal amount of this Note, plus accrued but unpaid interest, liquidated damages and other amounts owing in respect thereof
through the date of acceleration, shall become, at the Holder’s election, immediately due and payable in cash at the Mandatory Default Amount. After the
occurrence of any Event of Default that results in the eventual acceleration of this Note, the interest rate on this Note shall accrue at an additional interest
rate equal to the lesser of 2% per month (24% per annum) or the maximum rate permitted under applicable law. Upon the payment in full of the
Mandatory Default Amount, the Holder shall promptly surrender this Note to or as directed by the Company. In connection with such acceleration
described herein, the Holder need not provide, and the Company hereby waives, any presentment, demand, protest or other notice of any kind, and the
Holder may immediately and without expiration of any grace period enforce any and all of its rights and remedies hereunder and all other remedies
available to it under applicable law. Such acceleration may be rescinded and annulled by Holder at any time prior to payment hereunder and the Holder
shall have all rights as a holder of the Note until such time, if any, as the Holder receives full payment pursuant to this Section 6(b). No such rescission or
annulment shall affect any subsequent Event of Default or impair any right consequent thereon
Section7 . Miscellaneous .
a) Notices . Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Holder hereunder, including, without limitation, any
Notice of Conversion, shall be in writing and delivered personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service, addressed to
the Company, at the address set forth above, or such other facsimile number or address as the Company may specify for such purposes by notice to the
Holder delivered in accordance with this Section 7(a). Any and all notices or other communications or deliveries to be provided by the Company
hereunder shall be in writing and delivered personally, by facsimile, or sent by a nationally recognized overnight courier service addressed to each Holder
at the facsimile number or address of the Holder appearing on the books of the Company, or if no such facsimile number or address appears on the books
of the Company, at the principal place of business of such Holder, as set forth in the Purchase Agreement. Any notice or other communication or
deliveries hereunder shall be deemed given and effective on the earliest of (i) the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via
facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached hereto prior to 12:00 p.m. (EST time) on any date, (ii) the next Trading Day
after the date of transmission, if such notice or communication is delivered via facsimile at the facsimile number set forth on the signature pages attached
hereto on a day that is not a Trading Day or later than 12:00 p.m. (EST time) on any Trading Day, (iii) the second Trading Day following the date of
mailing, if sent by U.S. nationally recognized overnight courier service or (iv) upon actual receipt by the party to whom such notice is required to be
given.

b) Absolute Obligation . Except as expressly provided herein, no provision of this Note shall alter or impair the obligation of the Company,
which is absolute and unconditional, to pay the principal of, liquidated damages and accrued interest, as applicable, on this Note at the time, place, and
rate, and in the coin or currency, herein prescribed. This Note is a direct debt obligation of the Company. This Note ranks pari passu with all other
promissory notes now or hereafter issued under the terms set forth herein.
c) Lost or Mutilated Note . If this Note shall be mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, the Company shall execute and deliver, in exchange and
substitution for and upon cancellation of a mutilated Note, or in lieu of or in substitution for a lost, stolen or destroyed Note, a new Note for the principal
amount of this Note so mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed, but only upon receipt of evidence of such loss, theft or destruction of such Note, and of the
ownership hereof, reasonably satisfactory to the Company.
d) Governing Law . All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of this Note shall be governed by and
construed and enforced in accordance with the internal laws of the State of Florida, without regard to the principles of conflict of laws thereof. Each party
agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the interpretation, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by any of the Transaction
Documents (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective Affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, employees or agents) shall be commenced
in the state and federal courts sitting in Miami-Dade County, Florida (the “ Florida Courts ”). Each party hereto hereby irrevocably submits to the
exclusive jurisdiction of the Florida Courts for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction contemplated
hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the Transaction Documents), and hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees
not to assert in any suit, action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of such Florida Courts, or such Florida Courts
are improper or inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any such suit, action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to
such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Note and agrees that such service shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and
notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any other manner permitted by applicable law.
Each party hereto hereby irrevocably waives, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law, any and all right to trial by jury in any legal proceeding
arising out of or relating to this Note or the transactions contemplated hereby. If any party shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any
provisions of this Note, then the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the other party for its attorneys fees and other costs
and expenses incurred in the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.

e) Waiver . Any waiver by the Company or the Holder of a breach of any provision of this Note shall not operate as or be construed to be a
waiver of any other breach of such provision or of any breach of any other provision of this Note. The failure of the Company or the Holder to insist upon
strict adherence to any term of this Note on one or more occasions shall not be considered a waiver or deprive that party of the right thereafter to insist
upon strict adherence to that term or any other term of this Note on any other occasion. Any waiver by the Company or the Holder must be in writing.
f) Severability . If any provision of this Note is invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the balance of this Note shall remain in effect, and if any
provision is inapplicable to any Person or circumstance, it shall nevertheless remain applicable to all other Persons and circumstances. If it shall be found
that any interest or other amount deemed interest due hereunder violates the applicable law governing usury, the applicable rate of interest due hereunder
shall automatically be lowered to equal the maximum rate of interest permitted under applicable law. The Company covenants (to the extent that it may
lawfully do so) that it shall not at any time insist upon, plead, or in any manner whatsoever claim or take the benefit or advantage of, any stay, extension
or usury law or other law which would prohibit or forgive the Company from paying all or any portion of the principal of or interest on this Note as
contemplated herein, wherever enacted, now or at any time hereafter in force, or which may affect the covenants or the performance of this Note, and the
Company (to the extent it may lawfully do so) hereby expressly waives all benefits or advantage of any such law, and covenants that it will not, by resort
to any such law, hinder, delay or impede the execution of any power herein granted to the Holder, but will suffer and permit the execution of every such
as though no such law has been enacted.
g) Remedies, Characterizations, Other Obligations, Breaches and Injunctive Relief. The remedies provided in this Note shall be cumulative and
in addition to all other remedies available under this Note and any of the other Transaction Documents at law or in equity (including a decree of specific
performance and/or other injunctive relief), and nothing herein shall limit the Holder’s right to pursue actual and consequential damages for any failure by
the Company to comply with the terms of this Note. The Company covenants to the Holder that there shall be no characterization concerning this
instrument other than as expressly provided herein. Amounts set forth or provided for herein with respect to payments, conversion and the like (and the
computation thereof) shall be the amounts to be received by the Holder and shall not, except as expressly provided herein, be subject to any other
obligation of the Company (or the performance thereof). The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause
irreparable harm to the Holder and that the remedy at law for any such breach may be inadequate. The Company therefore agrees that, in the event of any
such breach or threatened breach, the Holder shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any such breach or
any such threatened breach, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required. The Company shall
provide all information and documentation to the Holder that is requested by the Holder to enable the Holder to confirm the Company’s compliance with
the terms and conditions of this Note.

h) Next Business Day . Whenever any payment or other obligation hereunder shall be due on a day other than a Business Day, such payment
shall be made on the next succeeding Business Day.
i) Headings . The headings contained herein are for convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Note and shall not be deemed to limit or
affect any of the provisions hereof.
j) Section 3(a)(9) and 3(a)(10) Transactions . The express written consent of the Holder must be obtained by the Company, if at any time while
this Note is outstanding, the Company seeks to enter into a transaction structured in accordance with, based upon, or related or pursuant to, in whole or in
part, Section 3(a)(9) or 3(a)(10) of the Securities Act.
Section 8 . Participation in Future Financing .
a) Subject to any existing obligations of the Company, from the date hereof until the date that is the 12-month anniversary of the date of this
Note, upon any issuance by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries of Common Stock, Common Stock Equivalents or debt for cash consideration,
indebtedness or a combination of units hereof, other than any issuance that is through a public underwritten offering or to an investor or a group of
investors that already own Common Stock or Common Stock Equivalents (a “ Subsequent Financing ”), each Holder shall have the right to participate in
the Subsequent Financing in an amount up to 100% of such Holder’s Pro Rata Portion (as defined below) (the “ Participation Maximum ”) on the same
terms, conditions and price provided for in the Subsequent Financing, subject to any existing obligations of the Company with respect to participation
rights.
b) At least five (5) Trading Days prior to the closing of the Subsequent Financing, the Company shall deliver to each Holder a written notice of
its intention to effect a Subsequent Financing (“ Pre-Notice ”), which Pre-Notice shall ask such Holder if it wants to review the details of such financing
(such additional notice, a “ Subsequent Financing Notice ”). Upon the request of a Holder wit hin two (2) Trading Days after the Pre-Notice, and only
upon a request by such Holder, for a Subsequent Financing Notice, the Company shall promptly, but no later than one (1) Trading Day after such request,
deliver a Subsequent Financing Notice to such Holder. The Subsequent Financing Notice shall describe in reasonable detail the proposed terms of such
Subsequent Financing, the amount of proceeds intended to be raised thereunder and the Person or Persons through or with whom such Subsequent
Financing is proposed to be effected and shall include a term sheet or similar document relating thereto as an attachment.
c) Any Holder desiring to participate in such Subsequent Financing must provide written notice to the Company no later than two (2) Trading
Days after delivery of such Subsequent Financing Notice that such Holder is willing to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the amount of such
Holder’s participation, and representing and warranting that such Holder has such funds ready, willing, and available for investment on the terms set forth
in the Subsequent Financing Notice.

d) If notifications by the Holders of their willingness to participate in the Subsequent Financing (or to cause their designees to participate) is, in
the aggregate, less than the total amount of the Subsequent Financing, then the Company may effect the remaining portion of such Subsequent Financing
on the terms and with the Persons set forth in the Subsequent Financing Notice.
e) If the Company receives responses to a Subsequent Financing Notice from Holders seeking to purchase more than the aggregate amount of the
Participation Maximum, each such Holder shall have the right to purchase its Pro Rata Portion of the Participation Maximum. “ Pro Rata Portion ” means
the ratio of (x) the amount of Notes held by a Holder participating under this Section 8 and (y) $80,000.00.
f) The Company must provide the Holders with a second Subsequent Financing Notice, and the Holders will again have the right of participation
set forth above in this Section 8, if the Subsequent Financing subject to the initial Subsequent Financing Notice is not consummated for any reason on the
terms set forth in such Subsequent Financing Notice within thirty (30) Trading Days after the date of the initial Subsequent Financing Notice.
g) The Company and each Holder agree that if any Holder elects to participate in the Subsequent Financing, the transaction documents related to
the Subsequent Financing shall not include any term or provision whereby such Holder shall be required to agree to any restrictions on trading as to any
of the Securities purchased hereunder or be required to consent to any amendment to or termination of, or grant any waiver, release or the like under or in
connection with, this Note, without the prior written consent of such Holder.
h) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Section 8 and unless otherwise agreed to by such Holder, the Company shall either confirm in
writing to such Holder that the transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been abandoned or shall publicly disclose its intention to issue
the securities in the Subsequent Financing, in either case in such a manner such that such Holder will not be in possession of any material, non-public
information, by the tenth (10th) Business Day following delivery of the Subsequent Financing Notice. If by such tenth (10th) Business Day, no public
disclosure regarding a transaction with respect to the Subsequent Financing has been made, and no notice regarding the abandonment of such transaction
has been received by such Holder, such transaction shall be deemed to have been abandoned and such Holder shall not be deemed to be in possession of
any material, non-public information with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries.
i) Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Section 8 shall not apply in respect of an Exempt Issuance.
*********************
(Signature Pages Follow)

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has caused this Note to be duly executed by a duly authorized officer as of the date first above indicated.

LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
By:
/s/ Stewart Garner
Name: Stewart Garner
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Facsimile No. for delivery of Notices:_________

ANNEX A
NOTICE OF CONVERSION
The undersigned hereby elects to convert principal under the 10% convertible promissory note issued on April 7, 2017 by Lifelogger Technologies Corp.,
a Nevada corporation (the “ Company ”), into shares of common stock (the “ Common Stock ”), of the Company according to the conditions hereof, as of the date
written below. If shares of Common Stock are to be issued in the name of a person other than the undersigned, the undersigned will pay all transfer taxes payable
with respect thereto and is delivering herewith such certificates and opinions as reasonably requested by the Company in accordance therewith. No fee will be
charged to the holder for any conversion, except for such transfer taxes, if any.
By the delivery of this Notice of Conversion the undersigned represents and warrants to the Company that its ownership of the Common Stock does not
exceed the amounts specified under Section 4 of this Note, as determined in accordance with Section 13(d) of the Exchange Act.
The undersigned agrees to comply with the prospectus delivery requirements under the applicable securities laws in connection with any transfer of the
aforesaid shares of Common Stock.
Conversion calculations:
Date to Effect Conversion:
Principal Amount of Note to be Converted:
Payment of Interest in Common Stock __ yes __ no
If yes, $_____ of Interest Accrued on Account of Conversion at Issue.
Number of shares of Common Stock to be issued:
Signature:
Name:
Delivery Instructions:

Schedule 1
CONVERSION SCHEDULE
This 10% convertible promissory note issued on April 7, 2017 in the original principal amount of $83,333.33 is issued by Lifelogger Technologies Corp., a Nevada
corporation. This Conversion Schedule reflects conversions made under Section 4 of the above referenced Note.
Dated:

Date of Conversion
(or for first entry,
Original Issue Date)

Amount of
Conversion

Aggregate Principal
Amount Remaining Subsequent to
Conversion
(or original
Principal Amount)

Company Attest

SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 7, 2017, by and between LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES
CORP. , a Nevada corporation, with headquarters located at 11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 (the “Company”), and
Old Main Capital, LLC , a Florida limited liability company, with its address at 3107 Stirling Road, Suite 102, Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312 (the “Buyer”).
WHEREAS :
A. The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration afforded by the
rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“1933 Act”);
B. Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement a 10% convertible note
of the Company, in the aggregate principal amount of US$83,333.33 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or otherwise
with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the Company (the
“Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in such Note.
C. The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal amount of Note as is set forth immediately
below its name on the signature pages hereto; and
NOW THEREFORE , the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE .
a. Purchase of Note . On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to
purchase from the Company, and such principal amount of Note as is set forth immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, subject to the
express terms of the Note.
b. Form of Payment . On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Buyer shall pay the purchase price $17,250.00 (the “Purchase Price”)
for the first tranche of $19,166.66 under the Note (the “First Tranche”), to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below), by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions, against delivery of the Note, and (ii) the Company
shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price. In the event that Buyer funds additional
tranches under the Note, in Buyer’s sole discretion, then such additional amounts shall be paid in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions as
well.

c. Closing Date . Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set forth in Section 6 and Section 7 below, the
date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement (the “Closing Date”) shall be 5:00 P.M., Eastern Standard Time on or about April 7,
2017, or such other mutually agreed upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at
such location as may be agreed to by the parties.
2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER . The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:
a. Investment Purpose . As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the shares of Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (including, without limitation, such additional shares of Common Stock, if any, as are issuable (i) on account of
interest on the Note or (ii) under any other provision in the Note, such shares of Common Stock being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares”
and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to
sales registered or exempted from registration under the 1933 Act; provided , however , that by making the representations herein, the Buyer does not agree to hold
any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a
registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act.
b. Accredited Investor Status . The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an
“Accredited Investor”).
c. Reliance on Exemptions . The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and sold to it in reliance upon specific
exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of,
and the Buyer’s compliance with, the representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities.
d. Information . The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which
have been requested by the Buyer or its advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic
information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer.
Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s
right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its investment in the Securities involves a
significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a breach of any of the Company’s representations and warranties made herein.
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e. Governmental Review . The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or
governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or endorsement of the Securities.
f. Transfer or Re-sale . The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities has not been and is not being registered under
the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities may not be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the 1933 Act, (b) the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form, substance
and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant
to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in
Rule 144 promulgated under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”)) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities only in
accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule 144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to
Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of
counsel that shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company;
(ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable,
any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that
term is defined in the 1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder; and
(iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with
the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each case). Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the
Securities may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement.
g. Legends . The Buyer understands that the Note, and, until such time as the Conversion Shares have been registered under the 1933
Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately
sold, the Conversion Shares may bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities):
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“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY
NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR
(B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY
ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the holder of any Security upon which it is
stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a) such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed
under the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that
can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of
counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion
shall be accepted by the Company so that the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) from
which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any. In the event that the Company does not accept the
opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, at
the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note.
h. Authorization; Enforcement . This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms.
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i. Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.
3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY . The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that, except as
disclosed in the SEC Documents, that:
a. Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined below), if any, is a corporation duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to
own, lease, use and operate its properties and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. Schedule 3(a) sets forth a list
of all of the Subsidiaries of the Company and the jurisdiction in which each is incorporated. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is duly qualified as a foreign
corporation to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in which its ownership or use of property or the nature of the business conducted by it
makes such qualification necessary except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. “Material Adverse
Effect” means any material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a
whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements or instruments to be entered into in connection herewith. “Subsidiaries” means any
corporation or other organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or other ownership
interest.
b. Authorization; Enforcement . (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and perform this
Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and
thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or
exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors,
or its shareholders is required, (iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such authorized
representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other documents executed in connection herewith and bind the
Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute,
a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms.
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c. Capitalization . Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents (as defined below), no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to the
Company’s stock option plans, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securities (other than the Securities) exercisable for, or convertible into or
exchangeable for shares of Common Stock. All of such outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid
and non-assessable. No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to preemptive rights or any other similar rights of the shareholders of the Company or
any liens or encumbrances imposed through the actions or failure to act of the Company. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, as of the effective date of this
Agreement, (i) there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first refusal, agreements, understandings, claims or
other commitments or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights convertible into or exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or arrangements by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may become bound to issue additional shares of capital
stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) there are no agreements or arrangements under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to
register the sale of any of its or their securities under the 1933 Act and (iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any security issued
by the Company (or in any agreement providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the issuance of the Note or the Conversion Shares. The
Company has filed in its SEC Documents true and correct copies of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation as in effect on the date hereof (“Certificate of
Incorporation”), the Company’s By-laws, as in effect on the date hereof (the “By-laws”), and the terms of all securities convertible into or exercisable for Common
Stock of the Company and the material rights of the holders thereof in respect thereto. The Company shall provide the Buyer with a written update of this
representation signed by the Company’s Chief Executive on behalf of the Company as of the Closing Date.
d. Issuance of Shares . The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance and, upon conversion of the Note, in
accordance with its respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to
the issue thereof and shall not be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability upon the
holder thereof.
e. Acknowledgment of Dilution . The Company understands and acknowledges the potentially dilutive effect to the Common Stock
upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. The Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon
conversion of the Note in accordance with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance may have on
the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company.
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f. No Conflicts . The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Note by the Company and the consummation by
the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including, without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion
Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a
breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default) under, or give to others any rights
of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture, patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations
and regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by
which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments,
accelerations, cancellations and violations as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect). Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is in violation of its Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws or other organizational documents and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in
default (and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both could put the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in default) under, and neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has taken any action or failed to take any action that would give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration
or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any property or assets of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, except for possible defaults as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.
The businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, in
violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental entity. Except as specifically contemplated by this Agreement and as required under the 1933
Act and any applicable state securities laws, the Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization or order of, or make any filing or registration with,
any court, governmental agency, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization or stock market or any third party in order for it to execute, deliver or perform any
of its obligations under this Agreement, the Note in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof or to issue and sell the Note in accordance with the terms hereof
and to issue the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and registrations which the Company is required to
obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements
of the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”), the OTCQB or any similar quotation system, and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock
will be delisted by the OTCBB, the OTCQB or any similar quotation system, in the foreseeable future. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts
or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
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g. SEC Documents; Financial Statements . The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents
required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the
foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such
documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). The Company has delivered to the Buyer true and
complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits and incorporated documents. As of their respective dates, the SEC Documents complied in all
material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and
none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required
to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the
statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been
amended or updated in subsequent filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates, the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC
Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect
thereto. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, during the
periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates
thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end
audit adjustments). Except as set forth in the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents, the Company has no liabilities, contingent or
otherwise, other than (i) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business subsequent to November 14, 2012, and (ii) obligations under contracts and
commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business and not required under generally accepted accounting principles to be reflected in such financial
statements, which, individually or in the aggregate, are not material to the financial condition or operating results of the Company. The Company is subject to the
reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. For the avoidance of doubt, filing of the documents required in this Section 3(g) via the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering,
Analysis, and Retrieval system (“EDGAR”) shall satisfy all delivery requirements of this Section 3(g).
h. Absence of Certain Changes . There has been no material adverse change and no material adverse development in the assets,
liabilities, business, properties, operations, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.
i. Absence of Litigation . There is no action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board,
government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule 3(i) contains a
complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, without regard to whether it would have a Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances
which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
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j. Patents, Copyrights, etc . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries owns or possesses the requisite licenses or rights to use all
patents, patent applications, patent rights, inventions, know-how, trade secrets, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, service names, trade names and
copyrights (“Intellectual Property”) necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future);
Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, there is no claim or action by any person pertaining to, or proceeding pending, or to the Company’s knowledge
threatened, which challenges the right of the Company or of a Subsidiary with respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as
now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future); to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ current and
intended products, services and processes do not infringe on any Intellectual Property or other rights held by any person; and the Company is unaware of any facts
or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the
secrecy, confidentiality and value of their Intellectual Property.
k. No Materially Adverse Contracts, Etc . Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any charter, corporate or other
legal restriction, or any judgment, decree, order, rule or regulation which in the judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected in the future to have a
Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement which in the judgment of the Company’s officers
has or is expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
l. Tax Status . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has made or filed all federal, state and foreign income and all other tax returns,
reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject (unless and only to the extent that the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has set aside
on its books provisions reasonably adequate for the payment of all unpaid and unreported taxes) and has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and
charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set
aside on its books provisions reasonably adequate for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations
apply. There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company know of no
basis for any such claim. The Company has not executed a waiver with respect to the statute of limitations relating to the assessment or collection of any foreign,
federal, state or local tax. None of the Company’s tax returns is presently being audited by any taxing authority.
m. Certain Transactions . Except for arm’s length transactions pursuant to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries makes
payments in the ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the Company or any of its Subsidiaries could obtain from third parties and other than
the grant of stock options disclosed on Schedule 3(c), none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing
for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director
or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or any such employee has
a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner.
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n. Disclosure . All information relating to or concerning the Company or any of its Subsidiaries set forth in this Agreement and
provided to the Buyer pursuant to Section 2(d) hereof and otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby is true and correct in all material
respects and the Company has not omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein or therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading. No event or circumstance has occurred or exists with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or its or their
business, properties, prospects, operations or financial conditions, which, under applicable law, rule or regulation, requires public disclosure or announcement by
the Company but which has not been so publicly announced or disclosed (assuming for this purpose that the Company’s reports filed under the 1934 Act are being
incorporated into an effective registration statement filed by the Company under the 1933 Act).
o. Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities . The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely
in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the
Buyer is not acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company and its representatives.
p. No Integrated Offering . Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has directly or
indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933
Act of the issuance of the Securities to the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its securities.
q. No Brokers . The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any person for brokerage commissions,
transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.
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r. Permits; Compliance . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is in possession of all franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses,
permits, easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, approvals and orders necessary to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its
business as it is now being conducted (collectively, the “Company Permits”), and there is no action pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened
regarding suspension or cancellation of any of the Company Permits. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in conflict with, or in default or violation
of, any of the Company Permits, except for any such conflicts, defaults or violations which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notification with respect to possible conflicts, defaults or
violations of applicable laws, except for notices relating to possible conflicts, defaults or violations, which conflicts, defaults or violations would not have a
Material Adverse Effect.
s. Environmental Matters .
(i) There are, to the Company’s knowledge, with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any predecessor of the
Company, no past or present violations of Environmental Laws (as defined below), releases of any material into the environment, actions, activities, circumstances,
conditions, events, incidents, or contractual obligations which may give rise to any common law environmental liability or any liability under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or similar federal, state, local or foreign laws and neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has received any notice with respect to any of the foregoing, nor is any action pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened in connection with
any of the foregoing. The term “Environmental Laws” means all federal, state, local or foreign laws relating to pollution or protection of human health or the
environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, groundwater, land surface or subsurface strata), including, without limitation, laws relating
to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of chemicals, pollutants contaminants, or toxic or hazardous substances or wastes (collectively,
“Hazardous Materials”) into the environment, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or
handling of Hazardous Materials, as well as all authorizations, codes, decrees, demands or demand letters, injunctions, judgments, licenses, notices or notice letters,
orders, permits, plans or regulations issued, entered, promulgated or approved thereunder.
(ii) Other than those that are or were stored, used or disposed of in compliance with applicable law, no Hazardous Materials
are contained on or about any real property currently owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and no Hazardous Materials were released
on or about any real property previously owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries during the period the property was owned, leased or used
by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except in the normal course of the Company’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ business.
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(iii) There are no underground storage tanks on or under any real property owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries that are not in compliance with applicable law.
t. Title to Property . Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents the Company and its Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee
simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the business of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects or such as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Any real property and
facilities held under lease by the Company and its Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with such exceptions as would not
have a Material Adverse Effect.
u. Internal Accounting Controls . Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents the Company and each of its Subsidiaries maintain a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient, in the judgment of the Company’s board of directors, to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are
executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance
with management’s general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and
appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.
v. Foreign Corrupt Practices . Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor any director, officer, agent, employee or other
person acting on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary has, in the course of his actions for, or on behalf of, the Company, used any corporate funds for any
unlawful contribution, gift, entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity; made any direct or indirect unlawful payment to any foreign or
domestic government official or employee from corporate funds; violated or is in violation of any provision of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as
amended, or made any bribe, rebate, payoff, influence payment, kickback or other unlawful payment to any foreign or domestic government official or employee.
w. Solvency . The Company (after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement) is solvent ( i.e. , its assets have a
fair market value in excess of the amount required to pay its probable liabilities on its existing debts as they become absolute and matured) and currently the
Company has no information that would lead it to reasonably conclude that the Company would not, after giving effect to the transaction contemplated by this
Agreement, have the ability to, nor does it intend to take any action that would impair its ability to, pay its debts from time to time incurred in connection therewith
as such debts mature. The Company did not receive a qualified opinion from its auditors with respect to its most recent fiscal year end and, after giving effect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, does not anticipate or know of any basis upon which its auditors might issue a qualified opinion in respect of its
current fiscal year. For the avoidance of doubt any disclosure of the Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not, by itself, be a violation of this
Section 3(w).
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x. No Investment Company . The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the Securities as contemplated by this Agreement
will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not
controlled by an Investment Company.
y. Insurance . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such
losses and risks and in such amounts as management of the Company believes to be prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and its
Subsidiaries are engaged. Neither the Company nor any such Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage
as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its business at a cost that would not have a
Material Adverse Effect. Upon written request the Company will provide to the Buyer true and correct copies of all policies relating to directors’ and officers’
liability coverage, errors and omissions coverage, and commercial general liability coverage.
z. Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches any of the representations or warranties set
forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under
Section 3.4 of the Note.
4. COVENANTS .
a. Best Efforts . The parties shall use their commercially reasonable best efforts to satisfy timely each of the conditions described in
Section 6 and 7 of this Agreement.
b. Use of Proceeds . The Company shall use the proceeds from the sale of the Note for working capital and other general corporate
purposes and shall not, directly or indirectly, use such proceeds for any loan to or investment in any other corporation, partnership, enterprise or other person
(except in connection with its currently existing direct or indirect Subsidiaries).
c. Expenses . At the Closing of the First Tranche, the Company hereby authorizes the Buyer, as detailed in the disbursement
memorandum of even date, to pay the Buyer’s legal counsel directly in the amount of $1,250.00, which such amount shall be withheld from the proceeds of the
Purchase Price, as further described in the Note and/or disbursement memorandum.
13

d. Financial Information . The Company agrees to send or make available the following reports to the Buyer until the Buyer transfers,
assigns, or sells all of the Securities: (i) within ten (10) days after the filing with the SEC, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K its Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q and any Current Reports on Form 8-K; (ii) within one (1) day after release, copies of all press releases issued by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; and
(iii) contemporaneously with the making available or giving to the shareholders of the Company, copies of any notices or other information the Company makes
available or gives to such shareholders. For the avoidance of doubt, filing the documents required in (i) above via EDGAR or releasing any documents set forth in
(ii) above via a recognized wire service shall satisfy the delivery requirements of this Section 4(f).
e. Listing . The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon each national securities exchange or
automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then listed (subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any
of the Securities, shall maintain, so long as any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable
upon conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the listing and trading of its Common Stock
on the OTCBB, OTCQB, OTC Pink or any equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National Market (“Nasdaq”), the Nasdaq SmallCap Market (“Nasdaq
SmallCap”), the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), or the NYSE MKT and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other
obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such exchanges, as applicable. The Company shall promptly
provide to the Buyer copies of any material notices it receives from the OTCBB, OTCQB and any other exchanges or quotation systems on which the Common
Stock is then listed regarding the continued eligibility of the Common Stock for listing on such exchanges and quotation systems.
f. Corporate Existence . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company shall maintain its corporate existence and shall
not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets,
where the surviving or successor entity in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments entered into
in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on the OTCBB, OTCQB, OTC Pink, Nasdaq,
NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX.
g. No Integration . The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other than the Securities) under circumstances that
would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder under the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any
other offering of securities by the Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities.
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h. Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the Company shall comply with the
reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act.
i. Trading Activities . Neither the Buyer nor its affiliates has an open short position (or other hedging or similar transactions) in the
common stock of the Company and the Buyer agree that it shall not, and that it will cause its affiliates not to, engage in any short sales of or hedging transactions
with respect to the common stock of the Company.
j. Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies
available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an event of default under Section 3.3 of the Note.
5. Transfer Agent Instructions . Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares
may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, all such
certificates shall bear the restrictive legend specified in Section 2(g) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that: (i) no stop transfer instructions to give effect
to Section 2(f) hereof (in the case of the Conversion Shares, prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion
Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold), will be
given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records of the Company as and to the
extent provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in
transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise
pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs,
delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate
for any Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement.
Nothing in this Section shall affect in any way the Buyer’s obligations and agreement set forth in Section 2(g) hereof to comply with all applicable prospectus
delivery requirements, if any, upon re-sale of the Securities. If the Buyer provides the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, with (i) an opinion of counsel in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be made without
registration under the 1933 Act and such sale or transfer is effected or (ii) the Buyer provides reasonable assurances that the Securities can be sold pursuant to Rule
144, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates, free
from restrictive legend, in such name and in such denominations as specified by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations
hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company
acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Section may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach
by the Company of the provisions of this Section, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach
and requiring immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
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6. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATIONS TO SELL . The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and
sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these
conditions are for the Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company.
b. The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above.
c. The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date when made and as of
the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed,
satisfied and complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied
with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date.
d. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or
endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated
hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
7. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE . The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the
Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the
Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer.
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b. The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer duly executed Note (in such denominations as the Buyer shall request) in accordance
with Section 1(b) above.
c. The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date when made and as
of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed,
satisfied and complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied
with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a certificate or certificates, executed by the chief executive officer of the
Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited
to certificates with respect to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions contemplated
hereby.
d. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or
endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated
hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
e. No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company including but
not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations.
f. The Common Stock shall have been authorized for quotation on the OTCBB, OTCQB or any similar quotation system and trading in
the Common Stock on the OTCBB, OTCQB or any similar quotation system shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the OTCBB, OTCQB or any similar
quotation system.
g. The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 3(c) above, dated as of the Closing Date.
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8. GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS .
a. Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without
regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be
brought only in the state courts of Broward County, Florida or in the federal courts located in the State of Florida. The parties to this Agreement hereby irrevocably
waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue or based
upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its reasonable
attorney’s fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or unenforceable
under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed
modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or
enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being served in
any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or
overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall
constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any
other manner permitted by law.
b. Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile . This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and
delivered to the other party. This Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of this
Agreement bearing the signature of the party so delivering this Agreement.
c. Headings . The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not form part of, or affect the
interpretation of, this Agreement.
d. Severability . In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of
law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule
of law. Any provision hereof which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.
e. Entire Agreement; Amendments . This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein contain the entire understanding of the
parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any
representation, warranty, covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer.
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f. Notices . All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in
writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be
given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile
machine, at the address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or the first
business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the
second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing,
whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:
If to the Company, to:
LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
E-mail: Stew@LifeLogger.com
If to the Holder, to:
OLD MAIN CAPITAL, LLC
3107 Stirling Road, Suite 102
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33312
E-mail: Adam@OldMainCapital.com
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
g. Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and
assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to Section 2(f), the Buyer may assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction
from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company.
h. Third Party Beneficiaries . This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors
and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other person.
i. Survival . The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and covenants set forth in this Agreement shall
survive the closing hereunder. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or
damage arising as a result of or related to any breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of
its covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred.
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j. Further Assurances . Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and shall
execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent
and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
k. No Strict Construction . The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express
their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.
l. Remedies .
(i) The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by
vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its
obligations under this Agreement will be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this Agreement,
that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or
injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of
showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
(ii) In addition to any other remedy provided herein or in any document executed in connection herewith, Borrower shall pay
Holder for all costs, fees and expenses in connection with any litigation, contest, dispute, suit or any other action to enforce any rights of Holder against Borrower
in connection herewith, including, but not limited to, costs and expenses and attorneys’ fees, and costs and time charges of counsel to Holder.
m. Publicity . The Company, and the Buyer shall have the right to review a reasonable period of time before issuance of any press
releases, SEC, OTCQB (or other applicable trading market), or FINRA filings, or any other public statements with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby;
provided , however , that the Company shall be entitled, without the prior approval of the Buyer, to make any press release or SEC, OTCQB (or other applicable
trading market) or FINRA filings with respect to such transactions as is required by applicable law and regulations (although the Buyer shall be consulted by the
Company in connection with any such press release prior to its release and shall be provided with a copy thereof).
[ signature page follows ]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.
LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
By:
/s/ Stewart Garner
Name: Stewart Garner
Title: Chief Executive Officer
OLD MAIN CAPITAL, LLC
By:
/s/ Adam Long
Name: Adam Long
Title: President
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
Aggregate Principal Amount of Note:

US$83,333.33

Aggregate Purchase Price:

US$75,000.00*

*The purchase price of $17,250.00, relating to the First Tranche of $19,166.66, shall be paid within a reasonable amount of time after the full execution of the Note
and all related transaction documents. Additional tranches may be funded by the Buyer, in Buyer’s sole discretion, in accordance with the terms of the Note.
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SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT
This SECURITIES PURCHASE AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of April 7, 2017, by and between LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES
CORP. , a Nevada corporation, with headquarters located at 11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E, Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 (the “Company”), and
SBI Investments LLC, 2014-1 , a statutory series of Delaware limited liability company, with its address at 369 Lexington Avenue, 2nd Floor, New York, NY
10017 (the “Buyer”).
WHEREAS :
A. The Company and the Buyer are executing and delivering this Agreement in reliance upon the exemption from securities registration afforded by the
rules and regulations as promulgated by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“1933 Act”);
B. Buyer desires to purchase and the Company desires to issue and sell, upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement a 10% convertible note
of the Company, in the aggregate principal amount of US$83,333.33 (together with any note(s) issued in replacement thereof or as a dividend thereon or otherwise
with respect thereto in accordance with the terms thereof, the “Note”), convertible into shares of common stock, $0.001 par value per share, of the Company (the
“Common Stock”), upon the terms and subject to the limitations and conditions set forth in such Note.
C. The Buyer wishes to purchase, upon the terms and conditions stated in this Agreement, such principal amount of Note as is set forth immediately
below its name on the signature pages hereto; and
NOW THEREFORE , the Company and the Buyer severally (and not jointly) hereby agree as follows:
1. PURCHASE AND SALE OF NOTE .
a. Purchase of Note . On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Company shall issue and sell to the Buyer and the Buyer agrees to
purchase from the Company, and such principal amount of Note as is set forth immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto, subject to the
express terms of the Note.
b. Form of Payment . On the Closing Date (as defined below), the Buyer shall pay the purchase price $17,250.00 (the “Purchase Price”)
for the first tranche of $19,166.66 under the Note (the “First Tranche”), to be issued and sold to it at the Closing (as defined below), by wire transfer of
immediately available funds to the Company, in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions, against delivery of the Note, and (ii) the Company
shall deliver such duly executed Note on behalf of the Company, to the Buyer, against delivery of such Purchase Price. In the event that Buyer funds additional
tranches under the Note, in Buyer’s sole discretion, then such additional amounts shall be paid in accordance with the Company’s written wiring instructions as
well.

c. Closing Date . Subject to the satisfaction (or written waiver) of the conditions thereto set forth in Section 6 and Section 7 below, the
date and time of the issuance and sale of the Note pursuant to this Agreement (the “Closing Date”) shall be 5:00 P.M., Eastern Standard Time on or about April 7,
2017, or such other mutually agreed upon time. The closing of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Closing”) shall occur on the Closing Date at
such location as may be agreed to by the parties.
2. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BUYER . The Buyer represents and warrants to the Company that:
a. Investment Purpose . As of the date hereof, the Buyer is purchasing the Note and the shares of Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note (including, without limitation, such additional shares of Common Stock, if any, as are issuable (i) on account of
interest on the Note or (ii) under any other provision in the Note, such shares of Common Stock being collectively referred to herein as the “Conversion Shares”
and, collectively with the Note, the “Securities”) for its own account and not with a present view towards the public sale or distribution thereof, except pursuant to
sales registered or exempted from registration under the 1933 Act; provided , however , that by making the representations herein, the Buyer does not agree to hold
any of the Securities for any minimum or other specific term and reserves the right to dispose of the Securities at any time in accordance with or pursuant to a
registration statement or an exemption under the 1933 Act.
b. Accredited Investor Status . The Buyer is an “accredited investor” as that term is defined in Rule 501(a) of Regulation D (an
“Accredited Investor”).
c. Reliance on Exemptions . The Buyer understands that the Securities are being offered and sold to it in reliance upon specific
exemptions from the registration requirements of United States federal and state securities laws and that the Company is relying upon the truth and accuracy of,
and the Buyer’s compliance with, the representations, warranties, agreements, acknowledgments and understandings of the Buyer set forth herein in order to
determine the availability of such exemptions and the eligibility of the Buyer to acquire the Securities.
d. Information . The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
furnished with all materials relating to the business, finances and operations of the Company and materials relating to the offer and sale of the Securities which
have been requested by the Buyer or its advisors. The Buyer and its advisors, if any, have been, and for so long as the Note remain outstanding will continue to be,
afforded the opportunity to ask questions of the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company has not disclosed to the Buyer any material nonpublic
information and will not disclose such information unless such information is disclosed to the public prior to or promptly following such disclosure to the Buyer.
Neither such inquiries nor any other due diligence investigation conducted by Buyer or any of its advisors or representatives shall modify, amend or affect Buyer’s
right to rely on the Company’s representations and warranties contained in Section 3 below. The Buyer understands that its investment in the Securities involves a
significant degree of risk. The Buyer is not aware of any facts that may constitute a breach of any of the Company’s representations and warranties made herein.
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e. Governmental Review . The Buyer understands that no United States federal or state agency or any other government or
governmental agency has passed upon or made any recommendation or endorsement of the Securities.
f. Transfer or Re-sale . The Buyer understands that (i) the sale or re-sale of the Securities has not been and is not being registered under
the 1933 Act or any applicable state securities laws, and the Securities may not be transferred unless (a) the Securities are sold pursuant to an effective registration
statement under the 1933 Act, (b) the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of counsel that shall be in form, substance
and scope customary for opinions of counsel in comparable transactions to the effect that the Securities to be sold or transferred may be sold or transferred pursuant
to an exemption from such registration, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company, (c) the Securities are sold or transferred to an “affiliate” (as defined in
Rule 144 promulgated under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Rule 144”)) of the Buyer who agrees to sell or otherwise transfer the Securities only in
accordance with this Section 2(f) and who is an Accredited Investor, (d) the Securities are sold pursuant to Rule 144, or (e) the Securities are sold pursuant to
Regulation S under the 1933 Act (or a successor rule) (“Regulation S”), and the Buyer shall have delivered to the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, an opinion of
counsel that shall be in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of counsel in corporate transactions, which opinion shall be accepted by the Company;
(ii) any sale of such Securities made in reliance on Rule 144 may be made only in accordance with the terms of said Rule and further, if said Rule is not applicable,
any re-sale of such Securities under circumstances in which the seller (or the person through whom the sale is made) may be deemed to be an underwriter (as that
term is defined in the 1933 Act) may require compliance with some other exemption under the 1933 Act or the rules and regulations of the SEC thereunder; and
(iii) neither the Company nor any other person is under any obligation to register such Securities under the 1933 Act or any state securities laws or to comply with
the terms and conditions of any exemption thereunder (in each case). Notwithstanding the foregoing or anything else contained herein to the contrary, the
Securities may be pledged as collateral in connection with a bona fide margin account or other lending arrangement.
g. Legends . The Buyer understands that the Note, and, until such time as the Conversion Shares have been registered under the 1933
Act may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately
sold, the Conversion Shares may bear a restrictive legend in substantially the following form (and a stop-transfer order may be placed against transfer of the
certificates for such Securities):
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“NEITHER THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED BY THIS CERTIFICATE NOR THE
SECURITIES INTO WHICH THESE SECURITIES ARE EXERCISABLE HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. THE SECURITIES MAY
NOT BE OFFERED FOR SALE, SOLD, TRANSFERRED OR ASSIGNED (I) IN THE ABSENCE OF (A) AN EFFECTIVE
REGISTRATION STATEMENT FOR THE SECURITIES UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED, OR
(B) AN OPINION OF COUNSEL (WHICH COUNSEL SHALL BE SELECTED BY THE HOLDER), IN A GENERALLY
ACCEPTABLE FORM, THAT REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED UNDER SAID ACT OR (II) UNLESS SOLD
PURSUANT TO RULE 144 OR RULE 144A UNDER SAID ACT. NOTWITHSTANDING THE FOREGOING, THE
SECURITIES MAY BE PLEDGED IN CONNECTION WITH A BONA FIDE MARGIN ACCOUNT OR OTHER LOAN OR
FINANCING ARRANGEMENT SECURED BY THE SECURITIES.”
The legend set forth above shall be removed and the Company shall issue a certificate without such legend to the holder of any Security upon which it is
stamped, if, unless otherwise required by applicable state securities laws, (a) such Security is registered for sale under an effective registration statement filed
under the 1933 Act or otherwise may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 or Regulation S without any restriction as to the number of securities as of a particular date that
can then be immediately sold, or (b) such holder provides the Company with an opinion of counsel, in form, substance and scope customary for opinions of
counsel in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Security may be made without registration under the 1933 Act, which opinion
shall be accepted by the Company so that the sale or transfer is effected. The Buyer agrees to sell all Securities, including those represented by a certificate(s) from
which the legend has been removed, in compliance with applicable prospectus delivery requirements, if any. In the event that the Company does not accept the
opinion of counsel provided by the Buyer with respect to the transfer of Securities pursuant to an exemption from registration, such as Rule 144 or Regulation S, at
the Deadline, it will be considered an Event of Default pursuant to Section 3.2 of the Note.
h. Authorization; Enforcement . This Agreement has been duly and validly authorized. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered on behalf of the Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes a valid and binding agreement of the Buyer enforceable in accordance with its terms.
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i. Residency. The Buyer is a resident of the jurisdiction set forth immediately below the Buyer’s name on the signature pages hereto.
3. REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY . The Company represents and warrants to the Buyer that, except as
disclosed in the SEC Documents, that:
a. Organization and Qualification . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries (as defined below), if any, is a corporation duly
organized, validly existing and in good standing under the laws of the jurisdiction in which it is incorporated, with full power and authority (corporate and other) to
own, lease, use and operate its properties and to carry on its business as and where now owned, leased, used, operated and conducted. Schedule 3(a) sets forth a list
of all of the Subsidiaries of the Company and the jurisdiction in which each is incorporated. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is duly qualified as a foreign
corporation to do business and is in good standing in every jurisdiction in which its ownership or use of property or the nature of the business conducted by it
makes such qualification necessary except where the failure to be so qualified or in good standing would not have a Material Adverse Effect. “Material Adverse
Effect” means any material adverse effect on the business, operations, assets, financial condition or prospects of the Company or its Subsidiaries, if any, taken as a
whole, or on the transactions contemplated hereby or by the agreements or instruments to be entered into in connection herewith. “Subsidiaries” means any
corporation or other organization, whether incorporated or unincorporated, in which the Company owns, directly or indirectly, any equity or other ownership
interest.
b. Authorization; Enforcement . (i) The Company has all requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and perform this
Agreement, the Note and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby and to issue the Securities, in accordance with the terms hereof and
thereof, (ii) the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the Note by the Company and the consummation by it of the transactions contemplated hereby and
thereby (including without limitation, the issuance of the Note and the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion Shares issuable upon conversion or
exercise thereof) have been duly authorized by the Company’s Board of Directors and no further consent or authorization of the Company, its Board of Directors,
or its shareholders is required, (iii) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Company by its authorized representative, and such authorized
representative is the true and official representative with authority to sign this Agreement and the other documents executed in connection herewith and bind the
Company accordingly, and (iv) this Agreement constitutes, and upon execution and delivery by the Company of the Note, each of such instruments will constitute,
a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms.
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c. Capitalization . Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents (as defined below), no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to the
Company’s stock option plans, no shares are reserved for issuance pursuant to securities (other than the Securities) exercisable for, or convertible into or
exchangeable for shares of Common Stock. All of such outstanding shares of capital stock are, or upon issuance will be, duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid
and non-assessable. No shares of capital stock of the Company are subject to preemptive rights or any other similar rights of the shareholders of the Company or
any liens or encumbrances imposed through the actions or failure to act of the Company. Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, as of the effective date of this
Agreement, (i) there are no outstanding options, warrants, scrip, rights to subscribe for, puts, calls, rights of first refusal, agreements, understandings, claims or
other commitments or rights of any character whatsoever relating to, or securities or rights convertible into or exchangeable for any shares of capital stock of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or arrangements by which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is or may become bound to issue additional shares of capital
stock of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, (ii) there are no agreements or arrangements under which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is obligated to
register the sale of any of its or their securities under the 1933 Act and (iii) there are no anti-dilution or price adjustment provisions contained in any security issued
by the Company (or in any agreement providing rights to security holders) that will be triggered by the issuance of the Note or the Conversion Shares. The
Company has filed in its SEC Documents true and correct copies of the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation as in effect on the date hereof (“Certificate of
Incorporation”), the Company’s By-laws, as in effect on the date hereof (the “By-laws”), and the terms of all securities convertible into or exercisable for Common
Stock of the Company and the material rights of the holders thereof in respect thereto. The Company shall provide the Buyer with a written update of this
representation signed by the Company’s Chief Executive on behalf of the Company as of the Closing Date.
d. Issuance of Shares . The Conversion Shares are duly authorized and reserved for issuance and, upon conversion of the Note, in
accordance with its respective terms, will be validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable, and free from all taxes, liens, claims and encumbrances with respect to
the issue thereof and shall not be subject to preemptive rights or other similar rights of shareholders of the Company and will not impose personal liability upon the
holder thereof.
e. Acknowledgment of Dilution . The Company understands and acknowledges the potentially dilutive effect to the Common Stock
upon the issuance of the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. The Company further acknowledges that its obligation to issue Conversion Shares upon
conversion of the Note in accordance with this Agreement, the Note is absolute and unconditional regardless of the dilutive effect that such issuance may have on
the ownership interests of other shareholders of the Company.
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f. No Conflicts . The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and the Note by the Company and the consummation by
the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby (including, without limitation, the issuance and reservation for issuance of the Conversion
Shares) will not (i) conflict with or result in a violation of any provision of the Certificate of Incorporation or By-laws, or (ii) violate or conflict with, or result in a
breach of any provision of, or constitute a default (or an event which with notice or lapse of time or both could become a default) under, or give to others any rights
of termination, amendment, acceleration or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture, patent, patent license or instrument to which the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries is a party, or (iii) result in a violation of any law, rule, regulation, order, judgment or decree (including federal and state securities laws and regulations
and regulations of any self-regulatory organizations to which the Company or its securities are subject) applicable to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or by
which any property or asset of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected (except for such conflicts, defaults, terminations, amendments,
accelerations, cancellations and violations as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect). Neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries is in violation of its Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws or other organizational documents and neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in
default (and no event has occurred which with notice or lapse of time or both could put the Company or any of its Subsidiaries in default) under, and neither the
Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has taken any action or failed to take any action that would give to others any rights of termination, amendment, acceleration
or cancellation of, any agreement, indenture or instrument to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries is a party or by which any property or assets of the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries is bound or affected, except for possible defaults as would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect.
The businesses of the Company and its Subsidiaries, if any, are not being conducted, and shall not be conducted so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, in
violation of any law, ordinance or regulation of any governmental entity. Except as specifically contemplated by this Agreement and as required under the 1933
Act and any applicable state securities laws, the Company is not required to obtain any consent, authorization or order of, or make any filing or registration with,
any court, governmental agency, regulatory agency, self-regulatory organization or stock market or any third party in order for it to execute, deliver or perform any
of its obligations under this Agreement, the Note in accordance with the terms hereof or thereof or to issue and sell the Note in accordance with the terms hereof
and to issue the Conversion Shares upon conversion of the Note. All consents, authorizations, orders, filings and registrations which the Company is required to
obtain pursuant to the preceding sentence have been obtained or effected on or prior to the date hereof. The Company is not in violation of the listing requirements
of the Over-the-Counter Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”), the OTCQB or any similar quotation system, and does not reasonably anticipate that the Common Stock
will be delisted by the OTCBB, the OTCQB or any similar quotation system, in the foreseeable future. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts
or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
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g. SEC Documents; Financial Statements . The Company has filed all reports, schedules, forms, statements and other documents
required to be filed by it with the SEC pursuant to the reporting requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “1934 Act”) (all of the
foregoing filed prior to the date hereof and all exhibits included therein and financial statements and schedules thereto and documents (other than exhibits to such
documents) incorporated by reference therein, being hereinafter referred to herein as the “SEC Documents”). The Company has delivered to the Buyer true and
complete copies of the SEC Documents, except for such exhibits and incorporated documents. As of their respective dates, the SEC Documents complied in all
material respects with the requirements of the 1934 Act and the rules and regulations of the SEC promulgated thereunder applicable to the SEC Documents, and
none of the SEC Documents, at the time they were filed with the SEC, contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state a material fact required
to be stated therein or necessary in order to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading. None of the
statements made in any such SEC Documents is, or has been, required to be amended or updated under applicable law (except for such statements as have been
amended or updated in subsequent filings prior the date hereof). As of their respective dates, the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC
Documents complied as to form in all material respects with applicable accounting requirements and the published rules and regulations of the SEC with respect
thereto. Such financial statements have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles, consistently applied, during the
periods involved and fairly present in all material respects the consolidated financial position of the Company and its consolidated Subsidiaries as of the dates
thereof and the consolidated results of their operations and cash flows for the periods then ended (subject, in the case of unaudited statements, to normal year-end
audit adjustments). Except as set forth in the financial statements of the Company included in the SEC Documents, the Company has no liabilities, contingent or
otherwise, other than (i) liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of business subsequent to November 14, 2012, and (ii) obligations under contracts and
commitments incurred in the ordinary course of business and not required under generally accepted accounting principles to be reflected in such financial
statements, which, individually or in the aggregate, are not material to the financial condition or operating results of the Company. The Company is subject to the
reporting requirements of the 1934 Act. For the avoidance of doubt, filing of the documents required in this Section 3(g) via the SEC’s Electronic Data Gathering,
Analysis, and Retrieval system (“EDGAR”) shall satisfy all delivery requirements of this Section 3(g).
h. Absence of Certain Changes . There has been no material adverse change and no material adverse development in the assets,
liabilities, business, properties, operations, financial condition, results of operations, prospects or 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries.
i. Absence of Litigation . There is no action, suit, claim, proceeding, inquiry or investigation before or by any court, public board,
government agency, self-regulatory organization or body pending or, to the knowledge of the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, threatened against or affecting
the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, or their officers or directors in their capacity as such, that could have a Material Adverse Effect. Schedule 3(i) contains a
complete list and summary description of any pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened proceeding against or affecting the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries, without regard to whether it would have a Material Adverse Effect. The Company and its Subsidiaries are unaware of any facts or circumstances
which might give rise to any of the foregoing.
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j. Patents, Copyrights, etc . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries owns or possesses the requisite licenses or rights to use all
patents, patent applications, patent rights, inventions, know-how, trade secrets, trademarks, trademark applications, service marks, service names, trade names and
copyrights (“Intellectual Property”) necessary to enable it to conduct its business as now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future);
Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents, there is no claim or action by any person pertaining to, or proceeding pending, or to the Company’s knowledge
threatened, which challenges the right of the Company or of a Subsidiary with respect to any Intellectual Property necessary to enable it to conduct its business as
now operated (and, as presently contemplated to be operated in the future); to the best of the Company’s knowledge, the Company’s or its Subsidiaries’ current and
intended products, services and processes do not infringe on any Intellectual Property or other rights held by any person; and the Company is unaware of any facts
or circumstances which might give rise to any of the foregoing. The Company and each of its Subsidiaries have taken reasonable security measures to protect the
secrecy, confidentiality and value of their Intellectual Property.
k. No Materially Adverse Contracts, Etc . Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is subject to any charter, corporate or other
legal restriction, or any judgment, decree, order, rule or regulation which in the judgment of the Company’s officers has or is expected in the future to have a
Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is a party to any contract or agreement which in the judgment of the Company’s officers
has or is expected to have a Material Adverse Effect.
l. Tax Status . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries has made or filed all federal, state and foreign income and all other tax returns,
reports and declarations required by any jurisdiction to which it is subject (unless and only to the extent that the Company and each of its Subsidiaries has set aside
on its books provisions reasonably adequate for the payment of all unpaid and unreported taxes) and has paid all taxes and other governmental assessments and
charges that are material in amount, shown or determined to be due on such returns, reports and declarations, except those being contested in good faith and has set
aside on its books provisions reasonably adequate for the payment of all taxes for periods subsequent to the periods to which such returns, reports or declarations
apply. There are no unpaid taxes in any material amount claimed to be due by the taxing authority of any jurisdiction, and the officers of the Company know of no
basis for any such claim. The Company has not executed a waiver with respect to the statute of limitations relating to the assessment or collection of any foreign,
federal, state or local tax. None of the Company’s tax returns is presently being audited by any taxing authority.
m. Certain Transactions . Except for arm’s length transactions pursuant to which the Company or any of its Subsidiaries makes
payments in the ordinary course of business upon terms no less favorable than the Company or any of its Subsidiaries could obtain from third parties and other than
the grant of stock options disclosed on Schedule 3(c), none of the officers, directors, or employees of the Company is presently a party to any transaction with the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries (other than for services as employees, officers and directors), including any contract, agreement or other arrangement providing
for the furnishing of services to or by, providing for rental of real or personal property to or from, or otherwise requiring payments to or from any officer, director
or such employee or, to the knowledge of the Company, any corporation, partnership, trust or other entity in which any officer, director, or any such employee has
a substantial interest or is an officer, director, trustee or partner.
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n. Disclosure . All information relating to or concerning the Company or any of its Subsidiaries set forth in this Agreement and
provided to the Buyer pursuant to Section 2(d) hereof and otherwise in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby is true and correct in all material
respects and the Company has not omitted to state any material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein or therein, in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, not misleading. No event or circumstance has occurred or exists with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or its or their
business, properties, prospects, operations or financial conditions, which, under applicable law, rule or regulation, requires public disclosure or announcement by
the Company but which has not been so publicly announced or disclosed (assuming for this purpose that the Company’s reports filed under the 1934 Act are being
incorporated into an effective registration statement filed by the Company under the 1933 Act).
o. Acknowledgment Regarding Buyer’ Purchase of Securities . The Company acknowledges and agrees that the Buyer is acting solely
in the capacity of arm’s length purchasers with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby. The Company further acknowledges that the
Buyer is not acting as a financial advisor or fiduciary of the Company (or in any similar capacity) with respect to this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby and any statement made by the Buyer or any of its respective representatives or agents in connection with this Agreement and the transactions contemplated
hereby is not advice or a recommendation and is merely incidental to the Buyer’ purchase of the Securities. The Company further represents to the Buyer that the
Company’s decision to enter into this Agreement has been based solely on the independent evaluation of the Company and its representatives.
p. No Integrated Offering . Neither the Company, nor any of its affiliates, nor any person acting on its or their behalf, has directly or
indirectly made any offers or sales in any security or solicited any offers to buy any security under circumstances that would require registration under the 1933
Act of the issuance of the Securities to the Buyer. The issuance of the Securities to the Buyer will not be integrated with any other issuance of the Company’s
securities (past, current or future) for purposes of any shareholder approval provisions applicable to the Company or its securities.
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q. No Brokers . The Company has taken no action which would give rise to any claim by any person for brokerage commissions,
transaction fees or similar payments relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby.
r. Permits; Compliance . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries is in possession of all franchises, grants, authorizations, licenses,
permits, easements, variances, exemptions, consents, certificates, approvals and orders necessary to own, lease and operate its properties and to carry on its
business as it is now being conducted (collectively, the “Company Permits”), and there is no action pending or, to the knowledge of the Company, threatened
regarding suspension or cancellation of any of the Company Permits. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries is in conflict with, or in default or violation
of, any of the Company Permits, except for any such conflicts, defaults or violations which, individually or in the aggregate, would not reasonably be expected to
have a Material Adverse Effect. Neither the Company nor any of its Subsidiaries has received any notification with respect to possible conflicts, defaults or
violations of applicable laws, except for notices relating to possible conflicts, defaults or violations, which conflicts, defaults or violations would not have a
Material Adverse Effect.
s. Environmental Matters .
(i) There are, to the Company’s knowledge, with respect to the Company or any of its Subsidiaries or any predecessor of the
Company, no past or present violations of Environmental Laws (as defined below), releases of any material into the environment, actions, activities, circumstances,
conditions, events, incidents, or contractual obligations which may give rise to any common law environmental liability or any liability under the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980 or similar federal, state, local or foreign laws and neither the Company nor any of its
Subsidiaries has received any notice with respect to any of the foregoing, nor is any action pending or, to the Company’s knowledge, threatened in connection with
any of the foregoing. The term “Environmental Laws” means all federal, state, local or foreign laws relating to pollution or protection of human health or the
environment (including, without limitation, ambient air, surface water, groundwater, land surface or subsurface strata), including, without limitation, laws relating
to emissions, discharges, releases or threatened releases of chemicals, pollutants contaminants, or toxic or hazardous substances or wastes (collectively,
“Hazardous Materials”) into the environment, or otherwise relating to the manufacture, processing, distribution, use, treatment, storage, disposal, transport or
handling of Hazardous Materials, as well as all authorizations, codes, decrees, demands or demand letters, injunctions, judgments, licenses, notices or notice letters,
orders, permits, plans or regulations issued, entered, promulgated or approved thereunder.
(ii) Other than those that are or were stored, used or disposed of in compliance with applicable law, no Hazardous Materials
are contained on or about any real property currently owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, and no Hazardous Materials were released
on or about any real property previously owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries during the period the property was owned, leased or used
by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries, except in the normal course of the Company’s or any of its Subsidiaries’ business.
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(iii) There are no underground storage tanks on or under any real property owned, leased or used by the Company or any of its
Subsidiaries that are not in compliance with applicable law.
t. Title to Property . Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents the Company and its Subsidiaries have good and marketable title in fee
simple to all real property and good and marketable title to all personal property owned by them which is material to the business of the Company and its
Subsidiaries, in each case free and clear of all liens, encumbrances and defects or such as would not have a Material Adverse Effect. Any real property and
facilities held under lease by the Company and its Subsidiaries are held by them under valid, subsisting and enforceable leases with such exceptions as would not
have a Material Adverse Effect.
u. Internal Accounting Controls . Except as disclosed in the SEC Documents the Company and each of its Subsidiaries maintain a
system of internal accounting controls sufficient, in the judgment of the Company’s board of directors, to provide reasonable assurance that (i) transactions are
executed in accordance with management’s general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance
with management’s general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and
appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.
v. Foreign Corrupt Practices . Neither the Company, nor any of its Subsidiaries, nor any director, officer, agent, employee or other
person acting on behalf of the Company or any Subsidiary has, in the course of his actions for, or on behalf of, the Company, used any corporate funds for any
unlawful contribution, gift, entertainment or other unlawful expenses relating to political activity; made any direct or indirect unlawful payment to any foreign or
domestic government official or employee from corporate funds; violated or is in violation of any provision of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as
amended, or made any bribe, rebate, payoff, influence payment, kickback or other unlawful payment to any foreign or domestic government official or employee.
w. Solvency . The Company (after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement) is solvent ( i.e. , its assets have a
fair market value in excess of the amount required to pay its probable liabilities on its existing debts as they become absolute and matured) and currently the
Company has no information that would lead it to reasonably conclude that the Company would not, after giving effect to the transaction contemplated by this
Agreement, have the ability to, nor does it intend to take any action that would impair its ability to, pay its debts from time to time incurred in connection therewith
as such debts mature. The Company did not receive a qualified opinion from its auditors with respect to its most recent fiscal year end and, after giving effect to the
transactions contemplated by this Agreement, does not anticipate or know of any basis upon which its auditors might issue a qualified opinion in respect of its
current fiscal year. For the avoidance of doubt any disclosure of the Borrower’s ability to continue as a “going concern” shall not, by itself, be a violation of this
Section 3(w).
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x. No Investment Company . The Company is not, and upon the issuance and sale of the Securities as contemplated by this Agreement
will not be an “investment company” required to be registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (an “Investment Company”). The Company is not
controlled by an Investment Company.
y. Insurance . The Company and each of its Subsidiaries are insured by insurers of recognized financial responsibility against such
losses and risks and in such amounts as management of the Company believes to be prudent and customary in the businesses in which the Company and its
Subsidiaries are engaged. Neither the Company nor any such Subsidiary has any reason to believe that it will not be able to renew its existing insurance coverage
as and when such coverage expires or to obtain similar coverage from similar insurers as may be necessary to continue its business at a cost that would not have a
Material Adverse Effect. Upon written request the Company will provide to the Buyer true and correct copies of all policies relating to directors’ and officers’
liability coverage, errors and omissions coverage, and commercial general liability coverage.
z. Breach of Representations and Warranties by the Company . If the Company breaches any of the representations or warranties set
forth in this Section 3, and in addition to any other remedies available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an Event of default under
Section 3.4 of the Note.
4. COVENANTS .
a. Best Efforts . The parties shall use their commercially reasonable best efforts to satisfy timely each of the conditions described in
Section 6 and 7 of this Agreement.
b. Use of Proceeds . The Company shall use the proceeds from the sale of the Note for working capital and other general corporate
purposes and shall not, directly or indirectly, use such proceeds for any loan to or investment in any other corporation, partnership, enterprise or other person
(except in connection with its currently existing direct or indirect Subsidiaries).
c. Expenses . At the Closing of the First Tranche, the Company hereby authorizes the Buyer, as detailed in the disbursement
memorandum of even date, to pay the Buyer’s legal counsel directly in the amount of $1,250.00, which such amount shall be withheld from the proceeds of the
Purchase Price, as further described in the Note and/or disbursement memorandum.
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d. Financial Information . The Company agrees to send or make available the following reports to the Buyer until the Buyer transfers,
assigns, or sells all of the Securities: (i) within ten (10) days after the filing with the SEC, a copy of its Annual Report on Form 10-K its Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q and any Current Reports on Form 8-K; (ii) within one (1) day after release, copies of all press releases issued by the Company or any of its Subsidiaries; and
(iii) contemporaneously with the making available or giving to the shareholders of the Company, copies of any notices or other information the Company makes
available or gives to such shareholders. For the avoidance of doubt, filing the documents required in (i) above via EDGAR or releasing any documents set forth in
(ii) above via a recognized wire service shall satisfy the delivery requirements of this Section 4(f).
e. Listing . The Company shall promptly secure the listing of the Conversion Shares upon each national securities exchange or
automated quotation system, if any, upon which shares of Common Stock are then listed (subject to official notice of issuance) and, so long as the Buyer owns any
of the Securities, shall maintain, so long as any other shares of Common Stock shall be so listed, such listing of all Conversion Shares from time to time issuable
upon conversion of the Note. The Company will obtain and, so long as the Buyer owns any of the Securities, maintain the listing and trading of its Common Stock
on the OTCBB, OTCQB, OTC Pink or any equivalent replacement exchange, the Nasdaq National Market (“Nasdaq”), the Nasdaq SmallCap Market (“Nasdaq
SmallCap”), the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”), or the NYSE MKT and will comply in all respects with the Company’s reporting, filing and other
obligations under the bylaws or rules of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and such exchanges, as applicable. The Company shall promptly
provide to the Buyer copies of any material notices it receives from the OTCBB, OTCQB and any other exchanges or quotation systems on which the Common
Stock is then listed regarding the continued eligibility of the Common Stock for listing on such exchanges and quotation systems.
f. Corporate Existence . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns any Note, the Company shall maintain its corporate existence and shall
not sell all or substantially all of the Company’s assets, except in the event of a merger or consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets,
where the surviving or successor entity in such transaction (i) assumes the Company’s obligations hereunder and under the agreements and instruments entered into
in connection herewith and (ii) is a publicly traded corporation whose Common Stock is listed for trading on the OTCBB, OTCQB, OTC Pink, Nasdaq,
NasdaqSmallCap, NYSE or AMEX.
g. No Integration . The Company shall not make any offers or sales of any security (other than the Securities) under circumstances that
would require registration of the Securities being offered or sold hereunder under the 1933 Act or cause the offering of the Securities to be integrated with any
other offering of securities by the Company for the purpose of any stockholder approval provision applicable to the Company or its securities.
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h. Failure to Comply with the 1934 Act . So long as the Buyer beneficially owns the Note, the Company shall comply with the
reporting requirements of the 1934 Act; and the Company shall continue to be subject to the reporting requirements of the 1934 Act.
i. Trading Activities . Neither the Buyer nor its affiliates has an open short position (or other hedging or similar transactions) in the
common stock of the Company and the Buyer agree that it shall not, and that it will cause its affiliates not to, engage in any short sales of or hedging transactions
with respect to the common stock of the Company.
j. Breach of Covenants. If the Company breaches any of the covenants set forth in this Section 4, and in addition to any other remedies
available to the Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, it will be considered an event of default under Section 3.3 of the Note.
5. Transfer Agent Instructions . Prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion Shares
may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, all such
certificates shall bear the restrictive legend specified in Section 2(g) of this Agreement. The Company warrants that: (i) no stop transfer instructions to give effect
to Section 2(f) hereof (in the case of the Conversion Shares, prior to registration of the Conversion Shares under the 1933 Act or the date on which the Conversion
Shares may be sold pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of Securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold), will be
given by the Company to its transfer agent and that the Securities shall otherwise be freely transferable on the books and records of the Company as and to the
extent provided in this Agreement and the Note; (ii) it will not direct its transfer agent not to transfer or delay, impair, and/or hinder its transfer agent in
transferring (or issuing) (electronically or in certificated form) any certificate for Conversion Shares to be issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise
pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement; and (iii) it will not fail to remove (or directs its transfer agent not to remove or impairs,
delays, and/or hinders its transfer agent from removing) any restrictive legend (or to withdraw any stop transfer instructions in respect thereof) on any certificate
for any Conversion Shares issued to the Buyer upon conversion of or otherwise pursuant to the Note as and when required by the Note and this Agreement.
Nothing in this Section shall affect in any way the Buyer’s obligations and agreement set forth in Section 2(g) hereof to comply with all applicable prospectus
delivery requirements, if any, upon re-sale of the Securities. If the Buyer provides the Company, at the cost of the Buyer, with (i) an opinion of counsel in form,
substance and scope customary for opinions in comparable transactions, to the effect that a public sale or transfer of such Securities may be made without
registration under the 1933 Act and such sale or transfer is effected or (ii) the Buyer provides reasonable assurances that the Securities can be sold pursuant to Rule
144, the Company shall permit the transfer, and, in the case of the Conversion Shares, promptly instruct its transfer agent to issue one or more certificates, free
from restrictive legend, in such name and in such denominations as specified by the Buyer. The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations
hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer, by vitiating the intent and purpose of the transactions contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company
acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its obligations under this Section may be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach
by the Company of the provisions of this Section, that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies, to an injunction restraining any breach
and requiring immediate transfer, without the necessity of showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
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6. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE COMPANY’S OBLIGATIONS TO SELL . The obligation of the Company hereunder to issue and
sell the Note to the Buyer at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions thereto, provided that these
conditions are for the Company’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Company at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Buyer shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Company.
b. The Buyer shall have delivered the Purchase Price in accordance with Section 1(b) above.
c. The representations and warranties of the Buyer shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date when made and as of
the Closing Date as though made at that time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date), and the Buyer shall have performed,
satisfied and complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied
with by the Buyer at or prior to the Closing Date.
d. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or
endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated
hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
7. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE BUYER’S OBLIGATION TO PURCHASE . The obligation of the Buyer hereunder to purchase the
Note at the Closing is subject to the satisfaction, at or before the Closing Date of each of the following conditions, provided that these conditions are for the
Buyer’s sole benefit and may be waived by the Buyer at any time in its sole discretion:
a. The Company shall have executed this Agreement and delivered the same to the Buyer.
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b. The Company shall have delivered to the Buyer duly executed Note (in such denominations as the Buyer shall request) in accordance
with Section 1(b) above.
c. The representations and warranties of the Company shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the date when made and as
of the Closing Date as though made at such time (except for representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date) and the Company shall have performed,
satisfied and complied in all material respects with the covenants, agreements and conditions required by this Agreement to be performed, satisfied or complied
with by the Company at or prior to the Closing Date. The Buyer shall have received a certificate or certificates, executed by the chief executive officer of the
Company, dated as of the Closing Date, to the foregoing effect and as to such other matters as may be reasonably requested by the Buyer including, but not limited
to certificates with respect to the Company’s Certificate of Incorporation, By-laws and Board of Directors’ resolutions relating to the transactions contemplated
hereby.
d. No litigation, statute, rule, regulation, executive order, decree, ruling or injunction shall have been enacted, entered, promulgated or
endorsed by or in any court or governmental authority of competent jurisdiction or any self-regulatory organization having authority over the matters contemplated
hereby which prohibits the consummation of any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement.
e. No event shall have occurred which could reasonably be expected to have a Material Adverse Effect on the Company including but
not limited to a change in the 1934 Act reporting status of the Company or the failure of the Company to be timely in its 1934 Act reporting obligations.
f. The Common Stock shall have been authorized for quotation on the OTCBB, OTCQB or any similar quotation system and trading in
the Common Stock on the OTCBB, OTCQB or any similar quotation system shall not have been suspended by the SEC or the OTCBB, OTCQB or any similar
quotation system.
g. The Buyer shall have received an officer’s certificate described in Section 3(c) above, dated as of the Closing Date.
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8. GOVERNING LAW; MISCELLANEOUS .
a. Governing Law . This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Florida without
regard to principles of conflicts of laws. Any action brought by either party against the other concerning the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be
brought only in the state courts of Miami-Dade County, Florida or in the federal courts located in the State of Florida. The parties to this Agreement hereby
irrevocably waive any objection to jurisdiction and venue of any action instituted hereunder and shall not assert any defense based on lack of jurisdiction or venue
or based upon forum non conveniens . The Company and Buyer waive trial by jury. The prevailing party shall be entitled to recover from the other party its
reasonable attorney’s fees and costs. In the event that any provision of this Agreement or any other agreement delivered in connection herewith is invalid or
unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be
deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule of law. Any such provision which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the
validity or enforceability of any other provision of any agreement. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of process and consents to process being
served in any suit, action or proceeding in connection with this Agreement or any other Transaction Document by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified
mail or overnight delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Agreement and agrees that such service shall
constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve process in any
other manner permitted by law.
b. Counterparts; Signatures by Facsimile . This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement and shall become effective when counterparts have been signed by each party and
delivered to the other party. This Agreement, once executed by a party, may be delivered to the other party hereto by facsimile transmission of a copy of this
Agreement bearing the signature of the party so delivering this Agreement.
c. Headings . The headings of this Agreement are for convenience of reference only and shall not form part of, or affect the
interpretation of, this Agreement.
d. Severability . In the event that any provision of this Agreement is invalid or unenforceable under any applicable statute or rule of
law, then such provision shall be deemed inoperative to the extent that it may conflict therewith and shall be deemed modified to conform with such statute or rule
of law. Any provision hereof which may prove invalid or unenforceable under any law shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision hereof.
e. Entire Agreement; Amendments . This Agreement and the instruments referenced herein contain the entire understanding of the
parties with respect to the matters covered herein and therein and, except as specifically set forth herein or therein, neither the Company nor the Buyer makes any
representation, warranty, covenant or undertaking with respect to such matters. No provision of this Agreement may be waived or amended other than by an
instrument in writing signed by the majority in interest of the Buyer.
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f. Notices . All notices, demands, requests, consents, approvals, and other communications required or permitted hereunder shall be in
writing and, unless otherwise specified herein, shall be (i) personally served, (ii) deposited in the mail, registered or certified, return receipt requested, postage
prepaid, (iii) delivered by reputable air courier service with charges prepaid, or (iv) transmitted by hand delivery, telegram, or facsimile, addressed as set forth
below or to such other address as such party shall have specified most recently by written notice. Any notice or other communication required or permitted to be
given hereunder shall be deemed effective (a) upon hand delivery or delivery by facsimile, with accurate confirmation generated by the transmitting facsimile
machine, at the address or number designated below (if delivered on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received), or the first
business day following such delivery (if delivered other than on a business day during normal business hours where such notice is to be received) or (b) on the
second business day following the date of mailing by express courier service, fully prepaid, addressed to such address, or upon actual receipt of such mailing,
whichever shall first occur. The addresses for such communications shall be:
If to the Company, to:
LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
11380 Prosperity Farms Road, Suite 221E
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410
E-mail: Stew@LifeLogger.com
If to the Holder, to:
SBI INVESTMENTS LLC, 2014-1
369 Lexington Avenue, 2nd Floor
New York, NY 10017
E-mail: jjuchno@seaotterglobal.com
Each party shall provide notice to the other party of any change in address.
g. Successors and Assigns . This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their successors and
assigns. Neither the Company nor the Buyer shall assign this Agreement or any rights or obligations hereunder without the prior written consent of the other.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, subject to Section 2(f), the Buyer may assign its rights hereunder to any person that purchases Securities in a private transaction
from the Buyer or to any of its “affiliates,” as that term is defined under the 1934 Act, without the consent of the Company.
h. Third Party Beneficiaries . This Agreement is intended for the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective permitted successors
and assigns, and is not for the benefit of, nor may any provision hereof be enforced by, any other person.
i. Survival . The representations and warranties of the Company and the agreements and covenants set forth in this Agreement shall
survive the closing hereunder. The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Buyer and all their officers, directors, employees and agents for loss or
damage arising as a result of or related to any breach by the Company of any of its representations, warranties and covenants set forth in this Agreement or any of
its covenants and obligations under this Agreement, including advancement of expenses as they are incurred.
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j. Further Assurances . Each party shall do and perform, or cause to be done and performed, all such further acts and things, and shall
execute and deliver all such other agreements, certificates, instruments and documents, as the other party may reasonably request in order to carry out the intent
and accomplish the purposes of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby.
k. No Strict Construction . The language used in this Agreement will be deemed to be the language chosen by the parties to express
their mutual intent, and no rules of strict construction will be applied against any party.
l. Remedies .
(i) The Company acknowledges that a breach by it of its obligations hereunder will cause irreparable harm to the Buyer by
vitiating the intent and purpose of the transaction contemplated hereby. Accordingly, the Company acknowledges that the remedy at law for a breach of its
obligations under this Agreement will be inadequate and agrees, in the event of a breach or threatened breach by the Company of the provisions of this Agreement,
that the Buyer shall be entitled, in addition to all other available remedies at law or in equity, and in addition to the penalties assessable herein, to an injunction or
injunctions restraining, preventing or curing any breach of this Agreement and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions hereof, without the necessity of
showing economic loss and without any bond or other security being required.
(ii) In addition to any other remedy provided herein or in any document executed in connection herewith, Borrower shall pay
Holder for all costs, fees and expenses in connection with any litigation, contest, dispute, suit or any other action to enforce any rights of Holder against Borrower
in connection herewith, including, but not limited to, costs and expenses and attorneys’ fees, and costs and time charges of counsel to Holder.
m. Publicity . The Company, and the Buyer shall have the right to review a reasonable period of time before issuance of any press
releases, SEC, OTCQB (or other applicable trading market), or FINRA filings, or any other public statements with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby;
provided , however , that the Company shall be entitled, without the prior approval of the Buyer, to make any press release or SEC, OTCQB (or other applicable
trading market) or FINRA filings with respect to such transactions as is required by applicable law and regulations (although the Buyer shall be consulted by the
Company in connection with any such press release prior to its release and shall be provided with a copy thereof).
[ signature page follows ]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned Buyer and the Company have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as of the date first above written.
LIFELOGGER TECHNOLOGIES CORP.
By:
/s/ Stewart Garner
Name: Stewart Garner
Title: Chief Executive Officer
SBI INVESTMENTS LLC, 2014-1
By:
/s/ Peter Wisniewski
Name: Peter Wisniewski
Title: President
AGGREGATE SUBSCRIPTION AMOUNT:
Aggregate Principal Amount of Note:

US$83,333.33

Aggregate Purchase Price:

US$75,000.00*

*The purchase price of $17,250.00, relating to the First Tranche of $19,166.66, shall be paid within a reasonable amount of time after the full execution of the Note
and all related transaction documents. Additional tranches may be funded by the Buyer, in Buyer’s sole discretion, in accordance with the terms of the Note.
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Stewart Garner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 of Lifelogger Technologies Corp.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Date: April 17, 2017

/s/ Stewart Garner
Stewart Garner
Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Stewart Garner, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016 of Lifelogger Technologies Corp.;
2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the
registrant and have:
a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during
the period in which this report is being prepared;
b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision,
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;
c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness
of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and
d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.
Date: April 17, 2017

/s/ Stewart Garner
Stewart Garner
Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer)

Exhibit 32.1
Section 1350 Certification
In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Lifelogger Technologies Corp. (the “Company”) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2016
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), I Stewart Garner, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the Company,
certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that to the best of my knowledge:
1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the Company.
Date: April 17, 2017

/s/ Stewart Garner
Stewart Garner Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
(principal executive officer and principal financial officer)

This certification accompanies this Annual Report on Form 10-K pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to the extent
required by such Act, be deemed filed by the Company for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). Such
certification will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act, except to the
extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference.

